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in 2004 we called for a reality check about 
electricity. it was obvious that while hydro 
had served New Zealanders well, we 
needed to be looking at a wider range of 
sustainable and reliable sources of energy. 
 As well as seeing that demand was  
increasing, we could also see that attitudes 
were changing about fuel sources for  
generation. Addressing environmental 
issues was already becoming a mainstream 
way of doing business. 
 That was four years ago. Since then, 
there has been a lot of discussion about 
New Zealand’s future energy needs. it’s 
good to be having these conversations and 
it’s important to be asking the questions. 
But talk doesn’t generate power, which is 
why we got to work on the answers. 
 One of those answers, and one we think is 
most compelling, is geothermal. That’s why 
Mighty river power is absolutely  
committed to developing geothermal  
resources. We’re well on the way to  
developing a billion dollar geothermal 
business. We still respect what cold water 
can do – our Waikato hydro scheme meets 
approximately 10 percent of New Zealand’s 
energy needs – but we’re in awe of what  
you can do with hot water. 
 We’re also investing in wind generation,  
so that each year our generation  
portfolio becomes more diverse and  
more sustainable.
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Mighty River Power’s 
geothermal exploration 
and development 
programme is the largest 
and most expansive  
of its type in New  
Zealand in 20 years.

 
 
New Zealand needs real answers to its  
real and steadily growing energy needs.

You could say geothermal is the perfect 
fuel for electricity generation. Geothermal 
energy is sustainable and reliable. It runs 
24/7 and has a capacity factor close to 100 
percent. It doesn’t depend on the weather. 
Importantly, our geothermal developments 
have low greenhouse gas emissions and a 
small physical footprint. But geothermal 
does need a lot of risk capital, expertise and 
courage to explore and get it up and running 
successfully. We’ve made that commitment 
and we are well on track to having over 
400MW of geothermal generation operating 
by 2012.
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In many ways, we’re picking up where the 
industry left off in the early 1980s, after the 
discovery of the Maui gas field left new 
geothermal developments on the shelf. Gas 
was plentiful and relatively cheap so it was 
not surprising that it dampened enthusiasm 
for riskier geothermal development. 
However, as concerns have increased around 
climate change and gas reserves have 
declined, geothermal’s star has risen again, 
with Mighty River Power and its Maori 
partners taking a lead in bringing more of  
this sustainable fuel into New Zealand’s 
generation portfolio.

 Our shared ownership model for 
geothermal is delivering results. This year 
the geothermal plants we are involved in 
produced 1,159GWh, an increase of 9  
percent on the prior year and a 58 percent  
increase since 2002.

A milestone in our programme was the 
completion of our $300 million geothermal 
power station at Kawerau. Originally due for 
commissioning in October 2008, the plant, 
which is capable of meeting around a third of 
residential and industrial demand in the Bay 

of Plenty region, successfully supplied power 
into the national transmission grid prior to 
the end of June.

In partnership with Maori, Mighty River 
Power is now active in four geothermal fields: 
Kawerau, Rotokawa, Mokai and Ngatamariki.

The Tuaropaki Trust and Mighty River 
Power are together exploring options for the 
further development of the Mokai geothermal 
resource. We have a 25 percent interest in 
the Tuaropaki Power Company (TPC), which 
owns the Mokai plant, and we operate the 
plant on TPC’s behalf. Following the upgrade 
of the Mokai plant during the year, the 
capacity increased from 95MW to 112MW. In 
November 2007 we completed negotiations 
with Contact Energy allowing the Tuaropaki 
Trust to expand their land ownership at Mokai 
by 1,200 hectares to cover the whole Mokai 
geothermal resource. This will allow  
TPC to consider further development  
of the Mokai geothermal resource under  
a single integrated reservoir management 
arrangement. At the same time it enables  
the Trust to significantly expand its  
farming operations.

In partnership with Maori, Mighty 
River Power is now active in four 
geothermal fields: Kawerau, 
Rotokawa, Mokai and Ngatamariki.

POWERING ON 

(left) Recently completed  
100MW Kawerau Geothermal 
Power Station.
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Partners in progress 
We believe cultural and commercial goals  
can be compatible and this approach helps  
us bring geothermal opportunities to market.  
All of our geothermal power stations and 
development projects involve partnerships 
with Maori and other landowners. The 
kaitiakitanga approach of our partners is 
integrated with the environmental guardian-
ship and sustainability objectives of our 
geothermal business model. Our track record 
as responsible managers of geothermal 
resources is, we believe, important to our 
credibility in these partnerships.

For many years, we’ve had a 50:50  
joint venture with the Tauhara North No.2 
Trust in the Rotokawa geothermal field. 

We have shown ourselves to be responsible 
managers, delivering positive outcomes for 
both parties. That’s led to an agreement to 
build a second geothermal power station  
at Rotokawa – called Nga Awa Purua – and 
to commence exploration on the nearby 
Ngatamariki field. The Nga Awa Purua Joint 
Venture is a partnership between Tauhara 
North No.2 Trust and Mighty River Power. 

132MW of new capacity
The Nga Awa Purua power station will 
be built close to the existing Rotokawa 
geothermal power station and will generate 
an average 1,100GWh annually. The 
construction project began in April 2008. 
The consents for the project were awarded 
in December 2007, just six months after 
lodgement, illustrating the value of the 
partnership’s approach and its record for 
responsible resource management.

The $450 million development will provide 
132MW of generation capacity, bringing the 
total generation of the Rotokawa geothermal 
field to around 165MW. It will extract a daily 
average of 45,000 tonnes of geothermal fluid 
from the reservoir and will reinject all fluids, 
apart from those consumed in cooling.

On completion in mid 2010, it will be the 
second largest geothermal station in  
New Zealand, satisfying nearly 3 percent  
of New Zealand’s annual electricity needs.

The Nga Awa Purua station will  
include the largest geothermal turbine in the 
world. This Fuji manufactured equipment will 
be supplied by Sumitomo Corporation. Mighty 
River Power has forged strong and successful 
relationships with these companies during 
construction of the Kawerau project.

 

All of our new 
geothermal 
power stations 
and development 
projects involve 
partnerships. 

112MW 

MOKAI ROTOKAWA NORTH
(FUTURE)

33MW

ROTOKAWA
132MW 
(2010)

NGA AWA PURUA

100MW

KAWERAU

TAUPO

NGATAMARIKI 
(FUTURE)

MIGHTY RIVER POWER AND ITS PARTNERS’ 
GEOTHERMAL ASSETS
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Further Projects
Exploration drilling is scheduled for the  
next financial year at Ngatamariki. The 
$30 million exploration programme, which 
involves drilling at least three deep wells, 
will establish the extent of the geothermal 
reservoir ahead of the proposed lodging of 
consent applications in 2009 for a station 
expected to have a capacity of at least 80MW.

 As well as bringing new power plants  
on stream, our team is taking existing 
power plants, such as Rotokawa, into higher 
production. For example, in existing fields 
the drilling of deeper wells than the original 
Crown wells has accessed a hotter, more 
productive geothermal resource.

The geothermal team is also employing 
advanced scientific modelling techniques 
which better determine the energy potential 
of geothermal reservoirs and their recharging 
capability and better guide decisions about 
the sustainable use of the reservoir and the 
best technology to use.

Geothermal development in New Zealand  
is our single biggest priority. 

Development of partnerships in a  
shared ownership model, creating the  
scale to undertake exploration risk in  
greenfield reservoirs, and proven  
construction capability, are all important 
to the achievement of our strategic goals in 
geothermal and we are making very good 
progress at every level.

By 2012 we, along with our partners,  
aim to be producing enough geothermal 
energy to reliably supply approximately  
8 percent, or around 3,500GWh, of New 
Zealand’s national electricity requirements 
each year. To help us get there we have well-
established relationships and development 
options being actively explored with partners.

Our goals are ambitious, but we’re well  
on the way to growing geothermal as a  
source of reliable and renewable energy  
for New Zealand - today and tomorrow.

Our goals are ambitious, but we’re 
well on the way to bringing New 
Zealand a reliable, renewable source 
of energy for today and tomorrow.

REAL EXPLORATION 

(left) Drilling rig at Rotokawa.
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Thirty years ago, New Zealand had some  
of the best geothermal capability in the  
world. Two of the three major geothermal 
consulting firms were based here, research 
programmes saw New Zealand leading the 
field in geothermal development methods  
and postgraduate programmes deepened  
the global talent pool and put New Zealanders 
at the leading technological edge.

But when geothermal development  
was put on hold in favour of gas in the early 
1980s, those skills were lost as geothermal 
experts switched careers, moved overseas or 
retired. Mighty River Power is now leading 
the reversal of that brain drain, recruiting 
internationally and training recent university 
graduates to rebuild New Zealand’s  
geothermal expertise.

In 2000, we had no geothermal-specific 
capabilities in the Company. Today we  
employ 90 skilled technical staff. By 2012,  
we expect to have at least 120 people in our 
geothermal team, with additional capability 
through an international partnership.

Projects such as Nga Awa Purua serve 
as a training and development platform for 
recent engineering and geology graduates, 
as well as geothermal tradespeople.

Rebuilding New Zealand’s geothermal 
capabilities is critical to the successful and 
efficient development of New Zealand’s 
geothermal resources. We compete in an 
international pool for that talent. We believe 
New Zealand can succeed internationally, 
and indeed to succeed domestically will 
require an international approach. 

WAYNE RICHARDS  
Geothermal Resource Manager

Wayne Richards has devoted most of his 
working life to the electricity industry.  
Over the last decade he has been involved  
in our geothermal business, and was 
instrumental in establishing an apprentice-
ship programme with a focus on young Maori. 
As Operations Development Manager, Wayne 
provided the link between our operations 
team and the construction team at Kawerau. 
Wayne is currently the Resource Manager 
in geothermal, managing the drilling and 
geoscience teams.

Rebuilding New Zealand’s 
geothermal capabilities is critical  
to the successful and efficient 
development of New Zealand’s 
geothermal resources. 
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We are building both generation  
capacity and people capability.

I am pleased to present Mighty River 
Power’s 2008 annual report. It was a year 
of progress on many fronts, particularly the 
steady realisation of our strategy to create 
a significant geothermal business. Our 
partnership or shared ownership model in 
developing geothermal resources has strong 
support from our shareholders and partners.

This business model is demonstrated in our 
work with the Tuaropaki Trust on the Mokai 
geothermal field and with the Putauaki Trust 
and Tuwharetoa ki Kawerau at Kawerau. 
We also have a long term relationship with 
Tauhara North No.2 Trust, with whom we 
have achieved a major milestone with the 
commencement of construction for the new 
Nga Awa Purua geothermal power station  
in April 2008. 

In early 2008 we invested $US8 million 
for a 25 percent share in a US company, 
GeoGlobal Energy LLC (GGE). Through GGE 
we will pursue high quality geothermal 
investment opportunities offshore. As well  
as the direct economic benefits from this 
investment, we expect spin-off benefits 
in attracting and retaining people with 
geothermal qualifications and skills.

The company is also diversifying into wind. 
In June 2008 we announced an agreement 
to purchase a 19.95 percent cornerstone 
shareholding in Windflow Technology 
Limited. Windflow Technology Limited is 
a progressive New Zealand company with 
exciting wind turbine technology well suited 
to some New Zealand conditions. 

The value in having access to a range of 
renewable fuel sources was brought home 
this financial year, with the drought  
conditions in the Waikato reminding us of 
New Zealand’s reliance on hydroelectricity. 
This comes at a time when the debate is 
growing over access to water, water quality 
and how New Zealand can best manage 
competing demands for water. 

Our financial performance remains very 
sound. Earnings before net interest expense, 
income tax, depreciation, amortisation 
and financial instruments (EBITDAF) were 
$304.6m, down slightly from last year. The 
reduction in EBITDAF was due to increased 
wholesale electricity prices not fully offsetting 
higher gas purchase costs associated with 
running Southdown to cover the 9 percent 
reduction in hydro volumes due to the 
Waikato drought.

An independent valuation of the  
Group’s hydro and cogeneration assets was 
undertaken by PricewaterhouseCoopers  
as at 30 June 2008. The revaluation resulted 
in the recognition of an uplift of $836 million 
for the hydro assets. The after tax  
effect of the revaluation, $585 million, 
has been recognised in an increase in 
Shareholders’ Equity to $2,258 million. 
During the year the remaining useful lives  
of these hydro and cogeneration assets  
were reassessed, resulting in extended life 
for the hydro assets, and consequently the 
depreciation charge for the year has been 
reduced by $14.5 million.

Our net profit was $111 million, an increase 
of $14 million over the prior year, primarily 
due to the lower depreciation charge. We 
declared a final dividend of $55.5 million. 
Capital expenditure for the year was $317.7 
million, up $138.9 million from last year. 
Operating cash flow at $207.4 million  
declined by $16.5 million compared to the 
prior year. This was due to increased interest 
costs resulting from our development 
programme together with the impact of the 
unfavourable operating conditions. 

Net debt increased by $195 million to  
$625 million. In May 2008 we rolled over 
an extendable $200 million bond issue for 
a further 5 years, with the result that at 
year end over 75 percent of Mighty River 
Power’s issued debt has maturities of 5 years 
or longer. We also have secure access to 
other credit lines bringing total facilities to 
$746 million. This strong liquidity position 
combined with the continuous hedging of 
interest rate risk has reduced the volatility 
of the Company’s cost of debt and provides 
certainty for our development programme in 
the face of the international credit crunch.

The New Zealand Accounting Standards 
Board required the adoption of NZ IFRS 
for reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2007. As a consequence, our 
financial statements are now reported in line 
with these standards. A reconciliation  
and explanation of the movements between 
NZ IFRS and GAAP for the prior year  
result has been provided in the notes to the 
financial statements.

As part of our commitment to continuous 
improvement we have restructured the Audit 
and Remuneration Committees of the Board. 
The Risk Assurance and Audit Committee 

now has specific responsibility to assure the 
Board that risks and threats to the business 
are being managed appropriately. The 
Human Resources Committee, now has a 
broadened focus on the company’s people 
capability and competencies.

Our retail business, Mercury Energy, 
continues to perform well. We have had 
significant growth in customer numbers year 
on year, including increasing our Wellington 
customer base from around 500 in July 2007 
to over 7,000 in June 2008, as well as growing 
our retail gas business to over 30,000 
customers in just four years. I am particularly 
proud to see that Mercury Energy has for  
the fourth year won in the CRM Awards, win-
ning Gold for excellence in our contact centre.

Our approach to corporate responsibility 
is embedded in our business model. It 
influences our governance, our approach  
to safety, our environmental performance 
and how we interact with stakeholders and 
the communities we serve and work  
alongside. How we operate is a critically 
important part of what we do and the  
businesses we manage. 

This year we report for the first time using 
the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) guide-
lines. They provide a framework for reporting 
on our economic, environmental and social 
performance. An index to the performance 
being reported on can be found on pages 
90–91 of this report. 

On a more personal note, I have  
very much valued the contribution and 
professional input from our Board members.  
Lastly I congratulate our Chief Executive 
Doug Heffernan and all the people of  
Mighty River Power for their achievements  
in the 2008 year.

CAROLE DURBIN 
Chair

CHAIR’S 
REPORT
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However, in addition to regulatory 
incentives for renewable fuel sources it will 
be important that other factors are aligned 
to encourage renewables including good 
Resource Management Act processes and 
sufficient transmission infrastructure.

Water Access
As Mighty River Power’s generation portfolio 
becomes increasingly diverse, our Waikato 
hydro system remains at its core. 

The Waikato hydro system with its nine 
power stations makes a crucial contribution 
to New Zealand’s current and future energy 
needs and ongoing, secure access to water 
is critical. Increasingly, hydro generators are 
having to defend against a range of interests 
for new access, particularly as dairy farming 
expands and intensifies. 

Environment Waikato is currently 
developing a new water allocation plan. We 
fully acknowledge that we are not the only 
parties interested in the river as a resource 
and we support allocations for municipal 
and stock drinking water needs. What 
would concern us, however, are any plans 
to increase allocations for commercial use 
to the extent that existing hydro generation 
capacity is constrained or stranded. 

Water allocation issues are not confined 
to the Waikato and with hydro currently the 
dominant means of electricity generation 
in New Zealand, these issues take on 
national significance. This is especially so 
given the emphasis on the use of renewable 
fuel sources for security of supply. Hydro 
generation also has an important contribution 
to make in meeting greenhouse gas emission 
targets. We are continuing to work alongside 
policymakers and regulators to ensure this 
contribution is recognised as strategies to 
sustainably manage New Zealand’s water 
resources are developed.

Our Year
The year in review was a very difficult  
year from a national security of supply  
perspective, primarily due to low inflows 
across the country’s hydro systems,  
exacerbated by the severe drought in the 
Waikato. This was made all the tougher by 
unexpected asset removals at a national  
level with Contact Energy’s New Plymouth 
300MW power station removed from service 
and the 500MW Pole 1 of Transpower’s  
HVDC link withdrawn, thus limiting the 
substitution of energy supply between hydro  
and thermal stations. 

The wholesale and hedge markets 
proved effective mechanisms to encourage 
early thermal generation to compensate 
for dwindling hydro stocks. Mighty River 
Power was an active trader in these 
markets, successfully managing its financial 
performance and risks through extensive 
contracting, indirectly enhancing national 
security of supply.

With the Waikato declared as a drought  
region for the first time in 100 years,  
operating conditions in 2007/2008 were 
among the most challenging in the 
Company’s history. While the official drought 
period was 8 February to 30 April 2008, we 
anticipated the impact of dry conditions well 
in advance and from October 2007 we were 
carefully monitoring and managing water 
flows through the Waikato hydro system. 

Our total hydro production was 3,651GWh 
compared to a long run mean of around 
4,000GWh and was 9 percent down on 
the previous year. The strategic value of 
our cogeneration plant at Southdown and 
our expansion into geothermal was vividly 
illustrated in the year. Poor hydro conditions 
were offset by a 61 percent increase in 
production from our Southdown gas-fired 
cogeneration plant of 1,094GWh compared to 
665GWh the prior year. The station, upgraded 
by 45MW to 170MW early in 2007, operated at 
full load from October to the end of June. 

Generation production was rounded out 
with 1,159GWh of geothermal production 
across all the plants we operate, and 50GWh 
of bioenergy generation. Total generation 
volumes for the year from all fuel sources 
were 5,954GWh, an increase of 3 percent  
on last year.

A significant increase in capital  
expenditure brought total investment to  
$805 million over the last five years.  
The majority of this related to geothermal 
power station construction at Kawerau and 
geothermal exploration at Nga Awa Purua.

Looking forward
The significant level of investment in  
new generation capacity bodes well  
for improved energy security margins.  
Until the transmission regulatory  
environment adequately considers the grid’s 
role in underpinning competition and in 
enhancing overall energy security, there is 
however a risk that grid investment will lag 
behind generation and not deliver security  
to consumers. It is also crucial that effective 
commercial disciplines drive all generators  
to manage dry year risks and best utilise 
discretionary thermal capacity to get the most 
out of all generation capacity.

At the retail level, new metering tech-
nology will encourage more innovation and 
stronger competition across New Zealand.

We are relatively well placed with  
existing and planned generation generally 
close to strong grid connections and with a 
strong market share in the most competitive 
retail area.
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We are playing our part by 
bringing renewable geother-
mal and wind resources into 
play as quickly as possible, 
complementing our core 
hydro generation capacity. 

We’ve achieved rapid progress in the  
expansion of our geothermal generation 
portfolio and we’ve made good headway in 
preparing wind generation projects. In our 
metering and retail businesses we’re taking 
advantage of new technologies to open up 
new business and product opportunities.

In generation, we have a twofold priority. 
First, to build the generation capacity needed 
to help meet growth in demand for electricity. 
Second, to secure more fuel sources for 
further development, ensuring that more of 
these are renewable and sustainable. 

Our commitment to geothermal  
development as a priority and our continued 

work on wind as an energy source,  
demonstrate these priorities in action. This 
year our 100MW geothermal power station 
at Kawerau was successfully commissioned 
ahead of time, under budget and delivering 
more capacity than expected. We signed an 
agreement with Tauhara North No.2 Trust 
for a second geothermal station at Rotokawa, 
secured exploration consents for the 
Ngatamariki geothermal field, and with  
the Tuaropaki Trust, we are exploring 
options for further development of the Mokai 
geothermal field, as a result of acquiring 
adjacent land interests from Contact Energy. 
This report shows our progress in our core 
business activities, and it also shows how it is 
being achieved through partnership models 
and sustainable principles. 

Customer Benefits through Innovation
The deregulated retail market has created 
opportunities for using modern technology 
to enable more innovative products and 
services for customers.

Our three year programme to replace 
existing meters with 300,000 smart meters  
at a capital cost of around $70 million will 
make an important contribution to retail  
innovation. The ability of these meters and 
their communications system to provide 
consumption information in real time opens 
up a range of opportunities for retailers to 
help domestic customers monitor  
consumption and manage their energy costs. 

We continue to offer energy saving  
tools and advice to domestic customers 
through the Mercury Energy website and 
to commercial users through individual 
advisory services. 

Supporting a Sustainable Future in Energy
The year in review saw the Government 
release its strategy for New Zealand’s long 
term energy needs. The strategy shows 
the complexity of the environment in which 
we operate. It calls for reliable supplies 
of energy which are resilient to economic, 
geopolitical, climate and mechanical  
(breakdown) shocks. But it also seeks to 
address global climate change issues by 
specifying that this energy supply must 
be renewable and sustainable with low 
greenhouse gas emissions.

The Government’s goal is to have 90 
percent of electricity generation from renew-
able resources by 2025. However, we know 
that a delicate balancing act will be required. 

Thermal sources, such as coal and gas,  
have traditionally answered the reliability 
question, especially when hydro inflows 
are low, yet these sources contribute to 
greenhouse gas emissions which now must 
be lowered or offset.

Last year we talked about the expansion 
of Southdown, our cogeneration plant in 
Auckland. This has proven invaluable this 
financial year. Nevertheless, our preference 
has always been and remains on renewables.

We are playing our part by bringing  
renewable geothermal and wind  
resources into play as quickly as possible, 
complementing our core hydro generation 
capacity. In geothermal alone, we are  
planning to have built 400MW of capacity by 
2012 and this year alone we have invested 
$260 million in geothermal developments. 

Emissions Trading Scheme
There are significant implications for the 
electricity sector in the introduction of an 
Emissions Trading Scheme (ETS).

Generators will be required to purchase 
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) offsets to match any 
emissions from generation facilities. Higher 
wholesale energy prices are expected as 
generators seek to recover the cost of the 
GHG offsets. If introduced, we will be a 
compliance participant due to direct  
emissions from natural gas use at 
Southdown and the much lower emissions 
at our geothermal stations. However, our 
portfolio will on balance benefit from the 
higher prices associated with the ETS. The 
Company has received 1.8 million units of 
GHG emission rights from the New Zealand 
government in relation to completed or under 
construction generation facilities. These 
rights depend on the performance of the 
new generation facilities. The rights form 
part of our GHG trading and are integrated 
into our wider business frameworks, which 
include viewing carbon as an asset class, and 
looking to create value from trading as well 
as covering our compliance obligations. The 
ETS will further encourage investment in 
renewable generation – something we whole 
heartedly support. We are confident there are  
affordable low emission options available to 
meet New Zealand’s electricity needs over 
the next decade.

A significant increase in capital 
expenditure brought total  
investment to $805 million over  
the last five years.

CHIEF  
EXECUTIVE’S 
REPORT

The Waikato hydro system 
with its nine power stations 
makes a crucial contribution 
to New Zealand’s current 
and future energy needs and 
ongoing, secure access to 
water is critical.

This time last year I said that 
2007/2008 would be a time of change.
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Metrix is undergoing a technology and  
business transformation.

Metrix’ core business is about recording 
energy use but we are now moving into 
capturing and analysing that information. 
This new direction opens up the opportunity 
for Metrix to develop and sell more services.

 This transformation is built around smart 
technology. Smart meters record electricity 
consumption by the half hour, transmitting 
readings by radio or cellular signals to  
data aggregators which then relay the 
information back to a centralised data 
management system. We installed 4,000 
radio mesh meters in the Eastern suburbs of 
Auckland last year and continue to evaluate 
their operation.

The ongoing evaluation of these meters 
and communication systems has so far 
confirmed the immediate advantages for 
customers, such as convenience and bill 
accuracy. It has also clearly identified that 
the volume of information collected, along 
with its accuracy, is a valuable resource for 
energy retailers and distributors.

In this financial year an additional 6,000 
smart meters have been deployed as pre-pay 
meters, supporting Mercury Energy’s new 
GLO-BUG product.

Metrix is now committed to replacing all of 
its mechanical meters in Auckland over the 
next three years, a $70 million investment 
involving 300,000 homes. 

Our ability to capture information from  
meters is only half the story. It’s what happens 
to that data that really counts. This investment 
in state-of-the-art metering technology 
has been matched by an investment in data 
processing technology. 

At the same time, Metrix is developing data 
analysis and other skills needed to develop 
new products and services. The potential 
use of this data is significant. What it means 
is that retailers can develop new price plans 
and offer different payment and information 
options. With smart meters providing 48 
readings each day, retailers may also be able 
to offer time-of-use price points – for example 
potentially giving customers seasonal 
specials or off-peak deals, similar to trends 
in other competitive industries.

Metrix believes smart meters will trans-
form both the metering and retail segments 
of the energy sector. But the technology’s 
potential is not confined to electricity. Metrix’ 
leadership position, developed through its 
investment in data processing capabilities, 
makes it a natural partner to other retailers 
in the utilities sector such as water and gas.

As Metrix undergoes its transformation, it 
has continued to run its traditional business 
effectively. In the year under review,  
Metrix undertook 5,000,000 manual  
meter readings with over 50,000 automated 
readings from smart meters taken. 

Metrix believes smart meters will 
transform both the metering and 
retail segments of the energy sector.

REAL  
tRAnsfoRmAtion 

SMART METERING 

(left) Installation of a smart meter.

METERING
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A Smarter Future
The industry is on the verge of a major 
transformation driven by smart metering. 
Mercury Energy is harnessing this new 
technology to create services that will give 
customers more personalised and flexible 
ways to manage their energy use.

Our first smart retail product is GLO-BUG, 
a user-friendly pre-pay solution. GLO-BUG 
is our equivalent of the pre-pay cellphone, 
enabling customers to pay as they use. 

With GLO-BUG, an in-home display  
unit allows customers to monitor their  
consumption in real time. Customers can 
clearly see how much they are spending, 
giving households the ability to closely 
manage their energy budget. As their  
pre-paid credit decreases, the display 
changes colour and sounds a top-up  
alert. Customers can top-up at one of 3,000 
outlets, or by phone using their credit card 
or direct debit. Payments are immediately 
transferred to the meter.

To date we have over 6,000 GLO-BUG  
users in the greater Auckland area. 

Helping Customers Pay
We continue to work with both customers  
and social and budgeting agencies to find 
solutions for customers experiencing 
payment difficulties. For those customers 
using GLO-BUG, the ability to monitor usage 
will help in managing electricity bills.

Last year Mercury Energy also implemented 
improved systems to assist vulnerable 
consumers, in line with the Electricity  
Commission’s guidelines. By the end of  
the reporting period, 0.3 percent of our 
customers were registered and confirmed 
medically dependent.

As part of changing our system for 
vulnerable consumers, we introduced 
new processes to assist customers with 
overdue power bills. These included working 
alongside social agencies to create flexible 
payment plans and installing GLO-BUG. 
These initiatives have significantly  
reduced the number of disconnections  
for non-payment to 736 disconnections for 
the year ended June 2008. 

In the year ahead we will continue to focus 
on giving our customers a competitive price, 
quality service, and bills that are accurate 
and easy to understand.

With GLO-BUG (right), an in-home 
display unit allows customers  
to monitor their consumption in  
real time. 

With the click of a mouse, 
customers can join  
Mercury Energy, arrange 
electricity when they move 
home or business, add 
new services and securely 
access their account and 
billing history.

Delivering a superior customer experience 
continues to be our key focus at Mercury 
Energy. We are committed to providing 
industry-leading service, while also giving 
our customers greater choices around 
products and services, payment options 
and how they interact with us.

Yes, I can help
Mercury Energy’s contact centre and website 
are important in delivering a superior 
customer experience. 

Our contact centre continues to achieve 
year-on-year improvements in performance. 
This year 87 percent of customers had their 
problem solved at their first call – a good  
effort considering we average 2,500 enquiries 
every day.

For the fourth consecutive year, we were a 
winner in the CRM Awards, taking Gold in the 
large Contact Centre category. The awards 
recognise service excellence and attract 
97 competitors in industries ranging from 
banking and telecommunications through 
to retail. In our first year of participation, 
the centre was also a finalist in the TUANZ 
Contact Centre of the Year Award. 

For customers who prefer to access  
information online, the Mercury Energy web-
site offers 24-hour convenience. With a click 
of the mouse, customers can join Mercury 
Energy, arrange electricity when they move 
home or business, add new services and 
securely access their account and billing 
history. Our website has consistently ranked 
highly in the Hitwise Awards in the “Business, 
and Finance - Utility” industry category.

Mercury Energy Speaks Your Language
We recognise that our customers come from 
a diverse range of backgrounds and cultures. 
To assist those for whom English is a second 
language, we have translated key customer 
information and parts of our website into six 
languages, and a translation service catering 
for 25 languages is available through our 
contact centre. 

Making Energy Easy
Customers tell us they want accurate bills, so 
we read our customers’ meters each month. 
This information ensures our customers only 
pay for the energy they use. 

This philosophy also drives our Price 
Plan Rebate – a service which automatically 
checks whether residential customers are on 
the best Mercury Energy plan for their usage 
level. If we find a different Mercury Energy 
plan would have provided better value, we 
move customers to that plan and send them a 
rebate. This year $1.6 million was returned to 
customers through the Price Plan Rebate. 

Fixed price two or three year contracts, 
which give residential customers long term 
pricing certainty for energy budgeting were 
successfully trialed in Wellington, attracting 
over 7,000 new customers to Mercury Energy. 
These contracts are already popular with 
commercial customers, particularly smaller 
businesses, to assist them in managing 
energy costs. 

Simple billing and payment solutions 
are important to our customers, and use 
of Mercury Energy’s Online Bill service 
increased by 33 percent this year. Customers 
appreciate the convenience and environmental 
benefits of receiving their bill via email. 

We’re putting people first.

To assist those for 
whom English is a 
second language, we 
have translated key 
customer information 
and parts of our website 
into six languages, and 
a translation service ca-
tering for 25 languages 
is available through our 
contact centre. 

FIRST CONTACT 

(above) Mercury Energy contact 
centre in action.

RETAIL
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Hydro, geothermal, wind, 
cogeneration – Mighty  
River Power’s portfolio  
of generation assets is  
increasingly diverse and is 
now 90 percent renewable.

That’s a strong position to be in. Our 
significant hydro assets are capable  
of providing up to 15 percent of New 
Zealand’s peak energy needs. Our 
cogeneration asset at Southdown give us 
the flexibility to offset low hydro flows. Both 
are increasingly being complemented by 
other renewable generation sources such 
as geothermal and soon wind, resulting in a 
balanced, productive portfolio.
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In a country where new supply is 
quickly absorbed by growing demand, 
increasing diversity and generation 
capacity is a real benefit.

Hydrogeneration
As reported, generation from our nine power 
stations along the Waikato River was 9 percent 
lower than the prior year, as a result of the 
summer and autumn drought in the Waikato.

Under our consents, we have to manage 
outflows from Lake Taupo to keep lake levels 
within an operating range of 1.4 metres 
(355.85 – 357.25 metres above sea level).  
 At the drought’s peak, lake levels were 
within 14 centimeters of the low point of our 
consented operating range, despite releasing 
only as much water from Taupo as was 
required to meet minimum flow requirements 
at Karapiro.

During April we alerted Environment 
Waikato to the possibility that a continuation 
of the drought until the end of May could 
have led to Lake Taupo being at its minimum 
level and there being insufficient inflows to 
maintain river flows at Karapiro.

The year saw the completion of the $24 
million foundation remediation project at 
the Arapuni dam. The end result was a 
better than planned reduction in seepage 
flows, with Arapuni’s life and engineering 
integrity greatly extended. The ‘Arapuni 
Method’ is now an internationally recognised 
technique for remediation work on dams 
while in continued operation. In 2007 the 
project received a Shell Environmental 
Excellence merit award, and in 2008 it won 
the Electricity Supply Industry Engineering 
Excellence Award for projects over $3 million. 

Geothermal
Total geothermal generation across  
all plants we operate for the year was  
1,159GWh, representing 19 percent of our 
total production (although Mighty River 
Power does not own 100 percent of these  
assets and/or the physical output). 
Availability of 92.8 percent was below last 
years record primarily due to commissioning 
the Mokai extension. As detailed on the 
next page, we continue to make excellent 
progress on bringing geothermal resources 
into production quickly, working in  
partnership with Maori.

MAINTAINING STANDARDS 

(left) Arapuni Power Station in 
operation on the Waikato River.

GENERATION
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A major achievement in our wind 
generation programme was the 
securing of land access agreements 
under a single contract with 17 
different landowners at Puketoi,  
east of Pahiatua. 

Fuel Type Installed  
Capacity  
(MW)

Average  
Generation  
Efficiency (%)1

Plant  
Availability 
(%)

Bioenergy2 9 34.5 90.0

Geothermal2 148 23.9 95.4

Cogeneration 170 43.8 95.0

Hydro 1042 80.0 92.4

¹ The ratio of gross energy going into the plant to net energy leaving.
²  Mighty River Power does not own 100 percent of these assets  
 and/or the physical output.

ENERGY EFFICIENCY (for the year ending 30 June 2008)
Cogeneration
Our gas-fired cogeneration plant remains 
an important part of Mighty River Power’s 
total generation mix. It gives us the flexibility 
to respond when renewable sources cannot 
meet demand, both within our own portfolio 
and across the national market.

 Southdown came into its own during  
last year’s dry conditions. Availability at 95 
percent was an excellent result reflecting a 
great performance by station staff. We were 
able to fully utilise the Southdown capacity 
to help meet demand at a time when hydro 
lake levels were falling across the country, 
generating 1,094GWh compared to 665GWh 
in the prior year. 

Gas
As at 30 June 2008 we held, primarily 
through farm-in arrangements, interests 
in seven onshore and offshore permits. 
Most are in the Taranaki basin, north west 
of the Pohukura field and one is in the 
onshore South Island basin. Capital has 
been committed to upstream options that 
offer attractive development options. Gas 
exploration is important as a sustainable 
domestic supply enables the energy industry 
to avoid importing supplies which would tie 
New Zealand electricity prices to offshore 
fossil fuel prices.

58.2

54.7

66.6
62.7

63.1

57.5

50.5

We have entered into 
conditional arrangements 
with Windflow Technology 
Limited which will, subject 
to consents, build a wind 
farm at Long Gully in  
Wellington on our behalf. 
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Wind 
A major achievement in our wind generation 
programme was the securing of land access 
agreements under a single contract with 
17 different landowners at Puketoi, east of 
Pahiatua. The site, spanning a 35 kilometre 
ridge, has more than 200MW of generation 
potential. Having secured access agree-
ments, Mighty River Power can now move 
to pre-feasibility studies ahead of lodging 
resource consents for this potentially 
significant wind farm. 

Since 2006 we have achieved favourable 
results from a monitoring project at Turitea, 
near Palmerston North. With potential 
generation capacity now confirmed, we have 
secured land access rights for both a wind 
farm with installed capacity of between 
308MW and 360MW, and for the required 
transmission. Within the financial year we 
made good progress towards resource 
consent application for the Turitea project. 
This is potentially one of the best wind  
generation sites in the world. An ecopark 
protecting and enhancing the biodiversity of 
the area is planned by Palmerston North City 
Council as part of the wind farm development.

We have entered into conditional  
arrangements with Windflow Technology 
Limited which will, subject to consents, build 
a small wind farm at Long Gully in Wellington 
on our behalf. Mighty River Power continues 
to monitor a number of potential sites for 
wind generation around New Zealand and is 
actively seeking more for assessment. 

We are also exploring ways to bring 
international scale and expertise to our  
wind projects.

This is in line with our goal to develop some 
500MW of wind generation capacity by 2015.

NEW TECHNOLOGY 

(left) Windflow Technology  
wind turbine.
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REAL  
oPPoRtUnitiEs

It’s a competitive market out 
there at all levels, particularly 
in some specialised fields, 
such as geothermal science 
and engineering. We want the 
best people.

KENDRA BUTLER 

Kendra grew up in Whatawhata. 
After enjoying electronics at  
school she undertook further  
study before working at ABB and 
taking up an apprenticeship with 
Mighty River Power. She is in her 
second year and is thoroughly 
enjoying the challenge.
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on increasingly providing the leadership 
and technical capability to support both the 
continuing development programme as well 
as operating the resulting steamfields and 
power plants. 

Apprenticeship Programme
Mighty River Power’s apprenticeship 
programme recognises that we need to do 
our part to ensure that the industry skill 
pool is increased to support new generation 
development. In order to make a difference 
quickly we have enrolled 20 apprentices per 
year for the first 3 years. This has required 

the support of a large number of businesses 
who are working with us to provide the 
job experience component. The selection 
process is competitive and attracts more 
than 200 applicants each year. 

We are now in the fourth year and are 
looking forward to the first year’s trainees 
emerging in the workplace.

Student and Graduate  
Development Programme
A formal graduate development programme 
operates within the Company. This 
programme was originally focused on 

engineering graduates for our core  
hydro business. However the programme’s 
intake now reflects growing demand in  
the geothermal business for graduates in 
earth sciences, and within Mercury Energy  
for those with commerce, maths and 
analytical qualifications.

We also offer summer internships for 
university students, with 10 students taken  
on board this financial year.

Workplace Survey
This year the Company again commissioned 
an independent professional organisation 
to conduct a workplace survey. This is used 
to correlate other formal and informal 
information. As always it has confirmed some 
views but also delivered some worthwhile 
new perspectives. 

Taking Care of our People
It goes without saying that health and safety 
are an absolute priority in our business. 

Each operational workplace has its own 
health and safety committee through which 
management and our people work together  
to monitor, implement, manage and report  
on health and safety programmes and  
their effectiveness. 

In higher risk construction projects a 
comprehensive site specific health and  
safety plan and management structure is 
developed. These plans are consistent with 
Mighty River Power’s health and safety 
policies and are tailored to address site 
specific risks – which are generally not 
present in the rest of the business. These 
health and safety plans are embedded into 
contract structures and require a full 
commitment by the contractor and the 
Company to achieve the desired results.  
Reporting associated with these plans is an 
integral part of project and Mighty River 
Power governance.

Mighty River Power is an accredited  

It’s our policy to hire,  
develop and motivate skilled 
individuals with high levels 
of commitment, teamwork 
and ethical behaviour. 

It’s a competitive market out there at all 
levels, particularly in some specialised fields, 
such as geothermal science and engineering. 
We want the best people. That’s why we 
concentrate on what’s important to them – 
offering development opportunities, good 
working conditions and acknowledging that 
family life is important. 

It’s our policy to hire, develop and motivate 
skilled individuals with high levels of  
commitment, teamwork and ethical behaviour.

Because we are a commercial company 
operating in a very competitive market, 
much of the learning and development 
needs to occur on the job. This requires our 
managers to lead by example, and to identify 
and offer learning opportunities. However 
offering opportunities on its own does not 
guarantee success. It must be complemented 
by a performance accountability culture 
which ensures translation to improved 
Company performance. 

All employees are entitled to receive 
regular performance reviews. 

In addition to internal staff development, 
skill shortages in the industry as a whole  
have lead to the Company sponsoring  
an ongoing apprenticeship programme 
with up to 20 young people being selected 
each year. While the selection process is 
competitive, a significant proportion of the 
participants are directly or indirectly related 
to our iwi partners.

Development Programmes
While much of the development activity is 
achieved on the job this is complemented by 
some external programmes.

At the grass-roots level, we offer  
NZQA programmes to employees with 
the potential to move into their first team 
leadership role. We currently have employees 
undertaking the National Certificate of First 
Line Management.

At a higher level, the Developing Future 
Leaders programme focuses on equipping 
people with the skills needed to step into 
more senior management roles. 

We currently have eight employees working 
towards post graduate management diplomas 
and Masters degrees in business studies.

A critical success factor in the development 
of our people is the capability of our team 
leaders and managers to develop those 
reporting to them. Accordingly we have 
initiated a programme aimed at transitioning 

from supervision to coaching. This was  
attended by 40 managers this year and a 
second phase of the programme is currently 
under development.

As Mighty River Power’s geothermal 
capabilities expand, particular attention is 
being paid to developing future managers for 
this specialised operation. 

Geothermal skills are in very short supply 
in New Zealand. Accordingly we have initially 
needed to recruit internationally in order 
to build the organisational competence to 
support our growth plans. We are focused 

Our performance is significantly  
dependent on how well we manage our 
people, and how well they develop.

As Mighty River Power’s geothermal 
capabilities expand, particular 
attention is being paid to  
developing future managers for  
this specialised operation.

KARL SPINKS  
Geothermal Geologist

Karl Spinks started at Mighty River 
Power in 2005 as a geothermal 
geologist in the geoscience team 
based in Hamilton, following com-
pletion of his BSc (Hons) and PhD 
degrees in Geology from University 
of Canterbury. Karl has worked on a 
variety of geoscience topics across 
all of our geothermal fields and was 
instrumental in setting up Mighty 
River Power’s geothermal research 
and development program. 
This year Mighty River Power 
sponsored Karl to begin his MBA 
at Waikato University.

FINISHING TOUCHES 

(right) Contractors working  
on the Kawerau Geothermal 
Power Station.

PEOPLE
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Injuries   

(Includes lost time medical treatment,  
and minor (first-aid level) injuries)

Employees  
(excl meter readers)

10

Meter Readers 37

Generation Contractors 46

Occupational diseases 0

Fatalities 0

Lost days due to injury1

Employees  
(excl meter readers)

2

Meter Readers 12

Generation Contractors 5

Lost time accidents frequency2

Employees  
(excl meter readers)

0.15

Meter Readers 7.43

Generation Contractors 0.56

Absenteeism3 1.32%

1  Begins day of injury, includes
  scheduled work days only
2 Per 100,000 hours worked
3 Sick leave days divided  
 by total hours worked

employer with ACC. We manage our own 
claims on behalf of ACC in conjunction with 
our advisors WellNZ. The ACC HabitAtWork 
programme is used to help staff avoid injuries 
relating to occupational overuse syndrome, 
while medical referrals and employee  
assistance programmes are provided to 
anyone dealing with the condition. The 
Company also maintains a programme to 
monitor the health of current and former 
employees who think they may have been 
exposed to asbestos while working with us  
or our predecessor companies. 

We take a holistic view of health. For 
example, we provide employees with up to 
five extra days called MyDays to be used 
individually at their discretion during the year. 
This leave recognises that people need to 
attend to personal matters without having  
it impinge on their annual leave. 

 All permanent Mighty River Power 
employees are eligible for Company funded 
life and income protection insurance, as well 
as access to Company discounts for private 
health insurance. 

The Company has also encouraged 
employees to take advantage of retirement 
savings opportunities through KiwiSaver, 
providing all employees with a 2 percent 
superannuation allowance on gross taxable 
earnings. We voluntarily paid the employer 
contribution at a higher level and ahead of 
its compulsory introduction in April 2008. 
As at 30 June, 51 percent of employees have 
enrolled in KiwiSaver. 

First Foundation Scholarship
Through Mercury Energy, Mighty River 
Power has committed to an inaugural First 
Foundation Scholarship. The Foundation 
provides scholarships to students from 
low decile schools whose opportunities for 
tertiary education may be limited by their 
financial circumstances.

The scholarship model is one of a “hand 
up”, not a “hand out”. Students in their final 
year of school engage in a four year scheme 
in which they are partnered with a company 
which provides each student with part-time 
work. Students commit to saving $1,200 a 
year from their job with their partnering  
organisation, which also contributes an 
agreed amount to help meet the student’s 
tertiary fees. Students are supported by 
mentors and their progress is monitored  
by the Foundation.

Employee Remuneration
During the reporting year, the Chief 
Executive’s remuneration was $950,240 
which included base salary, a performance 
bonus for 2006/2007 and a retention  
payment. The number of employees 
(including employees who left during the 
financial year) of Mighty River Power Limited 
and its subsidiaries, not being Directors or 
Chief Executive, who received remuneration 
and other benefits in excess of $100,000 were: 

Staff Turnover %

Voluntary 17.4

Involuntary 8.5

Total 25.9

We provide employees with five extra 
days called My Days to use at their 
discretion during the year. 

Remuneration Bands Number

$100,001 - $110,000 36

$110,001 - $120,000 17

$120,001 - $130,000 10

$130,001 - $140,000 12

$140,001 - $150,000 8

$150,001 - $160,000 5

$160,001 - $170,000 3

$170,001 - $180,000 6

$180,001 - $190,000 3

$200,001 - $210,000 2

$210,001 - $220,000 5

$220,001 - $230,000 1

$251,000 - $260,000 4

$351,001 - $360,000 1

$360,001 - $370,000 1

$370,001 - $380,000 1

$380,001 - $390,000 2

$400,001 - $410,000 2

Ethnicity1 %

NZ European 46

New Zealander 13

Other European 9

Indian 7

Maori 6

Chinese 4

Samoan 4

Other2 11
1 Data available for 512  
 employees only
2 Includes 11 other 
 identified ethnicities

Gender %

Male 61

Female 39

Region %

Auckland 63

Waikato 27

Central Plateau 8

Other 2

Type %

Full time 82

Fixed 4

Part time 11

Casual 3

Age Group %

20 1

20–29 25

30–39 30

40–49 26

50–59 15

60+ 3

Total employee numbers: 752

MIGHTY RIVER POWER EMPLOYEE PROFILE

HEALTH AND SAFETY
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REAL  
REsPonsiBiLitY

Our business has always been about long 
term sustainability. The logic is straight 
forward. If we do not manage resources 
responsibly, we lose the right to use them.  
If we lose that right, we will have no business. 

Security of electricity supply is crucial for 
the sustainability of New Zealand’s economic 
performance, but the expectation of New 
Zealanders increasingly is that this security 
shouldn’t involve unacceptable environmental 
trade-offs. 

Sustainable, renewable geothermal 
generation will make an increasingly 
significant contribution to energy security. 
Its development also creates value for our 
shareholder and our partners and, in a wider 
sense, the communities in which our plants 
are sited. 

In 2008, 87 percent of our emissions were 
from our cogeneration production. Emissions 
intensity for our geothermal plants is less 
than 25 percent of the emissions intensity 
for our plant at Southdown and many of the 
emissions would have occurred naturally. 
Nevertheless they are included in the table 
on this page. Our bioenergy plants do create 
emissions but generation fuelled by biomass 
converts methane to carbon dioxide in the 
process and results in a reduction in the 
intensity of emissions, and this is why these 
emissions are not required to be reported 
in the same way as other GHGs. We are 
committed to reducing emissions through 
our investment in new renewable generation. 
Geothermal in particular has a key role in 
addressing climate change as it is the only 
form of renewable energy that is not weather 
dependent and can therefore displace or defer 
the need for new thermal generation plant.

We are also helping our customers con-
serve energy and are reducing our internal 

footprint. We have been supportive of the 
establishment of a market for carbon credits 
to be traded, and during the year in review 
worked closely with officials, regulators and 
other prospective ETS participants on the 
detail of how this can work in practice.

Climate Change
Our low-carbon portfolio 
In New Zealand, we are fortunate in that a 
very high percentage of electricity generated 
is from renewable fuel sources, mainly 
hydro. Nearly 90 percent of Mighty River 
Power’s generation capacity uses renewable 
sources (hydro and geothermal).
However, in years of poor hydrology, like the 
one under review, thermal generation plays 
a key role in security of supply. Our reduced 
hydro production as a result of the drought 
was largely offset by increased  
production from our cogeneration plant. 

In the future, we believe natural gas with 
its lower carbon and higher conversion 
efficiency than oil and coal, will continue to 
play this important role in security of supply. 

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

C02 Tonnes

Direct1 591,153

Indirect2  1,603

Total 592,756

1 Includes emissions from the production of electricity from 
 all plant (including those where we hold minority equity 
 share). Excludes emissions from bioenergy production,  
 all construction and drilling projects. 
2 Includes internal electricity consumption, employee air   
 travel, car rental, mileage and taxi usage, but excludes 
 waste disposal and paper usage. 

Mighty River Power generates  
and retails electricity that  
comes from a diverse range  
of fuels, with a focus on  
renewable resources.

ENVIRONMENT
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Environmental Management Systems
Because our generation business is based 
on generating electricity from natural 
resources, our environmental management 
system (EMS) is central to the way we do 
business. Our EMS is based on strong 
environmental stewardship and we are proud 
of our track record in this area. All parts of 
our business hold Enviro-Mark diamond 
status, an exacting environmental  
management standard. 

Compliance
Our licence to operate is very much driven  
by our ability to work within regulatory 
requirements. Our generation activities  
all operate under resource consents.  
For the year in review all our operations 
achieved a very high level of compliance with 
the conditions required by these consents. 
Where there was non-compliance it  
was of a minor nature and there were  
no enforcement actions by regulatory 
authorities.

Responsible Water Management
As a resource, water is attracting increasing 
attention as central and local government 
attempt to balance environmental and 
economic needs. The more intensive use 
of land for agriculture, for example, means 
increasing demands are being placed on the 
limited resources available.

With Mighty River Power’s Waikato hydro 
scheme being an important generating asset, 
the Company has a particular interest in 
Environment Waikato’s proposed variation to 
its regional plan. This aims to deal with the 
complex issue of water allocation across  
the region. 

Mighty River Power acknowledges, 
of course, that we are not the only party 
interested in the river as a resource. The 
variation has to make provision for human 
domestic needs, stock drinking water, other 
existing consents and their renewals, and 
reserve some volumes of water for the 

foreseeable growth in demand from current 
municipal and stock water needs. We fully 
accept that these provisions are necessary, 
but would be concerned if allocation of flows 
in the river above Karapiro significantly 
affected the operation of the existing Waikato 
hydro system, given the importance of hydro 
generation in New Zealand’s energy mix.

Managing Geothermal Resources
Geothermal generation uses the steam  
from natural underground geothermal 
systems to create electricity. During the 
12 months under review, an average of 
44,400 tonnes of geothermal fluid a day was 
extracted from production wells drilled  
2–3kms deep into the ground at the Mokai 

and Rotokawa fields to capture the high 
pressure steam. Other than small losses of 
non-condensable gases, all this geothermal 
fluid is then reinjected into a remote part of 
the reservoir through purpose-built  
reinjection wells up to 3kms in depth. 

Biodiversity
Mighty River Power has responsibility for 
landholdings and operations in areas of 
environmental value. It is important to us 
that we manage potential impacts from our 
activities on the biodiversity of these areas. 

Of particular importance is the ecology  
of the Waikato River system. We operate 
under monitoring principles which define 
ecological indicators and set trigger limits 
for when further action would be required. 
Indicators include wetland bird populations, 
wetland areas and submerged macrophytes. 
These are monitored as part of our Taupo – 
Waikato Monitoring Programme. 

We aim to conserve and enhance biodiver-
sity by contributing to positive environmental 
programmes. We are the main funding 
agent for the Waikato Catchment Ecological 
Enhancement Trust. The Trust fosters and 
enhances the sustainable management of the 
ecological resources in the Lake Taupo and 
Waikato River catchments.

During the year the Trust funded projects 
in the Kapenga Wetland, Taahunaatara 
Reserve, Pukawa Bush, Lake Serpentine, 
Waiotaka Scenic Reserve, Waimarino 
Recreation Reserve, Moerangi Wetland, 
Hopuhopu Regional Park, Tongariro River 
scrublands and the Lake Mangakaware 
Recreation Reserve.

Mighty River Power is also a Kauri 
sponsor of Waikato RiverCare which is 

establishing native plants on the banks of 
the lower Waikato River. We also support the 
Maungatautari Ecological Island Trust,  
as detailed in the partnerships section of 
this report.

Making a Difference
 Our G-Force environmental team is focused 
on reducing our own internal carbon footprint. 
Galvanising our recycling activities has been 
one area of focus for the team. This includes 
the recycling of green waste to worm farms 
and materials such as glass and plastic.

G-Force continues to investigate our own 
electricity consumption. Projects this year 
include assessing heat pump technology for 
water heating and the use of a ground source 
heat pump for air conditioning. Ground 
source heat pumps use a buried ground loop 
which draws available heat from the ground.

The G-Force activities reach out into 
our communities. Highlights during the 
year included the Te Mara Hauora project 
at Ellerslie School where 513 trees were 
planted by pupils on World Environment Day. 
This project is establishing a native bush 
reserve at the school along with an outdoor 
environmental classroom. The school, which 
has a native tree nursery and worm farm 
developed by us, can propagate around 2,000 
trees a year. Each year we sponsor children 
from the school to plant around 1,500 trees in 
parks and on private land at risk of erosion. 

Mighty River Power supports 12 worm 
farms at schools and we even have one of  
our own.

Our cogeneration plant at  
Southdown (above) is one of the 
largest users of water in Auckland. 
Up to 3,700 m3 of water can be drawn 
from the City’s municipal supplies 
each day – although on average 
we take around 2,050 m3 per day. 
Approximately 26 percent of the 
water used at Southdown goes into 
the steam cycle and is used nine 
times in the electricity production 
process before being exhausted 
into the gas turbines to control 
emissions. The remaining 74 percent 
goes to the cooling tower where the 
majority is evaporated with about 7 
percent going to waste water that is 
treated at the City’s waste treatment 
plant. During the year under review, 
the introduction of a new Reverse 
Osmosis Plant has seen a reduction 
in the amount of water required to 
produce each unit of electricity as 
well as a reduction in the chemicals 
used in the water treatment process.

As a resource, water is attracting 
increasing attention as central and 
local government attempt to balance 
environmental and economic needs.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION

GJ

Gas 9,875,207

Petrol1 3,523

Diesel1 140,194

Electricity2 360,667

1 Includes contractor use
2 Includes plant own consumption

WAIKATO HYDRO SPILL

Energy Lost 2008 GWh 2007 GWh

Tourism1 11 11

Other2 0.9 2

1 Mighty River Power has a regulatory requirement to  
 schedule daily releases down the Aratiatia Rapids for  
 Tourism purposes.
2  Other includes transmission constraint, cost  
 and obstruction , plant malfunction, planned or unplanned  
 outages and hydraulic constraint. 

We are committed to reducing 
emissions through our investment  
in new renewable generation.  

Plant Consents  
& conditions

Compliance Rating3 Non-compliance events

Waikato Hydro 
System

22 consents, 
Over 150 conditions

High • 2 minor oil spills1

• Flow2

Southdown  
Cogeneration

6 consents High • Minor emissions breaches due to 
 station start-up
• Stormwater sample collection  
 methodology
• Finalisation of the environmental  
 management plan

Mokai Geothermal 22 consents High • Delay in finalising update  
 to reservoir model
• Delay in updating bond

Rotokawa  
Geothermal

16 consents High • Delay in supply of some reports /  
 information / data within  
 time frames

Kawerau  
Geothermal

9 consents High • None

Bioenergy plants 3 consents High •	 None

1 
Both events were identified by Environment Waikato as low priority non-compliances as Mighty River Power acted  

 immediately to contain and manage the event with no adverse environmental effects identified. 
2 

Flows – Required minimum station discharge not maintained for short durations - no adverse environmental effects.
3
 As assessed by the relevant regulatory authority.

GREEN FINGERS 

(right) School planting project 
helps beat erosion.
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REAL  
commitmEnt

GROUNDBREAKING 

Bill Galvin (right) of Tauhara North 
No.2 greets Ginjino Yanai (left) from 
Fuji Electric Corporation at the 
ceremony for ground breaking at 
Nga Awa Purua,

PARTNERSHIPS
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travelled together, tracing the history of 
Tainui and the river and reconnecting with it 
in both a spiritual and physical sense.

Workshops focused on environmental 
and cultural learnings were held at marae 
throughout the journey which began at 
Karapiro and ended at Port Waikato.

Mighty River Power also contributed 
to Tainui’s celebration of 150 years of 
kingitanga and provided ongoing support to 
the Secondary Schools Kapa Haka Festival, 
hosted by Tainui in early 2008.

During the year, Mighty River Power 
supported the National Maori Sports Awards, 
the South Waikato Sports Awards, and Iwi 
Sports Awards, including Tuwharetoa, Tainui 
and Mataatua. 

The 2007 National Maori Sports Awards 
again bought together a hugely talented 
group of New Zealand men and women, and 
recognised them for their achievements and 
for the positive role modelling they provide 
for younger generations. We also sponsored 
the Junior Maori Sportsman of the year 
award, won by the outstanding young rugby 
player Zac Guildford, from Hawkes Bay. 

Education and Community
Mighty River Waikato,  
from Hinaki to Hydro Power

Mighty River Power’s sponsorship of 
“Mighty River Waikato, from Hinaki to Hydro 
Power” at the Waikato Museum has enabled 
the cultural and historical power of the river 
to be showcased to the region and its visitors.

The exhibition opened in October 2007, 
and has had a hugely positive response from 
the Waikato public, with schools taking a 
particular interest. The exhibition has been 
viewed by nearly 10,000 people in its first  
nine months. 

In addition to sponsoring the exhibition, 
Mighty River Power has provided the 
exhibition with two pieces of equipment – a 
signalling telegraph and a synchronising 
tree – which were used in the early days of 
power generation when dams were manually 
operated. Prior to computer technology and 
automation, the signalling telegraph was 
used to direct the starting up or shutting 
down of a generator and the synchronising 
tree allowed the operator to manually 
transfer power from the generators to the 
national grid.

The exhibition is refreshed with new 
information and displays every 6 – 9 months, 
with the first refresh scheduled for comple-
tion in late July 2008. We are also looking at 
options to move the exhibition to other areas.

Turning Bills into Books
Towards the end of the financial year, 
Mercury Energy launched a further initiative 
enabling customers to support good causes 
through their power bills. Customers who 
opt to receive their accounts by email, rather 
than mail, can nominate a local school to 
receive books for their library. Funds saved 
by eliminating postage and paper costs with 
e-billing will support the library initiative.

Mercury Energy continued to support a 
range of community causes, including worm 
farms in schools, Christmas in the Park, the 
Starlight Symphony concerts and the Mercury 
Energy Pohutukawa Festival in Coromandel.

Environmental
Maungatautari Ecological Island Trust

The Maungatautari Ecological Island 
Trust, of which we are a foundation sponsor, 
is developing a strong reputation as a tourist 
attraction in the Waipa district and visitor 
numbers have been increasing.

We are supporting a substantial public 
information effort about Maungatautari 
Mountain, with signs explaining the unique 
natural environment, the native wildlife 
treasures it holds and the ongoing work 
of Maungatautari Ecological Island Trust. 
The signage will help spread key messages 
about protection and maintenance of the 
pest free zone, and will help visitors keep up 
with introductions of new walking tracks and 
wildlife attractions. 

The Trust continues to develop the  
mountain area and introduce new 

endangered species to the pest free 
enclosure. In the 12 months to July 2008 a 
new walking track – the Nikau Track – was 
opened within the Southern Enclosure. A kiwi 
chick hatched on Maungatautari for the first 
time in 100 years, and another five kaka were 
introduced into the aviary. 

Waikato River Trails 
Mighty River Power continues to actively 
support the development of walking trails 
along the Waikato River. 

The year saw the completion of the seventh 
track, the Ongaroto Bluff trail, opened in 
March 2008. Work continues on the Lake 
Maraetai and Lake Waipapa trails. The 
planning and consultation phases for the 
Upper Lake Karapiro tracks continue, with a 

view to having 100km of trails from Taupo to 
Karapiro completed in time for the Rowing 
World Championships in November 2010. 

Mighty River Power support has also 
helped the development of a new River Trails 
website. The website provides maps and 
information for walkers and cyclists,  
updates on new tracks, and information 
about getting involved in supporting River 
Trails projects. The website is helping to 
successfully build public awareness of the 
River Trails as a fantastic resource and 
tourist attraction in the South Waikato.

A kiwi chick hatched on 
Maungatautari for the first 
time in 100 years, and  
another five kaka were  
introduced into the aviary. 

Mighty River Power is in the business of 
generating and selling energy – electricity 
and gas. As we go about it, we interact with 
many different stakeholders – our employees, 
customers, suppliers, Maori as landowners 
and guardians of environmental resources, 
neighbours near generation sites, groups who 
use rivers and lakes for sport, recreation and 
water supplies, regulators, policymakers, 
politicians, local bodies and consumers.

The fact that New Zealand needs a constant 

supply of energy doesn’t automatically give 
us the right to be in business. We recognise 
this. We take care to engage with all of our 
stakeholders in the way most appropriate  
for them.

We aim to have our operations strengthen 
local economic growth through investment, 
employment, and through supporting 
local businesses when we buy goods and 
services. We focus on supporting community 
programmes and initiatives that protect the 
environment and develop the community. 

We place importance on building strong 
relationships with the people and communities 
in which we operate. We depend on their 
goodwill and trust to sustain our ability to 
access and use resources, and ultimately, to 
sustain our business. 

Maori Partnerships
Our Maori partnerships are fundamental 
to the way we do business. Mighty River 
Power depends on a range of natural 
resources as fuel sources and Maori are 
involved as landowners and guardians of 
them. For example, iwi have been recognised 
as having special kaitiakitanga interests  
in the Waikato River.

From the beginning, we have stressed the 
importance of building strong, balanced, 
long term and mutually beneficial working 
relationships. That means recognising 
and respecting our partners‘ values and 
viewpoints and working towards a common 
understanding of what is important. Actions 
also speak louder than words, so we have a 
real commitment to demonstrating that we 
are responsible users of resources  
entrusted to us. 

Our partnerships are not simply about who 
owns a resource or access to it and who uses 
it. Instead there is a clear commitment that 
we will work with stakeholders on initiatives 
that are important to them. Most often 
these support education, employment, arts 
and culture, the environment, leadership 
development and the preservation and 
communication of Maori heritage.

Throughout the year the Ngati Tuwharetoa 
and Mighty River Power Development Group 
supported a range of initiatives in line with 
our commitment to advance educational, 
cultural and leadership development. Among 
the projects supported were the Tuwharetoa 
Festival, oral history projects and 10 
Tuwharetoa scholarships for excellence. 
The group was pleased to acknowledge and 
reward sporting and cultural achievements 
by Tuwharetoa. This included support for 
Taupo-nui-a-Tia College in acquiring a waka 
and support for the Hei Ara Kokiri youth 
development course.

As part of our partnership with Waikato 
Tainui, we supported Waikato Tainui’s Te Tira 
Hoe o Waikato 2008 river trip as a flagship 
initiative for the year. Te Tira Hoe celebrated 
Tainui’s relationship with the Waikato River 
and was designed to develop participants’ 
knowledge and understanding of issues 
relating to it.

The four day trip in double-hulled waka 
involved 100 participants selected from 67 
Tainui marae. Young leaders and elders 

We focus on supporting community 
programmes and initiatives that  
protect the environment and develop 
the community. 

Mighty River Power’s  
sponsorship of “Mighty  
River Waikato, from Hinaki  
to Hydro Power” (above) at 
the Waikato Museum has 
enabled the cultural and 
historical power of the river 
to be showcased to the region 
and its visitors.

PARTNERSHIPS
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STAKEHOLDER GROUP ENGAGEMENT MECHANISMS KEY TOPICS AND ISSUES RAISED MIGHTY RIVER POWER’S DELIVERY

EMPLOYEES Employee survey

Intranet

Newsletters

Direct engagement on topics  
of interest or impact

Staff social and community activities

Work / Life Balance

Competitive pay and benefits

Working for a responsible employer

Training and personal development

Additional leave allowances

Health and Life insurance benefits

Market based remuneration

Development support

Health and Safety programme

G-Force employee environmental initiative

Development of Business Principles

CUSTOMERS Customer surveys 

Customer newsletters

Everyday contact through the call centre 

Business account management teams

www.mercury.co.nz

Competitive price

Trouble free service

Accurate and easy to understand bills

Price Plan Rebate

Increased payment options including bill 
smoothing and prepay

Continued in-house call centre excellence

Monthly meter reading

GLO-BUG

BUSINESS PARTNERS 
AND SUPPLIERS

Contractual arrangements

Operational discussions

Clear communication of expectations Development of a sustainable  
procurement policy

SHAREHOLDER Regular briefings with Ministers  
and officials

Security of supply

Corporate Responsibility 

Shareholder value

Development of Business Principles

Regular reporting including SCI, Business 
Plan and Annual Report

‘No surprises’ and other consultation  
as required

REGULATORS Submissions on sector regulations and 
policy

Participation in forums

Development of industry frameworks

Generation capability in New Zealand’s 
energy portfolio 

Participation in working groups, 
conferences and other key forums 

Responding to identified requirements

COMMUNITIES WHERE 
WE BUILD AND OPERATE 
POWER STATIONS

Community forums/open days 

Regular meetings with interested parties

Stakeholder newsletters

Stakeholder briefings

Participation in working groups and forums

Sponsorships and community projects

Consultation 

Taupo foreshore

Lake and river hydrology

Access to land surrounding power stations

Other environmental impacts of Mighty 
River Power’s operations

Growing community knowledge through 
quality science

Exploration of options to provide long term 
community access

Waikato Catchment Ecological  
Enhancement Trust

Participation in Environment Waikato’s 
Project Watershed

IWI Regular formal hui and informal contact

Partnership committees

Consultation 

Recognition of kaitiakitanga status

Environmental impacts of operations

Geothermal activities

Maintaining and building partnerships with 
Maori landowners and business partners

GENERAL PUBLIC Media releases

Advertising

www.mightyriverpower.co.nz

All aspects of Mighty River Power’s  
activities

Result announcements

Responses to media enquiries

Every year, we talk to a lot of 
people. Here’s who our main 
stakeholders are, how we talk 
to them, their issues and what 
happened next.

WHO AND HOW?

Supporting Children’s Health
Mercury Energy has been an official  
sponsor of the Starship Foundation since 
2002. Through the Star Supporters Club, 
launched in 2004, we work with customers 
to raise funds for New Zealand’s leading 
children’s hospital.

The Star Supporters Club enables 
customers to make regular donations to the 
Starship Foundation through their Mercury 
Energy power bill. All of the funds raised 
are put directly towards a range of essential 
equipment for the hospital. 

In November the Star Supporters Club was 
able to purchase a $380,000 Stealth Station. 
This is an image guided surgical system that 
allows surgeons to navigate through the brain 
using computer generated three dimensional 
images. The Stealth Station means shorter 
operating times, better results and faster 
recoveries for young patients.

The Stealth Station also includes new 
technology that creates an electromagnetic 
field around the patient’s head. This 
means image guided brain surgery can be 
performed without attaching a cranium 
frame to children’s heads. Doing away with 
the cranium frame means young children and 
babies, whose bones are too soft to support 
the frame, can now benefit from image 
guided surgery.

The Club also raised $165,000 to  
purchase a mobile ear clinic for Starship. 
Early diagnosis of hearing and other ear 
problems can also prevent ongoing  
difficulties, especially with learning, but poor 
access to the services required to provide 
early diagnosis of ear disease is a significant 
issue in some communities. 

The introduction of a new mobile ear 
clinic will increase the number of children 
who are diagnosed, treated and monitored 
by over 2,000. The new Ear Clinic will be 
purpose built to provide a community based 
service focused on diagnosis, management, 
treatment, health promotion, and prevention 
of ear disease.  A major goal of the clinic is 
to work with the whole family as well as the 
child to prevent recurrent ear problems.

Sport
Rowing NZ
With 2008 being an Olympics year, the  
Mighty River Power High Performance 
Centre has been in high demand.  The centre 
has supported athletes in reaching their peak 
performance in the lead up to the Beijing 
Olympic Games, and of course for the Games 
themselves.   We are extremely proud of the 
success of our rowers, who delivered huge 
performances, securing New Zealand’s 
first medals at the Beijing Olympics – Gold 
for Caroline and Georgina Evers-Swindell, 
Bronze for Mahe Drysdale and Bronze for 
Nathan Twaddle and George Bridgewater.  
The High Performance Centre will of course 
again be in high demand in the lead up to the 
Rowing World Championships.

Planning for the Rowing World 
Championships 2010, which will be hosted  
at Lake Karapiro, is also well underway. 
Mighty River Power is actively involved in the 
planning and is working with the organising 
body to deliver a world class event in 
November 2010. 

Organisation Actioned  
Water  
Releases

Action Events & Promotions 2

Allens United Drainage & 
Earthworks Ltd

5

Auckland University of 
Technology

4

Australian Pro Wakeboard Tour 2

Boathouse 8 Events Ltd 2

BOP Tournament Waterski Assn 2

Eastern Fish & Game 3

Hukafalls Jet 5

Ironman NZ Ltd 1

Karapiro Rowing Inc 18

Land Information NZ 3

Nga Kaihoe o Aotearoa 6

New Zealand Grand Prix 
Hydroplane Drivers Club

2

NZ Police Dive Squad 2

NZ Water Ski Racing Association 2

Piarere Water Ski Club 2

Rapids Jet 11

Rowing NZ 5

Taupo Half Ltd 1

Taupo District Council 1

Waikato & Bay of Plenty Regions 
NZ Tournament Water Ski 
Association 

7

Waipa District Council 1

Waikato Tainui 1

Waikato Rowing Club 1

Total 89

WAIKATO WATER RELEASE 

The Company accommodates a number of 
requests from community and recreational 
organisations for special lake levels or water 
flows. These often represent lost income for 
the Company, but benefit for the community. 
In the last financial year Mighty River Power 
actioned the releases (below), despite the 
difficulties imposed by the drought:
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CAROLE DURBIN (Chair)  
BCom, LLB (Hons),  
FlnstD, FAMINZ

Carole Durbin is the Chair  
of Mighty River Power. She was 
formerly the Deputy Chair of the 
Board and was a member of the 
original establishment group for 
the Company. She is a Fellow of the 
Institute of Directors, Chair of the 
Legal Services Agency, a Director 
and Trustee of the Southern Cross 
Healthcare Group, a Director 
of Fidelity Life Assurance and a 
Commissioner on the Board of 
the Earthquake Commission. 
Carole is a former partner of law 
firm Simpson Grierson.

JOHN BAIRD (Deputy Chair)  
BSc, BA, MA (Hons), Rhodes 
Scholar, Dip Marketing (UK)

John Baird, Deputy Chair, 
joined the Board of Mighty River 
Power in May 2004. He is a 
member of the Waitangi Tribunal, 
a Director of Motion Industries 
and Sleepyhead, and a trustee  
of the Foundation for  
Youth Development.

John has been Managing 
Director of several consumer 
products businesses.

SANDY MAIER 
JD, BA

Sandy (Samford) Maier is 
the Chairman of the Human 
Resources Committee.  
He worked in international 
commercial and investment 
banking with Citicorp/Citibank 
for 15 years in various manage-
ment positions in the Caribbean, 
South America and Australasia. 
He has served on the Board of 
Bank of New Zealand and as 
the Statutory Manager of DFC 
New Zealand. He has his own 
consulting firm specialising 
in corporate strategy and 
governance, and financial and 
human resource issues. He has 
served as Chief Executive and 
Board member of a number 
of companies, and has been a 
director of Mighty River Power 
since April 2002.

TANIA SIMPSON
BA, MMM 

Tania Simpson was appointed 
a director of Mighty River Power 
in November 2001 and is the 
founding Director of Maori policy 
adviser, Kowhai Consulting. 
She is of Ngati Maniapoto and 
Ngati Manu descent and lives in 
the Maniapoto district. She has 
previously held management 
positions in Housing Corporation, 
Ministry of Maori Development 
and Office of Treaty Settlements 
and has worked on social policy, 
economic development and 
Treaty-related matters. Tania 
is a member of the Ruapehu, 
Rangitikei, Whanganui Regional 
Partnership Tourism Board. 
Tania is also a member of the 
Waitangi Tribunal.

NEIL RANFORD
Dip Tchg, BSc, BE (Hons)

Neil Ranford was appointed a 
Director of Mighty River Power 
in November 2006. He brings 
with him extensive general 
management experience in the 
construction industry. Neil has 
an engineering background and 
has previously held senior roles 
at Fletcher Challenge and as 
CEO of Mainzeal Property and 
Construction Limited. Neil is  
a Director of Waitakere 
Properties Limited and of  
Roses Alterations Limited.

SIR PAUL REEVES
ONZ, GCMG, GCVO,  
QSO, KST.J, MA, LTh

Sir Paul Reeves was appointed 
a Director of Mighty River Power 
in November 2006. This follows 
his position as the foundation 
Chair of the Bioethics Council 
and Chair of the Queen Elizabeth 
II National Trust.  Sir Paul is a 
trustee of the Wellington Tenths 
Trust (a Maori landholding trust), 
Chair of the Hui Taumata Trust 
and chancellor of the Auckland 
University of Technology. He 
was the special representative 
of the Commonwealth Secretary 
General to Guyana 2002/2006 
and presently holds a similar 
position with regard to Fiji. Sir 
Paul belongs to the Puketapu 
hapu of Te Atiawa.  He was the 
Anglican Archbishop of New 
Zealand when he was appointed 
Governor General in 1985.

DIANA CROSSAN
BA 

Diana Crossan was appointed 
as a Director of Mighty River 
Power in November 2007. 
Diana is Chair of Whai Rawa 
Management Limited, Orangi 
Kaupapa Trust and New Zealand 
Institute of Research on Ageing 
at Victoria University, and a  
Board Member of Refugee 
Services. Diana holds the  
position of Retirement 
Commissioner and has  
previously held management 
positions at the State Services 
Commission, AMP, Contact 
Energy, Department of Justice 
and Ministry of Education.

DR GRAHAM HILL
PhD, MA, BSc 

Dr Graham Hill was appointed 
as a Director of Mighty River 
Power in December 2007.  
Graham is an astronomer and 
astrophysicist currently lecturing 
in astronomy at the University of 
Auckland. He is a Board Member 
of the National Institute for Water 
and Atmosphere (NIWA).

TREVOR JANES 
BCA (Econ), CA, FCFIP, FinstD

Trevor Janes is the Chair of 
the Risk Assurance and Audit 
Committee. He was appointed 
to the Board in June 2005. 
Trevor is an investment 
banker and financial analyst. 
He is the Chairman of Trinity 
Hill, a Hawkes Bay based 
winery, Deputy Chair of Abano 
Healthcare, and a Director 
of ProCare Health Limited, 
Salvus Strategic Investments 
Limited and the Sapphire 
Currency Fund Limited. He 
also sits on the Investment 
Committee of the Board of 
the Accident Compensation 
Corporation. Trevor is a 
Chartered Accountant, a Fellow 
of the Institute of Directors 
and of the Institute of Financial 
Professionals NZ Inc and a 
member of the CFA Institute 
(USA) and the UK Society of 
Investment Professionals.

BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS
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OLWEN HYSLOP
Group Human  
Resources Manager  
BSc (Hons), MBA

Olwen was appointed Group 
Human Resources Manager in 
January 2004 having previously 
held the position of Human 
Resources Manager for Mercury 
Energy. She has extensive 
experience in Human Resources 
and Organisation Development 
having previously headed up 
Human Resource functions for 
large corporates in the health, 
logistics and energy sectors 
in New Zealand. In addition to 
this background, her senior 
line management and training 
and development experience in 
the financial services industry 
provides a wealth of leadership 
and culture development 
expertise.

WILLIAM MEEK
Investment Manager
BCom (Hons)

William is responsible for 
developing the company’s 
generation investment strategy. 
This includes the negotiation 
of key generation development 
contracts, land access arrange-
ments and transmission rights. 
William is also responsible for 
the company’s wind development 
group and transmission team, as 
well as the Risk Strategy Group 
which oversees the company’s 
overall risk profile and  
tolerance. William has fifteen 
years’ industry experience in 
areas such as generation de-
velopment, wholesale markets, 
price forecasting  
and risk management.

JAMES MOULDER 
General Manager Generation 
BA, BCA

James Moulder joined Mighty 
River Power following experience 
in financial markets and strategic 
and financial consulting work 
in the Australian energy sector. 
He brings extensive business 
experience in managing risk, 
commodity trading and financial 
management, both in New 
Zealand and Australia. James 
is responsible for managing 
the company’s generation 
portfolio within the wholesale 
market, consistent with defined 
risk management policies and 
he manages the company’s 
wholesale sales , hydro and 
thermal plants.

NEIL WILLIAMS 
Group Strategist 
BA

Neil previously headed our 
trading area and has over 16 
years’ experience in the New 
Zealand electricity industry 
across retailing, distribution 
and trading. His responsibilities 
include identifying opportunities 
emerging from market change 
and policy development. In his 
role he guides our strategic 
direction, relationships with  
central government, regulators 
and other stakeholders.  
He is also responsible for  
public relations, media  
communications, legal and 
upstream gas explorations.

DOUG HEFFERNAN
Chief Executive 
BE (Hons), ME, PhD, FIPENZ

Doug was appointed Chief 
Executive in December 1998. 
Previously, he was Chief 
Executive of Power New Zealand 
Limited from 1991 to 1997. He is a 
Director of the Tuaropaki Power 
Company and of GeoGlobal 
Energy LLC, Chairman of the 
Rotokawa Joint Venture and 
an Executive Council member 
of the NZ Business Council for 
Sustainable Development.  
The Government has appointed 
Doug to the Ministerial Advisory 
Group on the Sustainable Water 
Programme of Action. He is 
also a Director of K2010, the 
governing body for the 2010 
World Rowing Championships 
at Karapiro.

KEN BUGDEN
Chief Financial Officer
CA

Ken joined Mighty River  
Power in October 2006  
bringing over 30 years of 
experience in management roles 
across a range of industries 
in manufacturing, distribution 
and retailing; most recently as 
Chief Financial Officer for public 
company Waste Management 
NZ Limited. Ken heads both the 
finance and information services 
functions with a focus on process 
improvement, financial analysis 
of capital expenditure, treasury, 
external and internal reporting 
and governance.

JOHN FOOTE
General Manager  
Mercury Energy
BSc, BE (Civil)

John is responsible for retail 
operations which supply over 
350,000 customers. He has  
over 10 years’ experience in 
general management roles in  
the electricity sector, and  
previously held the position of 
Chief Operations Manager with 
Power New Zealand Limited. 
Prior to joining the electricity 
industry, John was involved in  
the construction industry,  
which included significant 
international experience.

DAN HOYER
General Manager Geothermal 
PhD, MS, BS

Dan joined Mighty River 
Power in March 2008 and has 30 
years’ experience in geothermal 
development and exploration. 
Most recently Dan was the 
Vice President – Water and 
Natural Resources for RESPEC, 
a consulting and services 
company, based in South 
Dakota. Previously he has been 
a Professor at South Dakota 
School of Mines and Technology 
and Asset Manager for Unocal 
Corporation. He has also written 
a number articles for geothermal 
journals, been a regular key note 
speaker at international  
conferences and has registered 
patents for a number of  
inventions and processes.

SENIOR  
MANAGEMENT
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Human Resources Committee
This committee comprises all Directors 
with Sandy Maier as Chair. It met four 
times during the financial year. The Human 
Resources Committee’s primary role is 
to consider organisational matters and 
remuneration policies concerning the 
Company’s employees and assure the Board 
of the Company’s development of people 
capabilities and competencies.

Board Performance Review
Each year, the Board evaluates the  
performance of the Board as a whole and 
of the Chair. This is done using a variety of 
techniques including external consultants, 
questionnaires and Board discussion.  
The Chair’s performance is reviewed by  
all Directors and is then discussed with  
the Chair.

Planning
The Board held a strategic planning session 
and other review sessions this year. It also 
approved the Company’s draft Statement of 
Corporate Intent for shareholder approval, 
business plan, and budgets as part of its 
normal functions.

Risk Management
It is a Board responsibility to identify and 
control the Company’s business risks. 
Major policies which are subject to the 
Board’s approval and review include capital 
investment, treasury, electricity trading and 
risk management, accounting and financial, 
insurance and delegated authority limits. As 
part of managing its broader risk profile, the 
Board recognises the importance of full com-
pliance with laws controlling environmental 
activities, management of natural resources, 
health and safety in employment, working 
conditions within buildings and customer 
health and safety. The Board monitors the 
Company’s compliance with relevant statutes 
through the regular reports it receives  
from management.

Auditor Independence
The Board’s policy on auditor independence 
from management places responsibility 
for managing the relationship with the Risk 
Assurance and Audit Committee. During 
the year the Board reviewed the Company’s 
relationship with the auditor of the financial 
statements, Warren Allen of Ernst & Young, 
on behalf of the Auditor-General. This review 
confirmed the present audit arrangements 
and noted no need to change them.  
The Risk Assurance and Audit Committee 
also reviewed the scope of services provided 
to Mighty River Power by Warren Allen of 
Ernst & Young. This review confirmed no 
issues around auditor independence.

Responsibility Statement
The Board of Directors has responsibility for 
ensuring the Company has effective policies 
in place to manage its risks. The Board 
decides the level and nature of the risks which 
are acceptable to the Company. The Chief 
Executive has overall responsibility for the 
day to day running of the Company and the day 
to day management of normal business risk.

Statement of Corporate Intent
In accordance with its obligations under the 
State Owned Enterprises Act, the Company 
publishes an annual Statement of Corporate 
Intent as approved by its shareholders,  
which communicates the goals and 
strategies of the Company and outlines 
its expected performance. This document 
also contributes to Mighty River Power’s 
disclosure obligations.

Indemnity and Insurance
Mighty River Power Limited has resolved to 
indemnify Directors and employees for any 
costs or liabilities referred to in Section 162 
(3) and 162 (4) of the Companies Act 1993. The 
Company has arranged insurance for those 
Directors and employees in respect of any 
liability or costs referred to in Section 162 (5) 
of the Companies Act 1993.

Loans to Directors
There were no loans by the Group  
to Directors.

Directors’ use of Information
There were no notices from Directors of the 
Group requesting to use Company informa-
tion received in their capacity as Directors 
which would not otherwise have been 
available to them.

Remuneration of Directors
The following table sets out the total 
remuneration and other benefits of each 
Board member as a Director of Mighty River 
Power Limited for the reporting period.

Disclosures of Interests
The general disclosures of interest made by 
the Directors of Mighty River Power Limited 
pursuant to Section 140 (2) of the Companies 
Act 1993 are shown on page 50. There were 
no declarations of interests made pursuant 
to Section 140 (1) of the Companies Act 1993 
that were entered in the interests register of 
Mighty River Power Limited or its subsidi-
aries for the reporting period. No Director of 
Mighty River Power Limited is a shareholder 
of Mighty River Power Limited  
or any of its subsidiaries.

Carole Durbin (Chair) $104,595

John Baird (Deputy Chair) $65,055

Caroline Ball $4,482

Diana Crossan $27,414

Dr Graham Hill $28,782

Trevor Janes $53,917

Sandy Maier $51,857

Neil Ranford $52,297

Sir Paul Reeves $36,097

Tania Simpson $33,898

Patrick Strange $21,005

Total $479,405

Mighty River Power is a State Owned 
Enterprise, which operates under a corporate 
governance framework consisting of its legal 
requirements (under such legislation as the 
Companies Act 1993 and the State-Owned 
Enterprises Act 1986), and formal and 
informal practices adopted by the Board of 
Directors. These include the Board Charter, 
the Code of Ethics, Risk Assurance and Audit 
Committee Terms of Reference, Human 
Resources Committee Terms of Reference 
and the Trading Disclosure Policy – Company 
Securities. The Board is responsible for 
corporate governance of the Company – in 
other words, the direction and control 
that is undertaken by the Directors of the 
Company and also for their accountabilities to 
shareholders and others for the Company’s 
performance and its compliance with 
appropriate laws and standards.

Role of the Board 
The Board is responsible for the overall 
direction of Mighty River Power’s business 
and other activities on behalf of shareholding 
Ministers. The Company’s principal 
objectives are to operate as a successful 
business and to be: 
•  as profitable and efficient as comparable  
 businesses not owned by the Crown; 
•  an employer that operates policies which  
 are judged to be fair and equitable in their  
 treatment of all staff in all aspects of  
 their employment; 
•  an organisation that displays an informed  
 sense of social responsibility by  
 having regard to the interests of the  
 communities in which the Company
 operates and by supporting these  
 communities when able to do so; 
•  a leader in achieving the objectives of   
 sustainable development – working to  
 achieve sustainable development for the 
 communities in which the Company   
 operates through world’s best  
 management of generation resources.

Board Membership
The Board is made up of nine non-executive 
Directors. Profiles of the individual Directors 
can be found on pages 44 and 45.

Board Meetings
The full Board met 17 times during the year. 
For the year ended 30 June 2008, Board 
meetings were attended as follows:

Board Committees
To assist Directors to carry out their duties, 
the Board has two standing committees. 
Other ad hoc committees may be formed 
from time to time. 

Risk Assurance and Audit Committee
This committee comprises Trevor Janes 
(Chair), Sandy Maier and Neil Ranford with 
Carole Durbin as an ex-officio member. It 
met four times during the year. The Risk 
Assurance and Audit Committee’s role is to 
provide assurance to the Board that risks and 
threats to the business are being managed 
properly. The committee also reviews the 
performances of internal and external 
auditors. Internal audit is outsourced to 
Deloitte. All Directors are invited to attend 
the Risk Assurance and Audit Committee 
meetings and are provided with copies of 
meeting minutes and any reports received by 
the committee.

Member Meetings

Carole Durbin (Chair) 17

John Baird (Deputy Chair) 12

Caroline Ball  
(resigned 21/08/07)

0

Diana Crossan
(appointed 01/11/07)

8

Dr Graham Hill
(appointed 01/12/07)

5

Trevor Janes 16

Sandy Maier 16

Neil Ranford 14

Sir Paul Reeves
(leave of absence from 
01/03/08 to 30/06/08)

10

Tania Simpson 
(resigned 31/10/07, 
reappointed 01/01/08)

13

Patrick Strange
(resigned 15/11/07)

9

CORPORATE  
GOVERNANCE 
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DIRECTORS’  
INTERESTS

Declaration of 
General Interest 
pursuant to  
Section 140(2) of the 
Companies Act 1993  
as at 27 August 2008.

 
Carole Durbin Commissioner   Earthquake Commission
(Chair) Chair  Legal Services Agency
 Director   Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
 Director and Trustee  Southern Cross Medical Care Society
 Trustee   Southern Cross Hospital Trust
 Director  Southern Cross Benefits Limited
  
John Baird Chair  Motion Industries Limited
(Deputy Chair) Director  Sleepyhead Manufacturing Company Limited
 Director and Shareholder  South Island Forklifts Limited
 Director and Shareholder  SIF Properties Limited 
 Director and Shareholder  4PL Limited
 Member  Waitangi Tribunal
 Trustee   Foundation for Youth Development
  
Diana Crossan Chair  Whai Rawa Management Limited
 Chair  Orangi Kaupapa Trust
 Chair  New Zealand Institute of Research on Ageing at   
   Victoria University
 Member  Refugee Services
 
Dr Graham Hill Member  National Institute for Water and Atmosphere
 Councillor  Unitec Council
 Director  Research & Education Advanced Network NZ Limited
 Director  NIWA Vessel Manager
 Director  NIWA Natural Solutions 
 Director  Eco Connect Limited
  
Trevor Janes Deputy Chairman  
 and Audit Committee Chairman  Abano Healthcare Limited
 Specialist Member,  
 Investment Committee of the Board  Accident Compensation Corporation  
 Director and Shareholder   Selenium Corporation Limited
 Chairman and Shareholder  Trinity Hill Limited and vineyard owning subsidiaries   
   and associates
 Director and Shareholder   Rovert Investments Limited
 Director  ProCare Health Limited
 Director  Salvus Strategic Investments Limited
 Director  Sapphire Currency Fund Limited
  
Sandy Maier Chairman and Shareholder   Directions Understanding Governance Limited
 Chairman   Geon Group Limited and subsidiaries
 Chairman   3 Media Group Limited
 Director and Shareholder   Maier Limited
 Director   McConnell Limited
 Director   Oyster Bay Vineyards
 Director   Perpetual Capital Management Limited
 Director   Fronde Limited
 Director   Taranaki Investment Management Limited
 Director and Shareholder   Tilda Holdings Limited
 Director  Ultimate Care Limited
 Director and Shareholder  Carpet Court Limited
 Director and Shareholder  UCG Investments Limited
 Director  Click Clack Limited
  
Neil Ranford Director and Shareholder   Rose’s Alterations Limited
 Director   Waitakere Properties Limited
 Trustee   NC and CG Ranford Family Trust
 Trustee   Upland Trust
  
Sir Paul Reeves Director   Pipitea Management Limited
 Director   Hui Taumata Trustee Limited
 Director   Tenth’s Village Limited & subsidiaries
 Director   PNBC Limited
 Trustee   Wellington Tenth’s Trust
 Trustee   Venture Taranaki Trust
 Chancellor   Auckland University of Technology  

Tania Simpson Director and Shareholder   Kowhai Consulting Limited
 Director  Oceania Group Limited
 Member   Ruapehu, Whanganui, Rangitikei Regional Partnership  
   Tourism Board
 Trustee   Tui Trust
 Member  Waitangi Tribunal

Company
Mighty River Power is a New Zealand  
owned integrated energy generation,  
trading, retailing and metering business. 

Our primary brands are Mighty River 
Power, Mercury Energy and Metrix.  
The company is organised according to  
retail sales, geothermal generation,  
hydro generation and cogeneration,  
and corporate services. 

Shareholders
In accordance with the State Owned 
Enterprises Act 1986, the company has two 
shareholders:

The Minister for State Owned Enterprises 
(Hon. Trevor Mallard) and Minister of Finance 
(Hon. Dr Michael Cullen). In accordance with 
Section 15 of the Act, an Annual Report is to 
be submitted to the shareholding Ministers, 
such report to contain sufficient information 
to enable an informed assessment to be 
made of the operations of the Group. The 
Group will provide any other information 
requested by the shareholding Ministers 
pursuant to Section 18 of the Act.

Principal Activities
 •  Securing fuel (to meet long term   
  energy needs);
 •  Managing fuel reservoirs (to maximise  
  fuel value over time);
 •  Conversion of fuel into higher value   
  energy forms, particularly electricity;
 •  Trading fuel, electricity, and related   
  financial products (to maximise value  
  and reduce risk);
 •  Retailing of energy to customers,   
  including marketing of value  
  added products,
 •  Providing advanced metering and  
  energy management services to   
  consumers and energy retailers.

These activities are currently undertaken  
in New Zealand only. 

Although Mighty River Power is a State 
Owned Enterprise we received no other direct  
financial assistance from the Government. 
The Company made no financial or inkind 
donations to any political parties, politicians 
or related institutions.

Company Credit Rating
As at 30 June 2008, the Company  
had the following credit rating:
Standard & Poor’s Short-term: A-2
Long-term: BBB +
Outlook: Stable

Company Secretary
Tony Nagel LLB, MComLaw (Hons)

Registered Office
Level 14, 23-29 Albert Street, Auckland
Phone.  09 308 8200
Fax  09 308 8209
Email  enquiries@mightyriver.co.nz
Web  www.mightyriverpower.co.nz

Auditor
The Auditor-General pursuant  
to section 14 of the Public Audit Act 2001.
Warren Allen of Ernst & Young was appointed  
to perform the audit on behalf of the  
Auditor-General.

Solicitors
Chapman Tripp
Kensington Swan

Bankers
ANZ National Bank
ASB Bank
Kiwibank
Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi
Bank of New Zealand

ABOUT US
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Financial Performance Targets 2008 Actual 2008 Target

Return on Average Shareholders’ Equity  
(%)

5.6 5.9

Total Equity/Total Assets  
(%)

55.6 57.2

Net Debt/ Net Debt plus Equity  
(%)

21.7 25.3

Free Funds from Operations/Interest Expense 
(times)

6.7 7.1

Non Financial Performance Targets

Safety – Frequency 
(lost time accidents per 100,000 hours worked)

0.41  1.25

Environmental Performance  
(%)1

100 100

Customer switching to Industry standards  
(%)

100 100

Customer Contacts per year 2.0  2.25

Plant Availability  
(%)

93 93.0

Forced Outage Rate  
(%)

2.26  1.9

1 No enforcements by regulatory authorities arising from a breach of environmental  
 standards and controls.

Our objective is to increase 
shareholder value at a rate 
similar to the increase in market 
value achieved by comparable 
private sector companies. Our 
Statement of Corporate Intent 
sets out our financial and non-
financial performance targets. 
Our achievements against 
targets for the 2008 financial 
year were as follows:

FINANCIAL  
AND COMMERCIAL 
PERFORMANCE 
TARGETS

ECONOMIC VALUE

Mighty River Power creates and 
distributes economic wealth 
for its stakeholders. The table 
details the direct economic 
value generated and distributed, 
including revenues, operating 
costs, employee compensation, 
donations and other community 
investments, retained earnings 
and payments to capital provid-
ers and Government. 

Direct economic value generated ($M) 2008

a) Revenues 1,177.61

Economic value distributed

b) Operating costs (812.9)2

c) Employee wages and benefits (55.9)

d) Payments to providers of capital (102.8)3

e) Taxes (42.0)

f) Community investments (1.4)

Economic value retained 162.6

1 Total Revenue plus Interest Income 
2 Total operating expenses less employee costs and community payments
3 Dividends and total Interest paid

GROSS  
MARGIN 
ANALYSIS

YTD 2008 YTD 2007

Retail1 Wholesale2 Retail1 Wholesale2

Revenue

Gross Revenue 866.9 587.6 739.5 299.3

Less Transmission & Distribution Costs 326.8  - 299.3  - 

Net Revenue 540.1 587.6 440.2 299.3

Costs

Energy Purchases 637.5 61.5 301.2 34.5

Other Direct Costs/(income) 69.2 (50.7) (29.7) 19.3

Energy Gross Margin3 (166.6) 576.8 168.7 245.5

Volumes/Pricing

Total Generator Volumes4  
(GWh)

 - 5,046.5  - 4,973.3

Total Fixed Price Variable Volume Sales5 
(GWh)

3,964.2  - 3,910.6  - 

Average Wholesale Electricity Price 
($MWh)

 - 112.2  - 55.7

Average Fixed Price  
Variable Volume Price  
($MWh)

101.3  - 98.6  - 

1 Retail includes sales to end user customers of energy and the  
 net impact of electricity financial derivatives (excluding inter- 
 generator financial derivatives). 
2 Wholesale includes all generation activities, the sale of energy  
 to the wholesale energy market and the net impact of inter- 
 generator financial derivatives.   
3 Retail energy gross margin includes the full metering  
 costs incurred by Metrix, some of which are eliminated on  
 consolidation.  
4  Generation volumes exclude equity accounted volumes. 
5  Does not include volumes associated with electricity financial  
 derivatives. See note 1 and 2 for treatment of electricity financial  
 derivative settlements.    
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AUDIT 
REPORT

TO THE READERS OF MIGHTY RIVER 
POWER LIMITED AND GROUP’S FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 
JUNE 2008

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Mighty 
River Power Limited (the Company) and 
Group. The Auditor-General has appointed 
me, Warren Allen, using the staff and 
resources of Ernst & Young, to carry out 
the audit of the financial statements of the 
Company and Group, on his behalf, for the 
year ended 30 June 2008. 

Unqualified Opinion
In our opinion: 

• The financial statements of the Company  
  and Group on pages 58 to 88:

 
• comply with generally accepted   

   accounting practice in New Zealand;
 
• comply with International Financial   

   Reporting Standards; and 
  
• give a true and fair view of:
   
   • the Company and Group’s financial  

     position as at 30 June 2008; and
   
   • the results of operations and  

     cash flows for the year ended  
     on that date. 

• Based on our examination the Company  
 and Group kept proper accounting records.

The audit was completed on 27 August 
2008, and is the date at which our opinion is 
expressed.

The basis of our opinion is explained below. 
In addition, we outline the responsibilities of 
the Board of Directors and the Auditor, and 
explain our independence.

Basis of Opinion
We carried out the audit in accordance with 
the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, 
which incorporate the New Zealand  
Auditing Standards.

We planned and performed the audit to 
obtain all the information and explanations 
we considered necessary in order to obtain 
reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements did not have material misstate-
ments, whether caused by fraud or error.

Material misstatements are differences or 
omissions of amounts and disclosures that 
would affect a reader’s overall understanding 
of the financial statements. If we had found 
material misstatements that were not 
corrected, we would have referred to them in 
our opinion.

The audit involved performing procedures 
to test the information presented in the 
financial statements. We assessed the 
results of those procedures in forming our 
opinion.

Audit procedures generally include:

• determining whether significant financial  
 and management controls are working  
 and can be relied on to produce complete  
 and accurate data;

• verifying samples of transactions and   
 account balances;

• performing analyses to identify anomalies  
 in the reported data;

• reviewing significant estimates  
 and judgements made by the  
 Board of Directors;

• confirming year-end balances;

• determining whether accounting  
 policies are appropriate and consistently  
 applied; and

• determining whether all financial  
 statements disclosures are adequate.

We did not examine every transaction, nor 
do we guarantee complete accuracy of the 
financial statements.

We evaluated the overall adequacy of the 
presentation of information in the financial 
statements. We obtained all the information 
and explanations we required to support our  
opinion above.

Responsibilities of the Board  
of Directors and the Auditor
The Board of Directors is responsible for 
preparing financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting practice 
in New Zealand. The financial statements 
must give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company and Group as at 30 
June 2008, and the results of operations and 
cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
The Board of Directors’ responsibilities arise 
from the State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986 
and the Financial Reporting Act 1993. 

We are responsible for expressing an 
independent opinion on the financial state-
ments and reporting that opinion to you. This 
responsibility arises from section 15 of the 
Public Audit Act 2001 and section 19 (1) of the 
State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986. 

Independence
When carrying out the audit we followed the 
independence requirements of the Auditor-
General, which incorporate the independence 
requirements of the New Zealand Institute of 
Chartered Accountants.

Other than the audit, we have no relation-
ship with or interest in the Company or any of 
its subsidiarie

WARREN ALLEN
Ernst & Young
On behalf of the Auditor-General
Auckland, New Zealand

DIRECTORS’  
RESPONSIBILITY 
STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for ensuring 
that the financial statements comply with 
generally accepted accounting practices and 
represent a true and fair view of Mighty River 
Power Limited’s financial position as at 30 
June 2008, and of the financial performance 
and cash flows for the current financial year.

The Directors consider that the Group and 
Company’s financial statements have been 
prepared using the appropriate accounting 
policies, that these have been consistently 
applied and are supported by reasonable 
judgements and estimates, and that all 
relevant financial and accounting standards 
have been followed.

The Directors believe that proper 
accounting records have been kept which 
allow for the determination of the Company’s 
financial position with reasonable accuracy, 
and that the financial statements themselves 
comply with the Financial Reporting Act 1993 
and the Companies Act 1993.

The Directors consider that they have 
taken adequate steps to safeguard the 
Company’s assets and to prevent and, 
where necessary, detect fraud and any other 
irregularities.

The Auditor-General is required to be the 
Company’s auditor, and has appointed Mr 
Warren Allen of Ernst & Young to undertake 
the audit on his behalf.

The Directors are pleased to present 
Mighty River Power Limited’s annual report 
and financial statements for the year ended 
30 June 2008.

CAROLE DURBIN 
Chair
27 AUGUST 2008

JOHN BAIRD
Deputy Chair
27 AUGUST 2008

Matters relating to the Electronic Presentation  
of the Audited Financial Statements .

This audit report relates to the financial statements of Mighty River 
Power Limited and the group for the year ended 30 June 2008 
included on Mighty River Power’s website. Mighty River Power is 
responsible for the maintenance and integrity of its website. We 
have not been engaged to report on the integrity of the Mighty River 
Power website. We accept no responsibility for any changes that 
may have occurred to the financial statements since they were 
initially presented on the website. 

The audit report refers to the financial statements named above. 
It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may 
have been hyperlinked to / from these financial statements. 

If readers of this report are concerned with the inherent risks 
arising from electronic data communication they should refer to 
the published hard copy of the audited financial statements and 
related audit report dated 27 August 2008 to confirm the information 
included in the audited financial statements presented on this 
website.  Legislation in New Zealand governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in 
other jurisdictions.
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Income statement
For the year ended 30 June 2008

    

    Group Group  Company Company 
   Note 2008  2007  2008 2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

	 	 	 	 	
Sales	 	 	 1,464,741	 1,083,212		 1,438,186	 1,029,071	
Less	line	and	metering	charges	 	 	 (307,303)	 (280,921)	 (307,303)	 (280,921)
Other	revenue	 	 	 	 14,459 	 12,569		 17,986 	 14,160	
Total revenue	 	 	 1,171,897 	 814,860		 1,148,869		 762,310	
	 	 	 	 	
Energy	costs	 	 	 699,059 	 336,536		 687,897 	 298,262	
Employee	compensation	and	benefits	 	 	 55,893 	 49,420		 54,557 	 49,420	
Contractors’	fees	 	 	 33,565 	 28,113		 33,230 	 25,724	
Professional	services	 	 	 8,674 	 8,764		 8,532 	 8,233		
Other	expenses	 	 	 	 70,067 	 76,562		 64,998 	 67,580		
Total expenses	 	 2	 867,258 	 499,395		 849,214 	 449,219	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Earnings before net interest expense, income tax, depreciation,  
amortisation and financial instruments (EBITDAF)	 	 	 304,639		 315,465		 299,655 	 313,091		
	 	 	 	 	 	
Depreciation	and	amortisation	 	 2	 (86,525)	 (84,948)	 (79,015)	 (71,028)	
Change	in	the	fair	value	of	financial	instruments	 	 17	 (9,665)	 (61,056)	 (9,665)	 (61,056)	
Impaired	exploration	expenditure	 	 8	 (28,059)	 (19,607)	 0 	 1,460		
Equity	accounted	earnings	of	associate	companies	 	 11	 2,331 	 2,999	 (88)	 (30)	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Earnings before net interest expense and income tax (EBIT) 	 	 182,721 	 152,853		 210,887		 182,437		
	 	 	 	 	 	
Interest	expense	 	 2	 (26,543)	 (35,248)	 (26,283)	 (35,214)	
Interest	income	 	 	 	 5,683 	 8,864		 8,411 	 11,329		
Net interest expense	 	  (20,860)	 (26,384)	 (17,872)	 (23,885)	
	 	 	 	 	
Profit before income tax	 	 	 161,861 	 126,469		 193,015 	 158,552	
	 	 	 	 	
Income	tax	expense	 	 	 3	 (50,910)	 (29,546)	 (62,116)	 (41,662)
Net profit for the period	 	 	 	 110,951 	 96,923	 130,899 	 116,890

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2008

Issued  
capital

Retained  
earnings

Asset revaluation 
reserve

Cash flow  
hedge reserve

Total  
equity

   $000 $000  $000  $000  $000 
Group	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Balance as at 1 July 2006	 	 377,561		 503,437		 725,364		 39,955		 1,646,317		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Fair	value	revaluation	of	office	land	and	buildings	 	 0		 0		 1,786		 0		 1,786		
Equity	accounted	share	of	movements	in	associates’	reserves	 	 0	 0	 19,022	 1,464	 20,486
Cash	flow	hedges	gain/(loss)	taken	to	or	released	from	equity,		
net	of	taxation	 	 0		 0		 0		 (37,074)	 (37,074)	
Release	of	asset	revaluation	reserve	for	assets	taken	out	of	service,		
net	of	taxation	 	 0		 565		 (565)	 0		 0		
Impact	of	tax	rate	change	 	 	 0		 0		 32,308		 147		 32,455		
Net income/(expense) recognised directly in equity	 	 0		 565		 52,551		 (35,463)	 17,653	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Net	profit	for	the	period	 	 	 0		 96,923		 0		 0		 96,923			
Total recognised income and expenses for the period	 	 0		 97,488		 52,551		 (35,463)	 114,576	
Dividend	 	 	 0		 (50,400)	 0		 0		 (50,400)
Balance as at 30 June 2007	 	 	 377,561		 550,525		 777,915		 4,492		 1,710,493	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Balance as at 1 July 2007	 	 377,561  550,525  777,915  4,492   1,710,493 
	 	 	 	 	 	
Fair	value	revaluation	of	hydro	and	co-generation	assets,	net	of	taxation	 0  0  585,200  0  585,200 
Equity	accounted	share	of	movements	in	associates’	reserves	 	 0 0 0 (12,879) (12,879)
Cash	flow	hedges	gain/(loss)	taken	to	or	released	from	equity,		
net	of	taxation	 	 0  0  0  (83,343) (83,343)
Impact	of	tax	rate	change	 	 	 0  0  0  3,428  3,428 
Net income/(expense) recognised directly in equity 	 0  0  585,200  (92,794) 492,406 
	 	 	 	 	 	
Net	profit	for	the	period	 	 	 0  110,951  0  0  110,951
Total recognised income and expenses for the period	 	 0  110,951  585,200  (92,794) 603,357 
Dividend	 	 	 0  (56,200) 0  0  (56,200)
Balance as at 30 June 2008	 	 	 377,561  605,276  1,363,115  (88,302) 2,257,650 
	 	 	 	 	 	
Company	 	 	 	 	 	

Balance as at 1 July 2006	 	 377,561		 514,406		 722,610		 40,361		 1,654,938	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Fair	value	revaluation	of	office	land	and	buildings	 	 0		 0		 1,786		 0		 1,786	
Cash	flow	hedges	gain/(loss)	taken	to	or	released	from	equity,		
net	of	taxation	 	 0		 0		 0		 (37,074)	 (37,074)
Release	of	asset	revaluation	reserve	for	assets	taken	out	of	service,		
net	of	taxation	 	 0		 565		 (565)	 0		 0	
Impact	of	tax	rate	change	 	 	 0		 0		 32,185		 147		 32,332	
Net income/(expense) recognised directly in equity	 	 0		 565		 33,406		 (36,927)	 (2,956)
	 	 	 	 	 	
Net	profit	for	the	period	 	 	 0		 116,890		 0		 0		 116,890	
Total recognised income and expenses for the period	 	 0		 117,455		 33,406		 (36,927)	 113,934	
Dividend	 	 	 0		 (50,400)	 0		 0		 (50,400)
Balance as at 30 June 2007	 	 	 377,561		 581,461		 756,016		 3,434		 1,718,472	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Balance as at 1 July 2007	 	 377,561  581,461  756,016  3,434  1,718,472 
	 	 	 	 	 	
Fair	value	revaluation	of	hydro	and	co-generation	assets,	net	of	taxation	 0  0  585,200  0  585,200 
Cash	flow	hedges	gain/(loss)	taken	to	or	released	from	equity,		
net	of	taxation	 	 0  0  0  (83,343) (83,343)
Impact	of	tax	rate	change	 	 	 0  0  0  3,428  3,428 
Net income/(expense) recognised directly in equity	 	 0  0  585,200  (79,915) 505,285 
	 	 	 	 	 	
Net	profit	for	the	period	 	 	 0  130,899  0  0  130,899 
Total recognised income and expenses for the period	 	 0  130,899  585,200  (79,915) 636,184 
Dividend	 	 	 0  (56,200) 0  0  (56,200)
Balance as at 30 June 2008	 	 	 377,561  656,160  1,341,216  (76,481) 2,298,456 
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Balance sheet
As at 30 June 2008

    Group Group Company Company 
   Note 2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY	 	 	 	 	 	
Issued	capital	 	 4	 377,561	 377,561	 377,561	 377,561	
Reserves	 	 	 	 1,880,089	 1,332,932	 1,920,895	 1,340,911	
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY	 	 	 	 2,257,650	 1,710,493	 2,298,456	 1,718,472	
	 	 	 	 	 	
ASSETS	 	 	 	 	 	
CURRENT ASSETS	 	 	 	 	 	
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	 	 5	 34,049	 86,946	 34,001	 86,895	
Receivables	and	prepayments	 	 6	 290,670	 154,464	 627,331	 379,245	
Inventories	 	 7	 6,521	 4,666	 6,520	 4,351	
Derivative	financial	instruments	 	 17	 42,929	 22,024	 42,929	 22,024	
Taxation	receivable	 	 	 	 17,147	 27,478	 15,198	 1,285	
Total current assets	 	 	 	 391,316	 295,578	 725,979	 493,800

NON-CURRENT ASSETS	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 8	 3,498,704	 2,527,051	 3,089,896	 2,216,597	
Intangible	assets	 	 9	 27,952	 21,638	 26,274	 19,611	 	
Investment	in	subsidiaries	 	 10	 0	 0	 123,900	 123,900	
Investment	and	advances	to	associates	 	 	 11	 65,944	 48,541	 12,763	 18,219	 	
Derivative	financial	instruments	 	 	 17	 74,113	 31,085	 74,113	 31,085	 	
Other	non-current	assets	 	 	 	 0	 75	 0	 75	
Total non-current assets	 	 	 	 3,666,713	 2,628,390	 3,326,946	 2,409,487	
TOTAL ASSETS	 	 	 	 4,058,029	 2,923,968	 4,052,925	 2,903,287	

LIABILITIES	 	 	 	 	 	 	
CURRENT LIABILITIES	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Payables	and	accruals	 	 13	 243,608	 133,594	 222,047	 115,509	
Provisions	 	 14	 1,582	 0	 0	 0	
Current	portion	loans	 	 	 15	 67,461	 0	 67,461	 0	 	
Derivative	financial	instruments	 	 	 17	 90,249	 78,984	 90,249	 78,984	
Total current liabilities	 	 	 	 402,900	 212,578	 379,757	 194,493	

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Derivative	financial	instruments	 	 17	 115,794	 7,694	 115,794	 7,694	 	
Loans		 	 15	 591,315	 516,883	 580,778	 516,883	
Deferred	tax	 	 	 16	 690,370	 476,320	 678,140	 465,745	
Total non-current liabilities	 	 	 	 1,397,479	 1,000,897	 1,374,712	 990,322	
TOTAL LIABILITIES	 	 	 	 1,800,379	 1,213,475	 1,754,469	 1,184,815	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
NET ASSETS	 	 	 	 2,257,650	 1,710,493	 2,298,456	 1,718,472	 	

For	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors	who	authorised	the	issue	of	the	Financial	Statements	on	27	August	2008.	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	      

Cash flow statement
For the year ended 30 June 2008

    Group Group  Company Company 
   Note 2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES	 	 	 	 	
Receipts	from	customers	 	 	 1,051,883 	 788,932		 1,018,549 	 739,560	
Payments	to	suppliers	and	employees	 	 	 (761,155)	 (468,993)	 (730,552)	 (421,490)
Interest	received	 	 	 3,367 	 7,655		 3,353 	 7,651	
Interest	paid	 	 	 (44,626)	 (36,094)	 (44,530)	 (36,060)
Taxes	paid	 	 	 	 (42,047)	 (67,555)	 (42,047)	 (67,555)
Net cash provided by operating activities	 	 	 18 207,422  223,945		 204,773 	 222,106

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES	 	 	 	 	
Acquisition	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 	 (285,621)	 (166,483)	 (22,831)	 (47,391)
Proceeds	from	sale	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 	 296		 5,751		 296 	 47	
Acquisition	of	associate	 	 	 (33,404)	 (300)	 (85)	 (300)
Advances	to	associate	 	 	 (35)	 0		 (35)	 0	
Advances	to	associates	repaid	 	 	 5,519 	 3,061		 5,519 	 3,061	
Acquisition	of	intangibles	 	 	 (14,938)	 (12,295)	 (14,938)	 (12,244)
Acquisition	of	other	non-current	assets	 	 	 (17,192)	 0		 0 	 0		
Proceeds	from	disposal	of	other	non-current	assets	 	 	 75 	 0		 75 	 0	
Net cash used in investing activities	 	 	 	 (345,300)	 (170,266)	 (31,999)	 (56,827)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
Proceeds	from	loans	 	 	 141,181 	 300,000		 131,000 	 300,000	
Repayment	of	loans	 	 	 0 	 (220,697)	 0 	 (220,697)
Loans	to	subsidiaries	 	 	 0 	 0		 (300,468)	 (111,534)
Dividends	paid	 	 	 	 (56,200) (50,400)	 (56,200)	 (50,400)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities	 	 	 84,981 	 28,903		 (225,668)	 (82,631)

Net	(decrease)/increase	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents	held	 	 	 (52,897)	 82,582		 (52,894)	 82,648	
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	the	beginning	of	the	period	 	 	 86,946 	 4,364		 86,895 	 4,247	
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period	 	 	 34,049 	 86,946		 34,001 	 86,895	

Cash balance comprises:	 	 	 	 	
Cash	 	 	 9,257 	 17,038		 9,209 	 16,987	
Short	term	deposits	 	 	 	 24,792 	 69,908		 24,792 	 69,908	
Cash balance at the end of the period	 	 	 	 34,049 	 86,946		 34,001 	 86,895	
         

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

CAROLE DURBIN 
Chair
27	AUGUST	2008

JOHN BAIRD
Deputy	Chair
27	AUGUST	2008
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008

NOTE 1. Accounting policies   
	 	 	
(1)  Reporting entity	 	 	
Mighty	River	Power	Limited	(the	Company)	is	a	company	incorporated	in	New	Zealand,	registered	under	the	Companies	Act	1993	and	is	
an	issuer	for	the	purposes	of	the	Financial	Reporting	Act	1993.	The	consolidated	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	in	accordance	
with	the	Financial	Reporting	Act	1993	and	the	Companies	Act	1993.	 	 	
	 	 	
The	consolidated	financial	statements	are	for	Mighty	River	Power	Limited	Group	(the	Group).	The	consolidated	financial	statements	
comprise	the	Company,	its	subsidiaries,	associates	and	interests	in	jointly	controlled	assets.	 	
	 	 	
Mighty	River	Power	Limited	is	wholly	owned	by	Her	Majesty	the	Queen	in	Right	of	New	Zealand	(the	Crown).	Consequently,	the	Company	
is	bound	by	the	requirements	of	the	State-Owned	Enterprises	Act	1986.	 	 	
	 	 	
The	liabilities	of	the	Company	are	not	guaranteed	in	any	way	by	the	Crown.		 	 	
	 	 	
The	Group’s	principal	activities	are	the	production	of	electricity	and	the	selling	of	energy	and	energy	related	services	and	products	to	
retail	and	wholesale	customers.	 	 	
	 	 	
(2)  Basis of preparation	 	 	
(a)  Statement of compliance	 	 	
These	consolidated	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	in	accordance	with	New	Zealand	Generally	Accepted	Accounting	Practice	
(NZ	GAAP).	They	comply	with	New	Zealand	equivalents	to	International	Financial	Reporting	Standards	(NZ	IFRS)	as	appropriate	for	
profit-oriented	entities.	These	financial	statements	also	comply	with	International	Financial	Reporting	Standards	(IFRS).	
	 	
These	are	the	Group	and	Company’s	first	NZ	IFRS	consolidated	financial	statements	and	NZ	IFRS	1	-	First	Time	Adoption	of	NZ	IFRS	has	
been	applied.	 	 	

The	accounting	policies	set	out	below	have	been	applied	consistently	to	both	periods	presented	in	these	consolidated	financial	
statements.	They	have	also	been	applied	in	preparing	an	opening	NZ	IFRS	balance	sheet	at	1	July	2006	for	the	purposes	of	the	transition	
to	NZ	IFRS	as	required	by	NZ	IFRS	1.	 	 	

The	Group	has	elected	to	early	adopt	NZ	IAS	23	-	Borrowing	Costs	with	effect	from	1	July	2006.	 	 	
	 	 	
The	Group	has	elected	not	to	early	adopt	the	following	standards	or	apply	the	following	interpretation(s)	which	have	been	issued	but	are	
not	yet	effective:	 	 	

•		 NZ	IFRS	8	-	Operating	Segments.	This	new	standard,	which	replaces	NZ	IAS	14	-	Segment	Reporting,	will	be	effective	for	accounting	
periods	beginning	on	or	after	1	January	2009.	As	this	is	a	disclosure	standard	there	will	be	no	direct	impact	on	the	amounts	included	
in	the	financial	statements.	Management	has	not	yet	determined	whether	adoption	of	this	standard	will	result	in	any	changes	in	
segment	disclosure.		 	 	

•		 NZ	IAS	1	-	Presentation	of	Financial	Statements.	This	revised	standard,	which	will	be	effective	for	periods	beginning	on	or	after		
1	January	2009,	introduces	a	statement	of	comprehensive	income.	Other	revisions	include	impacts	on	the	presentation	of	items	
in	the	statement	of	changes	in	equity,	new	presentation	requirements	for	restatements	or	reclassifications,	changes	in	the	
presentation	requirements	for	dividends	and	changes	to	the	titles	of	financial	statements.	The	amendments	are	only	expected	to	
affect	the	presentation	of	the	financial	statements	and	will	not	have	a	direct	impact	on	the	measurement	and	recognition	of	amounts	
under	the	current	NZ	IAS	1.	Management	are	yet	to	determine	if	the	new	statement	of	comprehensive	income	will	be	presented	as	
single	or	dual	statements.	 	 	

•		 NZ	IFRS	3	-	Business	Combinations.	The	revised	standard,	which	will	be	effective	for	periods	beginning	on	or	after	1	July	2009,	
introduces	a	number	of	changes	in	the	accounting	for	business	combinations	that	will	impact	the	amount	of	goodwill	recognised,	
the	reported	results	in	the	period	an	acquisition	occurs,	and	future	reported	results.	This	standard	will	be	applied	prospectively.	
	 	

•		 NZ	IAS	27	-	Consolidated	and	Separate	Financial	Statements.	The	revised	standard,	which	will	be	effective	for	periods	beginning	on	
or	after	1	July	2009,	requires	that	a	change	in	ownership	interest	of	a	subsidiary	is	accounted	for	as	an	equity	transaction.	Therefore,	
such	a	change	will	have	no	impact	on	goodwill,	nor	will	it	give	rise	to	a	gain	or	loss.	The	revision	also	changes	the	accounting	for	
losses	incurred	by	the	subsidiary	as	well	as	the	loss	of	control	of	a	subsidiary.	This	standard	will	also	be	applied	prospectively.	

	
An	explanation	of	how	the	transition	to	NZ	IFRS	has	affected	the	reported	financial	position	and	financial	performance	of	the	Group	is	
provided	in	note	24.	This	note	includes	reconciliations	of	equity	and	profit	for	comparative	periods	reported	under	NZ	GAAP	(previous	NZ	
FRS)	to	those	reported	for	those	periods	under	NZ	IFRS.	
	
(b) Basis of measurement	
The	NZ	IFRS	financial	statements	are	prepared	on	the	basis	of	historical	cost	with	the	exception	of	certain	items	for	which	specific	
accounting	policies	are	identified,	as	noted	below.	
	

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008

(c)  Estimates and judgments	
The	preparation	of	financial	statements	requires	management	to	make	judgments,	estimates	and	assumptions	that	affect	the	application	of	
policies	and	the	reported	amounts	of	assets	and	liabilities,	income	and	expenses.	Actual	results	may	differ	from	these	estimates.	
	
Estimates	and	underlying	assumptions	are	reviewed	on	an	ongoing	basis.	Revisions	to	accounting	estimates	are	recognised	in	the	period	
in	which	the	estimate	is	revised	and	in	any	future	periods	affected.	
	
In	particular,	information	about	significant	areas	of	estimation	uncertainty	and	critical	judgments	in	applying	accounting	policies	that	
have	the	most	significant	effect	on	the	amount	recognised	in	the	financial	statements	are	described	below:	
	
Generation plant and equipment 
The	Group’s	generation	assets	are	stated	at	fair	value	by	an	independent	valuer.	The	basis	of	the	valuation	is	the	net	present	value	of	the	
future	earnings	of	the	assets,	excluding	any	reduction	for	costs	associated	with	restoration	and	environmental	rehabilitation.	The	major	
inputs	and	assumptions	that	are	used	in	the	valuation	model	that	require	judgment	include	the	forecast	of	the	future	electricity	price	
path,	sales	volume	forecasts,	projected	operational	and	capital	expenditure	profiles,	capacity	and	life	assumptions	for	each	generation	
plant	and	discount	rates.	
	
During	the	year	ended	30	June	2008	management	reassessed	its	estimates	of	the	economic	useful	life	of	its	hydro	and	co-generation	
assets	(see	note	8).	
	
Retail revenue 
Management	has	exercised	judgement	in	determining	estimated	retail	sales	for	unread	gas	and	electricity	meters	at	balance	date.	
Specifically	this	involves	an	estimate	of	consumption	for	each	unread	meter,	based	on	the	customers	past	consumption	history.	The	
estimated	balance	is	recorded	in	sales	and	as	an	accrual	balance	within	receivables	and	prepayments.	
	
Restoration and environmental rehabilitation 
Liabilities	are	estimated	for	the	abandonment	and	site	restoration	of	areas	from	which	natural	resources	are	extracted.	Such	estimates	
are	valued	at	the	present	value	of	the	expenditures	expected	to	settle	the	obligation.	Key	assumptions	have	been	made	as	to	the	expected	
expenditures	to	remediate	based	on	the	expected	life	of	the	assets	employed	on	the	sites	and	an	appropriate	discount	rate	(see	note	14).	
	
Valuation of financial instruments 
Energy	contracts	are	valued	by	reference	to	the	Group’s	financial	model	for	future	electricity	prices.	Foreign	exchange	and	interest	rate	
derivatives	are	valued	based	on	quoted	market	prices.	Detailed	information	about	assumptions	and	risk	factors	relating	to	financial	
instruments	and	their	valuation	are	included	in	note	17.	
	
(d)  Functional and presentation currency	
These	financial	statements	are	presented	in	New	Zealand	Dollars	($),	which	is	the	Group’s	functional	currency.	All	financial	information	
has	been	rounded	to	the	nearest	thousand.		
	 	 	 	
(3)  Significant accounting policies	 	 	 	 	 	
(a)  Basis of consolidation	 	 	 	
Subsidiaries	 	 	 	
Subsidiaries	are	those	entities	in	which	the	Group	holds	a	controlling	interest	either	directly,	indirectly	or	beneficially	in	the	entity.	
The	purchase	method	of	accounting	is	used	to	account	for	the	acquisition	of	subsidiaries	by	the	Group.	The	cost	of	the	acquisition	is	
measured	as	the	fair	value	of	the	assets	given,	equity	instruments	issued	and	liabilities	incurred	or	assumed	at	the	date	of	exchange,	
plus	costs	directly	attributable	to	the	acquisition.	Identifiable	assets	acquired	and	liabilities	and	contingent	liabilities	assumed	in	a	
business	combination	are	initially	measured	at	their	fair	values	at	the	acquisition	date,	irrespective	of	the	extent	of	any	minority	interest.	
The	excess	of	the	cost	of	acquisition	over	the	fair	value	of	the	Group’s	share	of	the	identifiable	net	assets	acquired	is	recorded	as	
goodwill.	If	the	cost	of	the	acquisition	is	less	than	the	fair	value	of	the	identifiable	net	assets	of	the	subsidiary	acquired,	the	difference	is	
recognised	in	the	income	statement.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
All	material	inter-company	transactions,	balances	and	unrealised	profits	and	losses	arising	from	transactions	between	Group	
companies	are	eliminated	on	consolidation.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Associates	 	 	 	
Associates	are	those	entities	in	which	the	Company	holds	an	equity	interest	and	over	which	the	Company	has	the	capacity	to	significantly	affect	
but	not	unilaterally	determine	the	operating	and/or	financial	policy	decisions.	Investments	in	associates	are	accounted	for	by	the	equity	
method	of	accounting	and	are	initially	recognised	at	cost.	The	Group’s	investments	in	associates	includes	goodwill	identified	on	acquisition.	
	 	 	
The	Group’s	share	of	its	associates’	post	acquisition	profits	or	losses	is	recognised	in	the	income	statement,	and	its	share	of	post	
acquisition	movements	in	reserves	is	recognised	in	reserves.	The	cumulative	post	acquisition	movements	are	adjusted	against	the	
carrying	amount	of	the	investment.	 	 	 	
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Provision	is	made	for	any	impairment	in	the	value	of	investments	in	associates	where	the	estimated	recoverable	amount	is	less	than	the	
carrying	value.		 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Unrealised	gains	on	transactions	between	the	Group	and	its	associates	are	eliminated	to	the	extent	of	the	Group’s	interest	in	the	
associates.	Unrealised	losses	are	also	eliminated	unless	the	transaction	provides	evidence	of	an	impairment	of	the	asset	transferred.																																																																																						
	 	 	
Jointly controlled assets    
Jointly	controlled	assets	are	joint	arrangements	in	which	the	Group	jointly	controls	or	owns	one	or	more	assets	and	is	consequently	
entitled	to	a	share	of	the	future	economic	benefit	through	its	share	of	the	jointly	controlled	asset.	The	Group’s	interests	in	jointly	
controlled	assets	are	accounted	for	by	recognising	its	share	of	the	jointly	controlled	assets,	liabilities	incurred	jointly,	income	and	
expenses	in	the	consolidated	financial	statements.		 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Where	an	entity	becomes	or	ceases	to	be	a	Group	entity	during	the	year,	the	results	of	that	entity	are	included	in	the	net	profit	of	the	
Group	from	the	date	of	acquisition	or	up	to	the	date	of	disposal.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
(b) Property, plant and equipment	 	 	 	
Owned assets	 	 	 	
Generation	assets,	which	include	freehold	land	and	buildings	and	generation	plant	and	equipment,	are	measured	at	fair	value	based	on	
periodical	valuations	by	third	party	valuation	experts,	less	accumulated	depreciation	and	less	any	impairment	recognised	after	the	date	
of	the	revaluation.	The	underlying	assumptions	are	reviewed	for	reasonableness	on	an	annual	basis	to	ensure	that	recorded	value	is	not	
materially	different	to	fair	value.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Costs	incurred	in	obtaining	a	resource	consent	are	capitalised	and	recognised	as	a	non-current	asset	where	it	is	probable	they	will	give	
rise	to	future	economic	benefit.	These	costs	are	amortised	over	the	life	of	the	consent	on	a	straight-line	basis.	 	
	 	
Office	land	and	buildings	are	measured	at	fair	value	based	on	periodical	valuations	as	determined	by	third	party	valuation	experts,	less	
accumulated	depreciation	on	buildings	and	less	any	impairment	losses	since	the	last	revaluation.	 	 	
	
Any	surplus	on	revaluation	of	an	individual	item	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	is	transferred	directly	to	the	asset	revaluation	reserve	
unless	it	offsets	a	previous	decrease	in	value	recognised	in	the	income	statement,	in	which	case	it	is	recognised	in	the	income	statement.	
A	deficit	on	revaluation	of	an	individual	item	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	is	recognised	in	the	income	statement	in	the	period	it	
arises	where	it	exceeds	any	surplus	previously	transferred	to	the	asset	revaluation	reserve.	Any	accumulated	depreciation	at	the	date	of	
the	revaluation	is	eliminated	against	the	gross	carrying	amount	of	the	asset	and	the	net	amount	is	restated	to	the	revalued	amount	of	the	
asset.	Additions	to	property,	plant	and	equipment	stated	at	valuation	subsequent	to	the	most	recent	valuation	are	recorded	at	cost.		
	 	 	 	
All	other	items	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	are	recorded	at	cost.	 	 	 	
	
The	cost	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	purchased	comprises	the	consideration	given	to	acquire	the	assets	plus	other	directly	
attributable	costs	incurred	in	bringing	the	assets	to	the	location	and	condition	necessary	for	their	intended	service.	 	
	 	 	
The	cost	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	constructed	by	the	Group,	including	capital	work	in	progress,	includes	the	cost	of	all	materials	
used	in	construction,	direct	labour	specifically	associated	and	an	appropriate	proportion	of	variable	and	fixed	overheads.	Financing	costs	
attributable	to	a	project	are	capitalised	at	the	Group’s	specific	project	finance	interest	rate,	where	these	meet	certain	time	and	monetary	
materiality	limits.	Costs	cease	to	be	capitalised	as	soon	as	an	asset	is	ready	for	productive	use.	 	 	
	 	
Where	appropriate,	the	cost	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	includes	site	preparation	costs,	installation	costs,	and	the	cost	of	obtaining	
resource	consents.	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
Provision	is	made	for	any	impairment	in	the	value	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	where	the	estimated	recoverable	amount	is	less	than	
the	carrying	value.	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
Where	property,	plant	and	equipment	is	disposed	of,	the	gain	or	loss	recognised	in	the	income	statement	is	calculated	as	the	difference	
between	the	sale	price	and	the	carrying	value	of	the	property,	plant	and	equipment.	 	 	 	
	
Development of exploration assets	 	 	 	 	
Development	costs	of	successful	efforts	are	capitalised	and	amortised	on	a	units	of	production	basis	over	the	estimated	life	of	the	field	
commencing	from	the	first	year	of	commercial	production.	Any	subsequent	impairment	in	the	value	of	unamortised	development	costs	
is	charged	to	the	income	statement.	 	 	 	 	
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Depreciation	 	 	 	 	
Depreciation	is	provided	on	a	straight-line	basis	on	all	property,	plant	and	equipment	other	than	freehold	land,	capital	work	in	progress	
and	exploration	and	evaluation	assets,	so	as	to	write	down	the	assets	to	their	estimated	residual	value	over	their	expected	useful	lives.		
	 	 	
The	annual	depreciation	rates	are	as	follows:	 	 	 	
Office	land	and	buildings	 1-2%	 	 	
Generation	assets:	 	 	 	
	 •		Hydro	and	co-generation	 1-15%	 	 	
	 •		Other	generation	 5-10%	 	 	
Meters																																											 3-33%	 	 	
Computer	hardware	and	tangible	software	 15-33%	 	 	
Other	plant	and	equipment	 10-33%	 	 	
Motor	vehicles	 20%	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Distinction between capital and revenue expenditure	 	 	 	
Capital	expenditure	is	defined	as	all	expenditure	on	the	purchase	or	creation	of	a	new	asset,	and	any	expenditure	that	results	in	a	
significant	improvement	to	the	original	functionality	of	an	existing	asset.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Revenue	expenditure	is	defined	as	expenditure	that	restores	an	asset	to	its	original	operating	capability	and	all	expenditure	incurred	in	
maintaining	and	operating	the	business.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
(c)  Exploration and evaluation expenditure	 	 	 	
Exploration	and	evaluation	expenditure	incurred	by	the	Group	is	accounted	for	using	the	successful	effort	method.	 	
	 	
Exploration	expenditure,	which	includes	geological,	geochemical	and	geophysical	costs,	is	recognised	in	the	income	statement	in	the	period	
incurred	except	where	future	benefits	are	expected	to	exceed	such	expenditure	in	which	case	it	is	included	in	capital	work	in	progress.	
	 	 	 	 	
Land	access	rights	for	exploration	activities	are	amortised	over	the	life	of	the	right.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Exploratory	drilling	costs	are	initially	deferred	and	are	subject	to	regular	review	to	confirm	the	ability	to	develop	or	otherwise	extract	
value	from	expenditure.	If	an	exploratory	field	is	appraised	as	unsuccessful,	such	costs	are	charged	to	the	income	statement.		
	 	 	
(d)  Rehabilitation costs	 	 	 	
Estimations	are	made	for	the	expected	cost	of	environmental	rehabilitation	of	commercial	sites	that	require	some	level	of	reinstatement	
resulting	from	present	operations.	Any	liability	is	recognised	when	an	exposure	is	identified	and	the	rehabilitation	costs	can	be	
reasonably	estimated.	Any	changes	in	the	estimated	liability	is	accounted	for	in	accordance	with	IFRIC	1.	 	
	 	
(e)  Insurance	 	 	 	
The	Group’s	property,	plant	and	equipment	is	predominantly	concentrated	at	power	station	locations	which	have	the	potential	to	sustain	
major	losses	through	damage	to	plant	and	resultant	consequential	costs.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
To	minimise	the	financial	impact	of	such	exposures,	the	major	portion	of	the	assessed	risk	is	transferred	to	insurance	companies	by	
taking	out	insurance	policies	with	appropriate	counterparties.	Any	uninsured	loss	is	expensed	to	the	income	statement	in	the	year	in	
which	the	loss	is	incurred.

(f)  Intangible assets 	 	 	
Goodwill 	 	 	 	
Goodwill	on	acquisition	is	initially	measured	at	cost	being	the	excess	of	the	cost	of	the	business	combination	over	the	acquirer’s	interest	
in	the	net	fair	value	of	the	identifiable	assets,	liabilities	and	contingent	liabilities.	Following	initial	recognition,	goodwill	is	measured 
at	cost	less	any	accumulated	impairment	losses.	Goodwill	on	acquisitions	of	subsidiaries	is	included	in	intangible	assets.	Goodwill	on	
acquisitions	of	associates	is	included	in	investments	in	associates.	Goodwill	is	tested	annually	for	impairment.	 	
	 	
Software	 	 	 	
Acquired	computer	software	licenses	are	capitalised	on	the	basis	of	the	costs	incurred	to	acquire	and	bring	to	use	the	specific	software.	
These	costs	are	amortised	over	their	estimated	useful	lives	of	between	2.5	-	5	years.	As	these	assets	are	deemed	to	have	a	finite	life	
impairment	testing	will	only	be	performed	when	there	is	an	indication	that	the	intangible	asset	may	be	impaired.	 	
	 	
Rights	 	 	 	
Rights,	including	land	access	rights	acquired	to	further	the	Group’s	development	programme,	are	stated	at	cost	less	accumulated	
amortisation	and	any	accumulated	impairment	losses.	Rights,	which	have	a	finite	life,	are	amortised	over	the	life	of	the	rights	(between	3	
and	11	years).	Testing	for	impairment	will	only	arise	when	there	is	an	indication	that	the	asset	may	be	impaired.	 	
	 	
(g)  Impairment	 	 	 	
Assets	that	have	an	indefinite	useful	life	are	not	subject	to	amortisation	and	are	tested	annually	for	impairment.	Other	assets	that	are	
subject	to	amortisation	are	reviewed	for	impairment	whenever	events	or	changes	in	circumstances	indicate	that	the	carrying	amount	
may	not	be	recoverable.	Evaluation	and	exploration	assets	are	assessed	for	impairment	when	there	is	an	indication	that	the	carrying	
amount	of	the	asset	may	exceed	its	recoverable	amount.		 	 	 	
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An	impairment	loss	is	recognised	for	the	amount	by	which	the	asset’s	carrying	amount	exceeds	its	recoverable	amount.	The	recoverable	
amount	is	the	higher	of	an	asset’s	fair	value	less	costs	to	sell	and	value	in	use.	For	the	purposes	of	assessing	impairment,	assets	are	
grouped	at	the	lowest	levels	for	which	there	are	largely	independent	cash	inflows	(cash	generating	units).	 	
	 	
Non-financial	assets	other	than	goodwill	that	suffered	an	impairment	are	tested	for	possible	reversal	of	the	impairment	whenever	
events	or	changes	in	circumstances	indicate	that	the	impairment	may	have	been	reversed.	 	 	
	
(h) Inventories	 	 	 	
Inventories	are	stated	at	the	lower	of	cost	or	net	realisable	value.	Cost	is	determined	on	a	weighted	average	basis	and	includes	
expenditure	incurred	in	acquiring	the	inventories	and	bringing	them	to	their	existing	condition	and	location.	 	
	 	 	 	
(i)  Cash flow statement	 	 	 	
The	following	are	the	definitions	of	the	terms	used	in	the	cash	flow	statement:	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
•			 Cash	includes	cash	on	hand	and	bank	current	accounts.	 	 	 	
•			 Investing	activities	are	those	activities	relating	to	the	acquisition,	holding	and	disposal	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	and	of		
	 	 investments.	Investments	can	include	securities	not	falling	within	the	definition	of	cash.	 	 	
•		 Financing	activities	are	those	activities	that	result	in	changes	in	the	size	and	composition	of	the	equity	structure	of	the	Group.	This	

includes	both	equity	and	debt	not	falling	within	the	definition	of	cash.	Dividends	paid	in	relation	to	equity	structure	are	included	in	
financing	activities.	 	 	 	

•		 Operating	activities	include	all	transactions	and	other	events	that	are	not	investing	or	financing	activities.	 	
	 	

The	cash	flow	statement	includes	net	cash	flows	from	loan	advances	as	the	rollover	of	loans	and	deposits	is	covered	by	an	arranged	
finance	facility.	 	 	 	

(j)  Financial instruments	 	 	 	
Financial	instruments	are	recognised	in	the	financial	statements	when	the	Group	has	become	party	to	the	contract.	They	include	cash	
balances,	receivables,	payables,	investments	and	loans.	In	addition	members	of	the	Group	are	party	to	financial	instruments	to	meet	
future	financing	needs	and	to	reduce	exposure	to	fluctuations	in	foreign	currency	exchange	rates	and	energy	prices.	These	financial	
instruments	include	cross-guarantees	of	related	entities	guaranteed	indebtedness,	swaps,	options,	foreign	currency	forward	exchange	
contracts	and	energy	contracts.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Cash and cash equivalents	 	 	 	
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	comprise	cash	at	bank	and	in	hand	and	short	term	deposits	with	an	original	maturity	of	three	months	or	less	
that	are	readily	converted	to	known	amounts	of	cash	and	which	are	subject	to	an	insignificant	risk	of	changes	in	value.		 	
	 	
Interest	income	on	cash	and	cash	equivalent	balances	is	recognised	as	interest	accrues	using	the	effective	interest	method.	
	 	 	
Receivables and payables	 	 	 	
Receivables	and	payables	are	initially	recorded	at	fair	value	and	subsequently	carried	at	amortised	cost	using	the	effective	interest	method,	
less	(in	the	case	of	trade	receivables)	any	provision	for	impairment	(doubtful	debts).	A	provision	for	impairment	of	trade	receivables	is	
established	when	there	is	objective	evidence	that	the	Group	will	not	be	able	to	collect	all	amounts	due	according	to	the	original	terms	of	
receivables.	Financial	difficulties	of	the	debtor,	default	payments	or	overdue	debts	are	considered	objective	evidence	of	impairment.	
	 	 	 	
Investments	 	 	 	
The	Group	classifies	its	investments	in	the	following	categories:	financial	assets	held	at	fair	value	through	the	income	statement,	held	to	
maturity	investments	and	available	for	sale	financial	assets.	The	classification	depends	on	the	purpose	for	which	the	investments	were	
acquired.	Management	determines	the	initial	classification	of	its	investments	upon	acquisition.		 	 	
	
Realised	and	unrealised	gains	and	losses	on	investments	classified	as	financial	assets	at	fair	value	through	the	income	statement	are	
included	in	the	income	statement	in	the	period	in	which	they	arise.	Investments	classified	as	available	for	sale	are	held	at	fair	value	and	
any	related	unrealised	gains	and	losses	are	recognised	in	equity.	Held	to	maturity	investments	are	carried	at	amortised	cost.	
	 	 	
Loans	 	 	 	
Loans	are	initially	recorded	at	fair	value	net	of	transaction	costs	incurred.	Loans	are	subsequently	stated	at	amortised	cost;	any	
difference	between	the	proceeds	(net	of	transaction	costs)	and	the	redemption	value	is	recognised	in	the	income	statement	over	the	
period	of	the	loan	using	the	effective	interest	method.	Borrowing	costs	are	expensed	to	the	income	statement	unless	they	relate	to	
qualifying	assets	in	which	case	they	are	capitalised	to	assets	under	construction.	 	 	 	
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Foreign exchange and interest rate derivatives    
The	Group	enters	various	financial	instruments	for	the	purpose	of	reducing	its	exposure	to	fluctuations	in	interest	rates	and	foreign	
exchange	rates.	These	are	designated	as	financial	instruments	at	fair	value	through	the	income	statement.	 	
	 	
Derivative	contracts	are	classified	as	held	for	trading	and	are	initially	recognised	at	fair	value	on	the	date	a	derivative	contract	is	entered	
into	and	are	subsequently	re-measured	to	fair	value.	The	method	of	recognising	the	resulting	gain	or	loss	depends	on	whether	the	
derivative	is	recognised	as	a	hedging	instrument,	and	if	so,	the	type	of	hedge.	The	Group	designates	certain	derivatives	as	either:	a)	
hedges	of	the	fair	value	of	recognised	assets	and	liabilities	or	a	firm	commitment	(fair	value	hedge);	or	b)	hedges	of	highly	probable	
forecast	transactions	or	variable	interest	cash	flows	on	recognised	liabilities	(cash	flow	hedge).	 	 	
	
Changes	in	the	fair	value	of	derivatives	that	are	designated	and	qualify	as	fair	value	hedges	are	recorded	in	the	income	statement,	
together	with	any	changes	in	the	fair	value	of	the	hedged	asset	or	liability	that	are	attributable	to	the	hedged	risk.	 	
	 	
The	effective	portion	of	changes	in	the	fair	value	of	derivatives	that	are	designated	and	qualify	as	cash	flow	hedges	are	recognised	in	
equity.	The	gain	or	loss	relating	to	the	ineffective	portion	is	recognised	immediately	in	the	income	statement.	Ineffectiveness	arises	
where	the	movement	in	the	fair	value	of	the	derivative	instrument	does	not	perfectly	offset	the	movement	in	the	fair	value	or	cash	flows	
of	the	hedged	item.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Amounts	included	in	equity	are	reallocated	to	the	income	statement	in	the	periods	when	the	hedged	item	will	affect	profit	or	loss.	
However,	when	the	forecast	transaction	that	is	hedged	results	in	the	recognition	of	a	non-financial	asset	or	a	liability,	the	gains	and	
losses	previously	deferred	in	equity	are	transferred	and	included	in	the	initial	measurement	of	the	asset	or	liability.	 	
	
Any	gains	or	losses	on	derivatives	that	do	not	qualify	for	hedge	accounting	are	recognised	immediately	in	the	income	statement.	
	
Energy contracts 
The	Group	has	entered	into	a	number	of	contracts	to	manage	its	exposure	to	price	fluctuations	on	the	electricity	spot	market.	These	
contracts	are	in	the	form	of	power	supply	agreements,	contracts	for	difference,	and	option	based	instruments.	They	are	not	undertaken	
for	speculative	purposes.	These	energy	contracts	establish	the	price	at	which	future	specified	quantities	of	electricity	are	purchased,	
sold	or	otherwise	exchanged.	These	contracts	are	designated	as	financial	instruments	at	fair	value	through	the	income	statement.	
	
Energy	contracts	are	a	form	of	derivative	and	are	accounted	for	on	the	same	basis	as	other	derivatives	described	above.	
	
The	fair	value	of	energy	contracts	is	based	on	the	net	present	value	of	anticipated	cash	flows	from	each	contract.	
	
(k) Foreign currencies 
Transactions	in	foreign	currencies	are	recognised	in	the	functional	currency	of	the	relevant	operating	unit.	
	
Foreign	currency	transactions	are	translated	to	the	functional	currency	using	the	spot	rate	on	that	transaction	date.	At	balance	date	
monetary	assets	and	liabilities	denominated	in	foreign	currencies	are	translated	at	the	closing	rate.	Exchange	variations	arising	
from	these	translations	and	the	settlement	of	these	items	are	recognised	in	the	income	statement,	except	when	deferred	in	equity	as	
qualifying	cash	flow	hedges.	
	
The	assets	and	liabilities	of	independent	foreign	operations,	whose	functional	currency	is	not	the	New	Zealand	dollar,	are	translated	at	
the	exchange	rates	ruling	at	balance	date.	Revenue	and	expense	items	are	translated	at	the	spot	rate	at	the	transaction	date	or	a	rate	
approximating	that	rate.	Exchange	differences	are	taken	to	the	foreign	currency	translation	reserve.	
	
(l)  Employee entitlements	 	 	 	
A	liability	for	employee	entitlements	is	recognised	for	benefits	earned	by	employees	but	not	yet	received	at	balance	date.	Where	payment	
is	expected	to	be	within	twelve	months	of	balance	date,	the	liability	is	the	amount	expected	to	be	paid	by	the	Group.	Where	payment	
is	expected	to	be	longer	term	the	liability	is	determined	by	discounting	the	expected	future	cash	flows	at	a	pre-tax	discount	rate	that	
reflects	current	assessments	of	the	time	value	of	money.	Where	discounting	is	used,	the	increase	in	the	provision	due	to	the	passage	of	
time	is	recognised	as	a	finance	cost.	 	 	 	
    
(m)  Operating leases	 	 	 	
Operating	lease	payments	are	representative	of	the	pattern	of	benefits	derived	from	the	leased	assets	and	accordingly	are	charged	to	the	
income	statement	in	the	periods	in	which	they	are	incurred	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	lease	term.	 	
	 	 	 	
(n) Revenue	 	 	 	
Revenue	recognised	in	the	income	statement	includes	the	amounts	received	and	receivable	for	energy	and	related	energy	services	
supplied	to	customers	in	the	ordinary	course	of	business.	Revenue	is	stated	exclusive	of:	 	 	
	 	 	
•		 distribution	costs	paid	to	lines	companies	as	collected	from	customers	on	their	behalf;	and	 	
•		 goods	and	services	tax	collected	from	customers.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Revenue	includes	the	value	of	units	assessed	as	being	recorded	on	meters	as	at	balance	date,	but	for	which	invoices	have	not		
yet	been	rendered.	 	 	 	
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(o) Income tax	 	 	 	
The	income	tax	expense	charged	to	the	income	statement	includes	both	the	current	year’s	provision	and	the	income	tax	effect	of:	
	 	 	
•	 taxable	temporary	differences,	except	those	arising	from	initial	recognition	of	goodwill;	and	 	 	
•	 deductible	temporary	differences	to	the	extent	that	it	is	probable	that	they	will	be	utilised.	 	 	
	
Deferred	tax	is	provided	in	full,	using	the	liability	method,	on	temporary	differences	arising	between	the	tax	bases	of	the	assets	and	
liabilities	and	their	carrying	amounts	in	the	NZ	IFRS	consolidated	financial	statements.	A	deferred	tax	asset	is	only	recognised	to	the	
extent	that	there	will	be	future	taxable	profit	to	utilise	the	temporary	difference.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Temporary	differences	arising	from	transactions,	other	than	business	combinations,	affecting	neither	accounting	profit	nor	taxable	profit	
on	initial	recognition	are	not	recognised.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Deferred	tax	is	not	recognised	on	temporary	differences	associated	with	investments	in	subsidiaries	and	joint	ventures	because:	
	 	 	
•	 the	parent	company	is	able	to	control	the	timing	of	the	reversal	of	the	differences;	and	 	 	
•	 they	are	not	expected	to	reverse	in	the	foreseeable	future.	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
(p) Goods and Services Tax	 	 	 	
The	income	statement	and	cash	flow	statement	have	been	prepared	so	that	all	components	are	stated	exclusive	of	GST.	All	items	in	the	
balance	sheet	are	stated	net	of	GST	with	the	exception	of	receivables	and	payables	which	include	GST	invoiced.	 	
	 	 	
(q) Capital and reserves	 	 	 	 	
Cash flow hedge reserve	 	 	 	 	
The	cash	flow	hedge	reserve	comprises	the	effective	portion	of	the	cumulative	net	change	in	the	fair	value	of	cash	flow	hedging	
instruments	related	to	hedged	transactions	that	have	not	yet	occurred.	 	 	 	
	
Asset revaluation reserve	 	 	 	 	
The	asset	revaluation	reserve	is	used	to	record	the	increments	and	decrements	in	the	fair	value	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	
identified	as	being	carried	at	valuation.	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
(r) Segment reporting	 	 	 	 	
A	reportable	segment	is	either	a	business	segment	or	a	geographical	segment.	The	Group	operates	in	one	geographical	segment	being	
New	Zealand.	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
A	business	segment	is	a	distinguishable	component	of	the	entity	that	is	engaged	in	providing	an	individual	product	or	service,	or	group	of	
products	or	services,	that	is	subject	to	risks	and	returns	that	are	different	from	those	of	other	business	segments	and	whose	operating	
results	are	regularly	reviewed	by	the	entity’s	chief	operating	decision	maker	and	for	which	discrete	financial	information	is	available.	
	 	 	 	
The	Group	operates	as	a	vertically	integrated	energy	business	that	participates	in	all	aspects	of	the	value	chain	to	manage	risk	and	
maximise	shareholder	value	as	a	whole.	All	parts	of	the	value	chain	are	interdependent	on	each	other	with	a	significant	proportion	of	
revenue	and/or	expenditure	between	the	components	being	internal.	Consequently	there	are	no	separately	reportable	segments.	
	 	 	
(s) Related parties	 	 	 	
The	Group	considers	its	related	parties	to	be	key	management	personnel,	its	associates	and	its	joint	venture	partners.	 	
	 	
Key	management	personnel	are	those	people	with	responsibility	and	authority	for	planning,	directing	and	controlling	the	activities	of	the	
entity.	Key	management	personnel	for	the	Group	are	considered	to	be	the	Directors	and	Senior	Management.
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NOTE 2. Profit before income tax
    Group Group Company Company 
   Note 2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

	
Auditing	the	financial	statements	 	 	 293		 273		 221 	 192	
IFRS	related	audit	services	 	 	  0		 118		 0 	 118	
Total	auditor’s	remuneration	 	 	 	 293		 391		 221 	 310	

Donations	 	 	 74		 82		 74 	 82	
Rental	and	operating	lease	costs	 	 	 3,198	 2,587	 3,198	 2,587
Net	(gain)/loss	on	sale	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 	 (30)	 823		 (30)	 833	
Foreign	currency	exchange	(gains)/losses	 	 	 (135)	 126		 (539)	 428	

Interest	charged	 	 	 46,572	 39,983	 46,312	 39,949
Interest	capitalised	to	capital	work	in	progress	 	 	 	 (20,029)	 (4,735)	 (20,029)	 (4,735)
Total	interest	expense	 	 	 	 26,543	 35,248	 26,283	 35,214
	 	 	 	 	
Depreciation	 	 8	 74,267	 83,554	 67,066	 69,943
Amortisation	of	intangible	assets	 	 9	 8,624	 4,739	 8,315	 4,430
Amortisation	of	fair	value	on	transition	 	 	 	 3,634	 (3,345)	 3,634	 (3,345)
	 	 	 	 86,525	 84,948	 79,015	 71,028
	 	 	 	 	

NOTE 3. Income tax     
    Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

(i)  Income tax expense	 	 	 	 	
Profit	before	income	tax	 	 	 	 161,861	 126,469	 193,015	 158,552
Prima	facie	income	tax	expense	calculated	at	33%	on	the	profit	before	income	tax	 	 (53,414)	 (41,735)	 (63,695)	 (52,322)
Increase/(decrease)	in	income	tax	due	to:	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 •		effect	of	tax	rate	change	on	deferred	tax	 	 	 1,857	 13,351	 1,701	 13,121
	 •		share	of	associates’	tax	paid	earnings		 	 	 769	 990	 (29)	 (10)
	 •		other	permanent	differences	 	 	 (268)	 (2,115) (239) (2,480)
	 	 	 	 	
Over/(under)	provision	in	prior	period	 	 	 	 146 	 (37)	 146 	 29	
Income tax expense attributable to profit from ordinary activities 	 	 (50,910)	 (29,546)	 (62,116)	 (41,662)
	 	 	 	 	
Represented by:	 	 	 	 	
Current	tax	expense	 	 	 (75,086)	 (44,271)	 (75,875)	 (64,655)
Deferred	tax	expense	recognised	in	the	income	statement	 	 	 24,176	 14,725	 13,759	 22,993
Total income tax expense	 	 	 	 (50,910)	 (29,546)	 (62,116)	 (41,662)

(ii) Current tax recognised directly in equity	 	 	 	 	
Current	tax	recognised	directly	in	equity	 	 	 	 21,671	 4,944	 21,671	 4,944

      Company Company 
        2008  2007
        $000  $000

(iii) Imputation Credits	 	 	 	 	
Balance	at	beginning	of	the	year	 	 	 	 	 185,685	 142,954
Imputation	credits	attached	to	dividends	paid	during	the	year	 	 	 	 	 (27,680)	 (24,824)
Income	tax	payments	made	during	the	year	 	 	 	 	 	 43,080	 67,555
Balance	at	end	of	the	year	 	 	 	 	 	 201,085	 185,685

At	balance	date	the	imputation	credits	available	to	the	shareholder	were:	 	 	 	 	
Through	direct	shareholding	in	the	Company	 	 	 	  201,029	 168,866
Through	indirect	interests	in	subsidiaries	 	 	 	 	 	 56 	 16,819
	 	 	 	 	 	 201,085	 185,685
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NOTE 4. Share capital

The	share	capital	is	represented	by	377,561,000	(2007:	377,561,000)	ordinary	shares	authorised,	issued	and	fully	paid.	All	shares	have	equal	voting	rights	and	
share	equally	in	dividends	and	any	surplus	on	winding	up.	These	shares	do	not	have	a	par	value.	 	 	 	

NOTE 5. Cash and cash equivalents 
	 	 	 	 	
    Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Bank	balances	 	 	 9,257	 17,038	 9,209	 16,987
Short	term	deposits	 	 	 	 24,792	 69,908	 24,792	 69,908
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows	 	 	 34,049	 86,946	 34,001	 86,895
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
Bank	balances	earn	interest	at	floating	rates	based	on	the	daily	bank	deposit	rates.			 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
Short	term	deposits	are	made	for	varying	periods	between	one	day	and	three	months,	depending	on	the	immediate	cash	requirements	of	the	Group,	and	
earn	interest	at	the	respective	short	term	deposit	rates.	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
The	carrying	amounts	of	cash	and	cash	equivalents	represent	fair	value.	 	 	 	 	

NOTE 6. Receivables and prepayments     
	 	 	 	
    Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Trade	receivables	and	accruals	 	 	 290,231	 152,786	 258,556	 119,932
Allowance	for	impairment	loss	 	 	 	 (2,771)	 (2,396)	 (2,771)	 (2,396)
Net	trade	receivables	and	accruals	 	 	 287,460	 150,390	 255,785	 117,536
Prepayments	 	 	 3,210	 4,074	 3,128	 3,792
Related	party	receivables	 	 	 	 0 	 0		 368,418	 257,917
	 	 	 	 290,670	 154,464	 627,331	 379,245
	 	 	 	 	 	
Trade	receivables	are	non-interest	bearing	and	are	generally	on	30	day	terms.		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
Movements in the allowance for impairment loss were as follows: 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
Balance	at	beginning	of	the	year	 	 	 2,396	 1,552	 2,396	 1,552
Charge	for	the	year	 	 	 1,924	 2,474	 1,924	 2,474
Amounts	written	off	 	 	 	 (1,549)	 (1,630)	 (1,549)	 (1,630)
Balance	at	end	of	the	year	 	 	 	 2,771	 2,396	 2,771	 2,396
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
Receivables	past	due	but	not	considered	impaired	 	 	 10,538	 7,858	 10,538	 7,858
	 	 	 	 	
For	terms	and	conditions	of	related	party	receivables	refer	to	note	21.	 	 	 	 	

NOTE 7. Inventories     
     
    Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Consumable	stores	 	 	 5,817	 4,090	 5,816	 3,775
Spare	parts	 	 	 	 704 	 576		 704 	 576	
	 	 	 	 6,521	 4,666	 6,520	 4,351
	 	 	 	 	
Inventories	are	held	to	service	and	repair	operating	plant.	 	 	 	 	
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NOTE 8. Property, plant and equipment

Hydro  
and co-

generation 
assets   

at fair value

Other 
generation 

assets  
at fair value

Other  
plant and 

equipment  
at cost

Meters  
at cost

Office land  
and buildings  

at fair value

Computer 
hardware 

and tangible 
software  

at cost
Vehicles  

at cost

Capital work  
in progress 

at cost Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Group

Balance at 1 July 2006	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Cost	or	valuation	 	 2,266,958	 65,933	 18,086	 59,626	 5,527	 14,664	 1,550	 165,507	 2,597,851
Accumulated	depreciation	 	 (68,601)	 (5,674)	 (12,981)	 (24,219)	 (711)	 (10,507)	 (605)	 0		 (123,298)
Net	book	value	 	 2,198,357	 60,259	 5,105	 35,407	 4,816	 4,157	 945		 165,507	 2,474,553
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Year ended 30 June 2007	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Opening	net	book	value	 	 2,198,357	 60,259	 5,105	 35,407	 4,816	 4,157	 945		 165,507	 2,474,553	 	
Additions,	including	transfers	 	 	
from	capital	work	in	progress	 	 40,744	 9,281	 1,424	 3,400	 1,206	 4,128	 438		 99,734	 160,355	 	
Disposals	 	 0		 0		 0		 (8)	 0		 0		 (12)	 (6,553)	 (6,573)	 	
Revaluation	 	 0		 0		 0		 0		 1,877	 0		 0		 0		 1,877	
Impairment	of	exploration	 	 	
expenditure	 	 0		 0		 0		 0		 0		 0		 0		 (19,607)	 (19,607)	
Depreciation	charge	for	the	year	 	 (69,752)	 (5,957)	 (1,150)	 (3,513)	 (360)	 (2,493)	 (329)	 0		 (83,554)	
Closing	net	book	value	 	 2,169,349	 63,583	 5,379	 35,286	 7,539	 5,792	 1,042	 239,081	 2,527,051

Balance at 30 June 2007	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Cost	or	valuation	 	 2,307,610	 75,214	 19,505	 63,012	 7,539	 18,777	 1,880	 239,081	 2,732,618	
Accumulated	depreciation	 	 (138,261)	 (11,631)	 (14,126)	 (27,726)	 0		 (12,985)	 (838)	 0		 (205,567)	
Net	book	value	 	 2,169,349	 63,583	 5,379	 35,286	 7,539	 5,792	 1,042	 239,081	 2,527,051

Year ended 30 June 2008	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Opening	net	book	value	 	 2,169,349 63,583 5,379 35,286 7,539 5,792 1,042 239,081 2,527,051 	
Additions,	including	transfers		 	 	
from	capital	work	in	progress	 	 32,437 3,642 5,371 5,898 20  4,375 574  186,517 238,834
Disposals	 	 0  0  (159) 0  0  (318) (378) 0  (855)
Revaluation	 	 836,000 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  836,000
Impairment	of	exploration	 	 	
expenditure	 	 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  (28,059) (28,059)
Depreciation	charge	for	the	year	 	 (57,726) (6,005) (1,435) (5,053) (504) (3,190) (354) 0  (74,267)
Closing	net	book	value	 	 2,980,060 61,220 9,156 36,131 7,055 6,659 884  397,539 3,498,704
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Balance at 30 June 2008	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Cost	or	valuation	 	 2,980,060 78,856 23,973 65,834 7,676 21,247 1,815 397,539 3,577,000
Accumulated	depreciation	 	 0  (17,636) (14,817) (29,703) (621) (14,588) (931) 0  (78,296)
Net	book	value	 	 2,980,060 61,220 9,156 36,131 7,055 6,659 884  397,539 3,498,704
	 		 		 		 		 		 		 		 		 	
Exploration work in progress	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	Group	is	undertaking	a	gas	exploration	project.	Costs	of	$22.3	million	(2007:	$34.8	million)	associated	with	this	project	are	included	within	capital	work		
in	progress	and	will	remain	until	drilling	is	complete	and	the	results	evaluated.	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
Costs	that	prove	to	be	unsuccessful	are	expensed	in	full	to	the	income	statement	as	impaired	exploration	expenditure.	Impaired	exploration	expenditure	
during	the	year	to	30	June	2008		was	$28.1	million	in	the	gas	exploration	cash	generating	unit	(30	June	2007:$19.6	million).	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
Reassessment of useful life hydro and co-generation assets 	 	 	 	 	
During	the	year	ended	30	June	2008	the	Company	reassessed	the	economic	useful	lives	of	its	hydro	and	co-generation	assets.	As	a	result	of	this	review,	
remaining	useful	economic	lives	of	hydro	station	structural	assets	were	extended	from	a	range	of	between	28	–	66	years	to	100	years.	As	a	consequence	the	
depreciation	charge	for	the	year	has	been	reduced	by	$14.5	million.	 	 	 	 	 	 	
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Hydro  
and co-

generation 
assets   

at fair value

Other 
generation 

assets  
at fair value

Other  
plant and 

equipment  
at cost

Meters  
at cost

Office land  
and buildings  

at fair value

Computer 
hardware 

and tangible 
software  

at cost
Vehicles  

at cost

Capital work  
in progress 

at cost Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Company

Balance at 1 July 2006 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Cost	or	valuation	 	 2,209,752	 55		 16,817	 59,626	 5,527	 14,359	 1,404	 58,880	 2,366,420
Accumulated	depreciation	 	 (61,748)	 (5)	 (12,396)	 (24,219)	 (711)	 (10,413)	 (522)	 0		 (110,014)
Net	book	value	 	 2,148,004	 50		 4,421	 35,407	 4,816	 3,946	 882		 58,880	 2,256,406
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Year ended 30 June 2007	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Opening	net	book	value	 	 2,148,004	 50		 4,421	 35,407	 4,816	 3,946	 882		 58,880	 2,256,406
Additions,	including	transfers		 	 	
from	capital	work	in	progress	 	 5,221	 752		 1,438	 3,400	 1,206	 3,925	 440		 16,489	 32,871
Disposals	 	 0		 0		 0		 (8)	 0		 0		 (12)	 (6,054)	 (6,074)
Revaluation	 	 0		 0		 0		 0		 1,877	 0		 0		 0		 1,877
Impairment	of	exploration	 	 	
expenditure	 	 0		 0		 0		 0		 0		 0		 0		 1,460	 1,460
Depreciation	charge	for	the	year	 	 (62,249)	 (106)	 (1,019)	 (3,513)	 (360)	 (2,378)	 (318)	 0		 (69,943)
Closing	net	book	value	 	 2,090,976	 696		 4,840	 35,286	 7,539	 5,493	 992		 70,775	 2,216,597

Balance at 30 June 2007	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Cost	or	valuation	 	 2,214,972	 807		 18,241	 63,012	 7,539	 18,223	 1,763	 70,775	 2,395,332
Accumulated	depreciation	 	 (123,996)	 (111)	 (13,401)	 (27,726)	 0		 (12,730)	 (771)	 0		 (178,735)
Net	book	value	 	 2,090,976	 696		 4,840	 35,286	 7,539	 5,493	 992		 70,775	 2,216,597
	 		 		 		 		 		 		 		 		 	
Year ended 30 June 2008	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Opening	net	book	value	 	 2,090,976 696  4,840 35,286 7,539 5,493 992  70,775 2,216,597
Additions,	including	transfers	 	
from	capital	work	in	progress	 	 32,437 199  4,856 5,898 20  4,375 389  (22,925) 25,249
Acquired	through	amalgamation	 	 76,483 1,447 263  0  0  277  32  1,208 79,710
Disposals	 	 0  0  (82) 0  0  (318) (194) 0  (594)
Revaluation	 	 836,000 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  836,000
Depreciation	charge	for	the	year	 	 (56,136) (514) (1,341) (5,053) (504) (3,168) (350) 0  (67,066)
Closing	net	book	value	 	 2,979,760 1,828 8,536 36,131 7,055 6,659 869  49,058 3,089,896
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Balance at 30 June 2008	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Cost	or	valuation	 	 2,979,760 3,493 22,889 65,834 7,676 21,232 1,793 49,058 3,151,735
Accumulated	depreciation	 	 0  (1,665) (14,353) (29,703) (621) (14,573) (924) 0  (61,839)
Net	book	value	 	 2,979,760 1,828 8,536 36,131 7,055 6,659 869  49,058 3,089,896
	 		 		 		 		 		 		 		 		 	
Assets carried at fair value	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Hydro	and	co-generation	assets	shown	at	valuation	were	revalued	using	a	net	present	value	methodology	by	PricewaterhouseCoopers,	an	independent	
valuer,	as	at	30	June	2008.	As	a	consequence	of	the	revaluations,	accumulated	depreciation	on	these	assets	was	reset	to	nil.	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
Other	generation	assets	shown	at	valuation	were	revalued	using	a	net	present	value	methodology	by	PricewaterhouseCoopers,	an	independent	valuer,		
as	at	30	June	2005.	As	a	consequence	of	the	revaluation,	accumulated	depreciation	on	these	assets	was	reset	to	nil.	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
The	key	assumptions	that	are	used	in	the	valuation	include	the	forecast	of	the	future	electricity	price	path,	volumes,	projected	operational	and	capital	
expenditure,	capacity	and	life	assumptions	and	discount	rate.	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Revalued	office	land	and	buildings	are	stated	at	net	market	value	as	determined	by	Darroch	Valuations	Waikato	Limited,	an	independent	valuer,		
on	4	May	2007.	As	a	consequence	of	the	revaluation	accumulated	depreciation	was	reset	to	nil.	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	
The	carrying	amount	of	revalued	assets	had	they	been	recognised	at	cost	are	as	follows:	

    Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Hydro	and	co-generation	assets	 	 	 1,178,184	 1,178,622	 1,177,884	 1,178,322	
Other	generation	assets	 	 	 	 58,948	 61,077	 2,630	 3,138	
Office	land	and	buildings	 	 	 	 5,137	 5,661	 5,137	 5,661	
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NOTE 9. Intangible assets

  Group Group Group Company  Company Company
  Intangible   Intangible 
  software Rights Total  software  Rights  Total
  $000 $000 $000  $000  $000  $000

Balance at 1 July 2006
Cost	 	 26,998	 9,992	 36,990	 26,930	 7,240	 34,170
Accumulated	amortisation	 	 (22,572)	 (2,830)	 (25,402)	 (22,518)	 (2,355)	 (24,873)
Net	book	value	 	 4,426	 7,162	 11,588	 4,412	 4,885	 9,297
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Year ended 30 June 2007	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Opening	net	book	value	 	 4,426	 7,162	 11,588	 4,412	 4,885	 9,297
Additions	 	 12,265	 2,524	 14,789	 12,220	 2,524	 14,744
Amortisation	for	the	year	 	 (3,573)	 (1,166)	 (4,739)	 (3,564)	 (866)	 (4,430)
Closing	net	book	value	 	 13,118	 8,520	 21,638	 13,068	 6,543	 19,611
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Balance at 30 June 2007	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Cost	 	 39,263	 12,516	 51,779	 39,150	 9,764	 48,914
Accumulated	amortisation	 	 (26,145)	 (3,996)	 (30,141)	 (26,082)	 (3,221)	 (29,303)
Net	book	value	 	 13,118	 8,520	 21,638	 13,068	 6,543	 19,611
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Year ended 30 June 2008	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Opening	net	book	value	 	 13,118 8,520 21,638 13,068 6,543 19,611
Additions	 	 14,937 1  14,938 14,937 1  14,938
Acquired	through	amalgamation	 	 0  0  0  40  0  40 
Amortisation	for	the	year	 	 (7,491) (1,133) (8,624) (7,482) (833) (8,315)
Closing	net	book	value	 	 20,564 7,388 27,952 20,563 5,711 26,274
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Balance at 30 June 2008	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Cost	 	 54,200 12,517 66,717 54,175 9,765 63,940
Accumulated	amortisation	 	 (33,636) (5,129) (38,765) (33,612) (4,054) (37,666)
Net	book	value	 	 20,564 7,388 27,952 20,563 5,711 26,274 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
All	intangible	assets	have	been	assessed	as	having	a	finite	life.	Costs	are	amortised	over	the	life	of	the	assets	on	a	straight-line	basis.	 	 	 	

If	an	indication	of	impairment	arises,	the	recoverable	amount	is	estimated	and	an	impairment	loss	is	recognised	to	the	extent	that	the	recoverable	amount	is	
lower	than	the	carrying	amount.	To	date	no	such	impairment	indication	exists.	 	 	 	 	 	 	
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NOTE 10. Investment in subsidiaries      
	 	 	 	 	 	
      Company Company 
        2008  2007
        $000  $000

	 	 	 	 	 	
Shares	in	subsidiaries	at	cost	 	 	 	 	 	 123,900	 123,900
	 	 	 	 	 	
Subsidiaries include:	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
    % Holding  
Name of Entity  2008 2007  Principal Activity  Country of  Incorporation  Balance Date

Mighty	River	Power	Geothermal	Limited		
(previously	Mighty	River	Power	Investments	Limited)	 100	 100		 Investment	holding	 New	Zealand	 	 	 	30	June
Rotokawa	Geothermal	Limited		
(previously	Mighty	River	Power	(Rotokawa)	Limited)	 100	 100		 Investment	holding	 New	Zealand	 	 	 	30	June
Rotokawa	Generation	Limited	 	 100	 100		 Electricity	generation	 New	Zealand	 	 	 	30	June
Mangakino	Geothermal	Limited	 	 100	 100		 Geothermal	development	 New	Zealand	 	 	 	30	June
Kawerau	Geothermal	Limited	 	 100	 100		 Geothermal	development	 New	Zealand	 	 	 	30	June
Mighty	Geothermal	Power	Limited	 	 100	 -		 Investment	holding	 New	Zealand	 	 	 	30	June
Mighty	River	Power	(US),	LLC	 	 100	 -		 Investment	holding	 United	States	 	 	 	30	June
Mercury	Energy	Limited	 	 100	 100		 Non	trading	 	 New	Zealand	 	 	 	30	June
ECNZ	International	Limited	 	 100	 100		 Investment	holding	 New	Zealand	 	 	 	30	June
PT	ECNZ	Services	Indonesia	 	 100	 100		 Non	trading	 	 Indonesia	 	 	 	31	December
Mighty	River	Power	Gas	Investments	Limited	 	 100	 100		 Investment	holding	 New	Zealand	 	 	 	30	June
Mighty	River	Power	(Waipa)	Limited	 	 100	 100		 Investment	holding	 New	Zealand	 	 	 	30	June
	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	
The	following	entities	were	amalgamated	with	their	Parent	entity	Mighty	River	Power	Gas	Investments	Limited:	 	 	 	 	
	
	 Mighty	River	Power	(Mangaa	491)	Limited	 	 	 		 	 	
	 Mighty	River	Power	(Koru	488)	Limited	 	 	 		
	 Mighty	River	Power	(Toro	489)	Limited	 	 	 	
	 Mighty	River	Power	(Opunake	490)	Limited	 	 	 		 	 	
	 Mighty	River	Power	(Waitara	496)	Limited
	 Mighty	River	Power	(Goss)	Limited
	 Mighty	River	Power	(Kaheru)	Limited
	 Mighty	River	Power	(Trapper)	Limited
	 Mighty	River	Power	(Tawa)	Limited	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Rotokawa	Geothermal	Limited	was	amalgamated	with	its	parent	entity	Mighty	River	Power	(Rotokawa)	Limited	which	was	subsequently	renamed	to	
Rotokawa	Geothermal	Limited.	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
The	following	entities	were	amalgamated	with	Mighty	River	Power	Limited:	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 Southdown	Cogeneration	Limited	 	 	 	 	 	
	 Southdown	Cogen	Power	Limited	 	 	 	 	 	
	 Energy	Auckland	Limited	 	 	 	 	 	
	 First	Electric	Limited	 	 	 	 	 	
	 Enalysis	Limited	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
All	the	above	amalgamations	were	carried	out	by	way	of	short	form	amalgamation	under	section	222	of	the	Companies	Act	1993.	Upon	amalgamation	the	
amalgamated	company	succeeds	to	all	the	property,	rights,	powers,	privileges,	liabilities,	and	obligations	of	each	of	the	amalgamating	companies.	The	
amalgamations	have	been	accounted	for	using	the	purchase	method.	Settlement	was	effected	via	inter-company	loans.		 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
If	the	pooling	of	interest	method	had	been	used	the	Company	comparatives	would	have	been	restated	to	reflect	the	following:	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
  2007   
  $000     

Total	revenue	 	 804,699	 	 	
Net	profit	for	the	period	 104,675	 	 	
Total	assets	 2,943,396	 	 	
Total	liabilities	 1,186,964	 	 	
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NOTE 11. Investment and advances to associates       
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
    Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Balance at the beginning of the period	 	 	 	 48,541	 27,807	 18,219	 21,000

Additions	during	the	year	 	 	 33,470	 300		 151 	 300	
Equity	accounted	earnings	 	 	 2,331	 2,999	 (88)	 (30)
Equity	accounted	share	of	movements	in	reserves	 	 	 (12,879)	 20,486	 0	 0	
Repayment	of	advances	during	the	year	 	 	 	 (5,519)	 (3,051)	 (5,519)	 (3,051)
Balance at the end of the period	 	 	 	 65,944	 48,541	 12,763	 18,219
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Associates include:	 	 	 	 	 	 	
   % Interest Held      
Name of entity  2008 2007 Principal activity   Country of incorporation 

TPC	Holdings	Limited	 	 25.00	 25.00	 Investing	in	Tuaropaki	Power	Company	Limited	 	 	New	Zealand	
Bosco	Connect	Limited		
(previously	EZY	Networks	Limited)	 	 49.00	 49.00	 Retail	of	electricity	to	the	apartment	market	 	 	New	Zealand	
Hot	Water	Innovations	Limited	 	 33.46	 28.75	 Development	of	a	hot	water	storage	solution	 	 	New	Zealand	
GeoGlobal	Energy	LLC	 	 25.00	 -	 Geothermal	development	 	 	 	United	States	

During	the	year	the	Group	acquired	additional	interests	in	TPC	Holdings	Limited.	A	prepayment	of	$15	million	was	made	for	an	additional	interest	in	the	
shares	which	will	be	acquired	on	commissioning	of	an	expansion,	or	at	another	date	agreed	by	both	parties.	A	further	$8	million	was	paid	which	allowed	for	
the	extension	and	variation	of	the	shareholder	agreement.	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
During	the	year	the	Group	acquired	a	25%	holding	in	GeoGlobal	Energy	LLC	whose	principal	activity	is	to	develop	geothermal	opportunities	around	the	globe.		
	 	 	 	 	 	
Aggregate	summary	financial	information	of	associates,	not	adjusted	for	the	percentage	held	by	the	Group:	 	 	 	 	
	 	
    Group Group   
     2008 2007  
     $000 $000  
	 	
Total	revenues	 	 	 60,023	 50,424	 	
Net	profit	for	the	period	 	 	 8,735	 11,931
Total	assets	 	 	 509,018	 468,309	 	
Total	liabilities	 	 	 401,264	 346,783	 	

NOTE 12. Investment in jointly controlled assets       
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
   % Interest Held      
Name of joint venture  2008 2007 Principal activity   

Rotokawa	 	 50.00	 50.00	 Electricity	generation	 	 	
Rosedale	/	Greenmount	  77.50	 77.50	 Electricity	generation	 	 	
Silverstream	 	 93.00	 93.00	 Electricity	generation	 	 	
Waipa	 	 50.00	 50.00	 Electricity	generation	 	 	
Tirohia	  50.00	 -	 Electricity	generation	 	 	

The	Company	entered	into	a	joint	venture	agreement	on	23	November	2007	to	construct	and	operate	a	2	Megawatt	landfill	plant	at	Tirohia.

NOTE 13. Payables and accruals     
     
    Group Group  Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Trade	payables	and	accruals	 	 	 238,147	 128,397	 217,086	 110,813
Employee	entitlements	 	 	 4,034	 3,853	 4,034	 3,853
Sundry	creditors	 	 	 	 1,427	 1,344	 927 	 843	
	 	 	 	 243,608	 133,594	 222,047	 115,509
	 	 	 	 	
Trade	payables	are	non-interest	bearing	and	are	normally	settled	on	30	-	60	day	terms.		 	 	 	 	

74 ANNUAL REPORT 2008 MIGHTY RIVER POWER LIMITED 75ANNUAL REPORT 2008 MIGHTY RIVER POWER LIMITED



Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008     

	 	 	 	 	

NOTE 14. Provisions      
     

     Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

	 	 	 	 	
Balance at the beginning of the period	 	 	 	 0 	 0		 0 	 0	
	 	 	 	 	
Provisions	made	during	the	year	 	 	 1,460	 0		 0 	 0	
Unwind	of	discount	rate	 	 	 	 122 	 0		 0 	 0	
Balance at the end of the period	 	 	 	 1,582	 0		 0 	 0	
	 	 	 	 	
Provisions	have	been	recognised	for	the	abandonment	and	subsequent	restoration	of	areas	from	which	geothermal	resources	have	been	extracted.		
The	timing	of	expected	cash	out-flows	required	to	settle	the	above	provision	is	uncertain	and	will	depend	on	the	extent	of	the		geothermal	steam	resource	
for	the	well	and	the	field.

NOTE 15. Loans     
	 	 	 	 	
   Borrowing Group  Group  Company  Company  
   Currency 2008  2007  2008  2007
   Denomination $000  $000  $000  $000

Bank	loans	(unsecured)	 	 NZD	 131,683	 0		 131,683	 0	
Bank	loans	(unsecured)	 	 USD	 10,537	 0		 0 	 0	
Fixed	Rate	Bonds	(unsecured)	 	 NZD	 199,455	 199,684	 199,455	 199,684
Floating	Rate	Bonds	(unsecured)	 	 NZD	 300,831	 300,932	 300,831	 300,932
ECNZ	Residual	loans	(unsecured)	 	 	 NZD	 16,270	 16,267	 16,270	 16,267
	 	 	 	 658,776	 516,883	 648,239	 516,883
Repayable as follows:	 	 	 	 	
Within	one	year	 	 	 67,461	 0		 67,461	 0	
One	to	two	years	 	 	 91,029	 16,267	 80,492	 16,267
Two	to	five	years	 	 	 199,455	 0		 199,455	 0	
Later	than	five	years	 	 	 	 300,831	 500,616	 300,831	 500,616
	 	 	 	 658,776	 516,883	 648,239	 516,883

The	NZD	denominated	bank	loans	include	a	$50	million	unsecured	term	loan	which	is	repayable	in	full	on	6	November	2009	and	a	$30	million	unsecured	
term	loan	which	is	repayable	on	5	June	2010,	the	average	rates	for	the	year	for	both	loans	was	9.0%.	A	further	$51	million	of	drawings	under	evergreen	
revolving	advances	facilities	is	included	with	interest	rates	at	balance	date	of	8.4%.	 	 	 	 	

The	364	day	evergreen	bank	funding	facilities	provide	liquidity	support.	The	contributing	banks	have	indicated	their	support	to	provide	an	increase	in	facilities	
as	required.	 	 	 	 	

The	USD	denominated	bank	loan	relates	to	US$8	million	drawn	under	an	unsecured	term	loan	facility	which	is	repayable	in	full	on	10	February	2010.	The	
average	rate	for	the	year	was	3.2%.		 	 	 	 	

The	unsecured	and	unsubordinated	Fixed	Rate	Bonds	represent	subscriptions	of	$200	million	dated	9	May	2003.	The	Bonds	currently	carry	a	fixed	interest	
rate	of	8.36%,	which	was	reset	from	7.01%	during	the	year,	and	have	a	maturity	date	of	15	May	2013.	 	 	 	 	

The	unsecured	and	unsubordinated	Credit	Wrapped	Floating	Rate	Bonds	represent	subscriptions	of	$300	million	dated	7	September	2006	with	a	maturity	
of	7	September	2021,	unless	the	Company	exercises	its	early	repayment	option	to	redeem	the	Bonds	on	the	7th,	8th,	9th,	10th,	11th,	12th,	13th	and	14th	
anniversaries	of	the	issue	date.	 	 	 	 	

The	Company	has	entered	into	a	Master	Trust	Deed	with	the	New	Zealand	Guardian	Trust	Company	Limited,	acting	as	trustee	for	the	holders	of	the	Fixed	
and	Floating	Rate	Bonds,	in	which	the	Company	has	agreed	subject	to	certain	exceptions,	not	to	create	or	permit	to	exist	a	security	interest	over	or	affecting	
its	assets	to	secure	indebtedness,	and	to	maintain	a	minimum	level	of	shareholders’	equity.	The	Company	has	also	entered	into	a	Supplementary	Trust	Deed	
for	the	issue	of	the	$200	million	10	year	Fixed	Rate	Bonds	and	a	further	Supplementary	Trust	Deed	for	the	$300	million	Floating	Rate	Bonds.	 	 	
	 	
The	Company	has	entered	into	a	Negative	Pledge	Deed	in	favour	of	its	bank	financiers	in	which	the	Company	has	agreed	subject	to	certain	exceptions,		
not	to	create	or	permit	to	exist	a	security	interest	over	or	affecting	its	assets	to	secure	its	indebtedness,	and	to	maintain	certain	financial	ratios	in	relation		
to	the	Company.	 	 	 	 	

There	have	been	no	breaches	of	the	terms	in	either	of	these	deeds.	 	
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NOTE 16. Deferred tax      
	 	 	 	 	 	
(i)  Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities	 	 	 	 	 	
  Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities  Net Net 
  2008 2007 2008  2007  2008  2007
  $000 $000 $000  $000  $000  $000

Group

Property,	plant	and	equipment	 0 	 0		 (718,140)	 (472,598)	 (718,140)	 (472,598)
Financial	instruments	 61,813	 28,602	 (35,272)	 (33,146)	 26,541	 (4,544)
Employee	benefits	and	other	provisions	 1,116	 1,115	 0 	 0		 1,116	 1,115
Other	 	 1,037	 875		 (924)	 (1,168)	 113 	 (293)
	 	 63,966	 30,592	 (754,336)	 (506,912)	 (690,370)	 (476,320)
	 	 	 	 	 	
Company 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Property,	plant	and	equipment	 0 	 0		 (705,717)	 (461,868)	 (705,717)	 (461,868)
Financial	instruments	 61,813	 28,602	 (35,272)	 (33,146)	 26,541	 (4,544)
Employee	benefits	and	other	provisions	 960 	 960		 0 	 0		 960 	 960	
Other	 	 1,000	 875		 (924)	 (1,168)	 76 	 (293)
	 	 63,773	 30,437	 (741,913)	 (496,182)	 (678,140)	 (465,745)
	 	 	 	 	 	
(ii)  The movement in deferred tax	 	 	 	 	 	
   Property, plant Financial Employee   
    and equipment  instruments  entitlements  Other Total
   $000 $000  $000  $000  $000

Group

Balance as at 1 July 2006	 	 (531,646)	 (6,681)	 1,858	 (347)	 (536,816)
Charged/(credited)	to	the	income	statement	 	 12,393	 (10,263)	 (718)	 (38)	 1,374
Charged/(credited)	to	equity	 	 1,494	 11,822	 0		 0		 13,316
Change	in	tax	rate	recognised	in	the	income	statement	 	 12,853	 431		 (25)	 92		 13,351
Change	in	tax	rate	recognised	in	equity	 	 	 32,308	 147		 0		 0		 32,455
Balance as at 30 June 2007	 	 	 (472,598)	 (4,544)	 1,115	 (293)	 (476,320)
	 	 	 	 	 	
Balance as at 1 July 2007	 	 (472,598) (4,544) 1,115 (293) (476,320)
Charged/(credited)	to	the	income	statement	 	 4,021 17,689 95  517  22,322
Charged/(credited)	to	equity	 	 (251,425) 16,627 0  0  (234,798)
Change	in	tax	rate	recognised	in	the	income	statement	 	 1,941 118  (94) (111) 1,854
Change	in	tax	rate	recognised	in	equity	 	 	 (79) (3,349) 0  0  (3,428)
Balance as at 30 June 2008	 	 	 (718,140) 26,541 1,116 113  (690,370)
	 	 	 	 	 	
Company           	 	 	 	 	 	

Balance as at 1 July 2006	 	 (528,202)	 (6,681)	 844		 (347)	 (534,386)
Charged/(credited)	to	the	income	statement	 	 20,047	 (10,263)	 126		 (38)	 9,872
Charged/(credited)	to	equity	 	 1,494	 11,822	 0		 0		 13,316
Change	in	tax	rate	recognised	in	the	income	statement	 	 12,608	 431		 (10)	 92		 13,121
Change	in	tax	rate	recognised	in	equity	 	 	 32,185	 147		 0		 0		 32,332
Balance as at 30 June 2007	 	 	 (461,868)	 (4,544)	 960		 (293)	 (465,745)
	 	 	 	 	 	
Balance as at 1 July 2007	 	 (461,868) (4,544) 960  (293) (465,745)
Charged/(credited)	to	the	income	statement	 	 (6,201) 17,689 100  473  12,061
Charged/(credited)	to	equity	 	 (251,425) 16,627 0  0  (234,798)
Balances	acquired	on	amalgamation	 	 12,069 0  0  3  12,072
Change	in	tax	rate	recognised	in	the	income	statement	 	 1,781 118  (94) (107) 1,698
Change	in	tax	rate	recognised	in	equity	 	 	 (79) (3,349) 0  0  (3,428)
Balance as at 30 June 2008	 	 	 (705,723) 26,541 966  76  (678,140)
	 	 	
In	May	2007	the	government	announced	a	change	in	the	headline	Company	tax	rate	from	33%	to	30%.	This	change	will	be	effective	for	the	Group	from		
1	July	2008.	An	adjustment	has	been	made	to	deferred	tax	in	relation	to	temporary	differences	that	reverse	after	that	date.

Property,	plant	and	equipment	is	held	on	capital	account	for	income	tax	purposes.	Where	assets	are	revalued,	with	no	similar	adjustment	to	the	tax	base,	
a	taxable	temporary	difference	is	created	that	is	recognised	in	deferred	tax.	The	deferred	tax	liability	on	these	revaluations	is	unlikely	to	crystalise	under	
existing	income	tax	legislation.	 	 	 	 	 	 	
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NOTE 17. Financial instruments       
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Exposure	to	price,	credit,	foreign	exchange,	liquidity	and	interest	rate	risks	arises	in	the	normal	course	of	the	Group’s	business.	The	Group’s	overall	risk	
management	programme	focuses	on	the	unpredictability	of	financial	markets	and	seeks	to	minimise	potential	adverse	impacts	on	its	financial	performance.	
The	Group	uses	derivative	financial	instruments	to	hedge	these	risk	exposures.	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Fair value of derivative financial instruments	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	fair	values	of	derivative	financial	instruments	together	with	the	designation	of	their	hedging	relationship	are	summarised	below:	 	 	 	
	 	 	
    Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Current	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Interest	rate	derivative	assets	 	 	 14,734	 19,746	 14,734	 19,746
Electricity	price	derivative	assets	 	 	 27,628	 2,278	 27,628	 2,278
Foreign	exchange	rate	derivative	assets	 	 	 567 	 0		 567 	 0	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 42,929	 22,024	 42,929	 22,024
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Interest	rate	derivative	liabilities	 	 	 10,382	 9,717	 10,382	 9,717
Electricity	price	derivative	liabilities	 	 	 73,356	 330		 73,356	 330	
Foreign	exchange	rate	derivative	liabilities	 	 	 6,511	 68,937	 6,511	 68,937
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 90,249	 78,984 90,249 78,984
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Non-current	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Interest	rate	derivative	assets	 	 	 0 	 0		 0 	 0	
Electricity	price	derivative	assets	 	 	 74,113	 31,085	 74,113	 31,085
Foreign	exchange	rate	derivative	assets	 	 	 0 	 0		 0 	 0	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 74,113	 31,085	 74,113	 31,085
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Interest	rate	derivative	liabilities	 	 	 0 	 0		 0 	 0	
Electricity	price	derivative	liabilities	 	 	 115,719	 2,718	 115,719	 2,718
Foreign	exchange	rate	derivative	liabilities	 	 	 75 	 4,976	 75 	 4,976
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 115,794	 7,694	 115,794	 7,694
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Interest	rate	derivatives,	short	term	low	value	foreign	exchange	derivatives,	and	short	term	low	value	electricity	price	derivatives	that	are	traded	on	the	
Energy	Hedge	Market,	while	economic	hedges,	are	not	designated	as	hedges	under	NZ	IAS	39	but	are	treated	as	at	fair	value	through	profit	and	loss.	All	
other	foreign	exchange	and	electricity	price	derivatives	are	designated	as	cash	flow	hedges	under	NZ	IAS	39.	 	 	 	 	
	 	
The	changes	in	fair	values	of	derivative	financial	instruments	recognised	in	the	income	statement	and	equity	are	summarised	below:	 	 	 	
	 	 	
    Group and Company Group and Company
   Income Income  
   Statement Statement Equity Equity
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000	

Interest	rate	derivatives	 	 	 (6,468)	 12,902	 927 	 1,695
Electricity	price	derivatives	 	 	 603 	 484		 (114,815)	 3,344
Foreign	exchange	rate	derivatives	 	 	 32 	 (71,140)	 (276)	 (60,373)
Income	tax	on	changes	in	fair	value	taken	to	equity	 	 	 0 	 0		 34,249	 18,407
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Total	change	in	fair	value	of	financial	instruments	 	 	 (5,833)	 (57,754)	 (79,915)	 (36,927)
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Movement	in	cash	flow	hedge	reserve	 	 	 	 	 	 	
    Group  Group   Company  Company
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Opening	balance	 	 	 4,492	 39,955	 3,434	 40,361
The	effective	portion	of	cash	flow	hedges	recognised	in	the	cash	flow	hedge	reserve		 (119,692)	 (47,463)	 (119,692)	 (47,463)
Amortisation	of	fair	value	on	transition	 	 	 148	 (3,345)	 148 	 (3,345)
The	amount	transferred	to	operating	expenses	relating	to	forecast	transactions	 	
for	the	gas	exploration	program	that	are	no	longer	expected	to	occur	 	 3,486	 0	 3,486	 0
The	amount	transferred	to	balance	sheet	 	 	 1,894	 (4,526)	 1,894	 (4,526)
Equity	accounted	share	of	associates’	movements	in	reserves	 	 	 (12,879)	 1,464	 0	 0	 	
Tax	effect	of	movements	 	 	 34,249	 18,407	 34,249	 18,407
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Closing	balance	 	 	 	 (88,302)	 4,492	 (76,481)	 3,434
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	ineffectiveness	of	cash	flow	hedges	recognised	in	the	income	statement	 	 (3,832)	 (3,302)	 (3,832)	 (3,302)
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Risk management	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Risk	management	is	carried	out	by	a	central	Treasury	function	(Treasury)	for	interest	rate	and	foreign	exchange	exposures.	Risk	management	activities		
in	respect	of	electricity	exposures	are	undertaken	by	the	Trading	function	(Trading).	Both	Treasury	and	Trading	operate	under	policies	approved	by	the		
Board	of	Directors.	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Price Risk - Energy Contracts	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	Group	enters	into	energy	contracts	that	establish	a	fixed	price	at	which	future	specified	quantities	of	electricity	are	purchased,	sold	or	otherwise	
exchanged.	The	Group’s	exposure	to	spot	electricity	prices	is	limited	by	the	Board	approved	Market	and	Credit	Risk	Policy.	 	 	 	
	 	 	
On	maturity	of	the	energy	contracts,	any	difference	between	the	contract	price	and	the	spot	market	price	is	settled	between	the	parties.	Settlement	occurs	
irrespective	of	the	amount	of	electricity	actually	supplied	or	consumed.	 	 	 	 	 	 	

At	balance	date,	the	face	value	of	energy	contracts	amounted	to	$1,314.1	million	(2007:	$1,406.0	million)	with	terms	of	up	to	15	years.	 	 	 	
	 	 	
Sensitivity analysis	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	following	table	summarises	the	impact	of	increases	and	decreases	in	the	relevant	electricity	forward	prices	on	the	Group	and	Company’s	post	tax	profit	
for	the	year	and	on	other	components	of	equity.	The	sensitivity	analysis	is	based	on	the	assumption	that	the	relevant	market	prices	had	increased/decreased	
by	10	percent	with	all	other	variables	held	constant.	 	 	 	 	 	 	
   
    Group and Company Group and Company
  Impact on post tax profit Direct impact on equity 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Electricity	forward	price	increased	by	plus/minus	10%	 	 	 74 	 21	 76,948 68,526
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Credit Risk	 	 	 	 	 	 	
To	the	extent	that	the	Group	has	a	receivable	from	another	party	there	is	a	credit	risk	in	the	event	of	non-performance	by	that	counterparty.	Financial	
instruments	that	potentially	subject	the	Group	to	credit	risk	principally	consist	of	bank	balances,	receivables,	investments	and	derivative	financial	instruments.	 	
	
The	Group	manages	its	exposure	to	credit	risk	under	policies	approved	by	the	Board	of	Directors.	The	Group	performs	credit	evaluations	on	all	electricity	
customers	and	normally	requires	a	bond	from	customers	who	have	yet	to	establish	a	suitable	credit	history.	Customer	bonds	are	held	in	a	separate	bank	
account	$0.6	million	(2007:	$0.5	million)	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	Group	monitors	the	credit	quality	of	the	major	counterparties	to	its	derivative	financial	instruments	and	does	not	anticipate	non-performance	by	them.	 	

With	respect	to	energy	contracts,	the	Group	has	potential	credit	risk	exposure	to	the	counterparty	dependent	on	the	spot	market	price	at	settlement,	
although	it	does	not	anticipate	any	non	performance	of	any	obligations	which	may	exist	on	maturity	of	these	contracts.	Credit	risk	in	relation	to	these	
counterparties	is	managed	in	accordance	with	the	Market	and	Credit	Risk	Policy.	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
The	carrying	amounts	of	financial	assets	recognised	in	the	balance	sheet	best	represent	the	Group’s	maximum	exposure	to	credit	risk	at	the	reporting	date	
without	taking	account	of	any	collateral	held	by	way	of	customer	bonds.	 	 	 	 	 	 	
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Included	in	receivables	are	the	following	balances:	 	 	 	 	 	 	
    
    Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Energy	Clearing	House	Limited	 	 	 	 84,782	 32,038	 82,677	 24,226
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	Group	doesn’t	have	any	other	significant	concentrations	of	credit	risk.	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Foreign Exchange Risk	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	Group	is	exposed	to	foreign	exchange	risk	as	a	result	of	transactions	denominated	in	a	currency	other	than	the	Group’s	functional	currency,		
New	Zealand	dollars	(NZD).	The	currencies	giving	rise	to	this	risk	are	primarily	US	dollar,	Japanese	Yen,	Euro	and	Australian	dollar.	 	 	 	
	 	 	
Foreign	exchange	risk	arises	from	future	commercial	transactions	(including	interest	payments	on	long	term	borrowings	and	the	purchase	of	capital	
equipment	and	maintenance	services),	recognised	assets	and	liabilities	(including	borrowings)	and	net	investments	in	foreign	operations.	 	 	
	 	 	 	
It	is	the	Group’s	policy	to	enter	into	forward	exchange	contracts	to	support	its	capital	expenditure	programme.	To	do	this	foreign	exchange	contracts	are	
taken	out	to	hedge	spot	rate	risk	on	highly	probable	forecast	transactions	where	there	is	some	uncertainty	around	timing.	These	contracts	are	rolled	on	
an	instalment	basis	until	there	is	certainty	around	both	the	amount	and	timing	of	payments	at	which	time	the	contracts	are	rolled	into	specific	contracts	
hedging	those	cash	flows.		 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	hedged	anticipated	transactions	denominated	in	foreign	currency	are	expected	to	occur	at	various	dates	between	one	month	and	5	years	from	balance	
date.	Gains	and	losses	in	the	cash	flow	hedge	reserve	on	foreign	currency	forward	exchange	contracts	as	at	30	June	2008	will	be	released	when	the	
underlying	anticipated	transactions	occur	and	will	be	recognised	in	the	income	statement	or	capitalised	to	the	cost	of	the	asset	acquired.		 	 	
	 	 	 	
At	balance	date	the	principal	or	contract	amounts	of	foreign	currency	forward	exchange	contracts	are:	 	 	 	 	

    Group Group  Company Company 
    2008 2007  2008 2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Foreign	currency	forward	exchange	contracts	 	 	 	 334,169	 480,304	 334,169	 480,304
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	Group	has	certain	investments	in	foreign	operations	whose	net	assets	are	exposed	to	foreign	currency	translation	risk.	Currency	exposure	arising	from	
the	net	assets	of	foreign	operations	is	managed	primarily	through	borrowings	denominated	in	the	same	foreign	currency.	 	 	 	
	 	 	
At	balance	date	the	Group	has	US	funds	of	US$0.5	million	(2007:	US$1.7	million),	Japanese	funds	of	¥19	million	(2007:	¥820	million),		
Euro	funds	of	¤0.1	million	(2007:	¤0.8	million)	and	Australian	funds	of	A$0.1	million	(2007:	A$0.1	million)	held	in	foreign	currency	bank	accounts		
that	are	not	hedged.	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Sensitivity analysis	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	following	table	summarises	the	impact	on	other	components	of	equity	of	the	New	Zealand	dollar	weakening	or	strengthening	against	the	currencies	for	
which	the	Group	has	foreign	exchange	exposure.	The	sensitivity	analysis	is	based	on	the	assumption	that	the	currency	strengthens	or	weakens	by	10	percent	
with	all	other	variables	held	constant.	Post	tax	profits	would	not	be	materially	different.	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
         Group and Company
      Direct impact on equity
       2008 2007
        $000  $000

Currency	strengthens	by	10%	 	 	 	 	 29,362	 35,602
Currency	weakens	by	10%	 	 	 	 	 35,977	 43,505
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Liquidity Risk	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	Group’s	objective	is	to	maintain	a	balance	between	continuity	of	funding	and	flexibility	through	the	use	of	various	funding	sources.	The	Group’s	ability	to	
readily	attract	cost	effective	funding	is	largely	driven	by	its	credit	rating.	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Liquidity	risk	is	monitored	by	continuously	forecasting	cash	flows,	and	matching	these	to	funding	facilities.	Policy	requires	that	prescribed	headroom	is	
available	in	undrawn	facilities	to	cover	unanticipated	needs.	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Interest Rate Risk	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	Group	has	exposure	to	interest	rate	risk	to	the	extent	that	it	borrows	for	fixed	terms	at	floating	interest	rates.	The	Group	manages	its	cost	of	borrowing	
by	limiting	the	ratio	of	fixed	to	floating	rate	cover	held.	The	Group	uses	interest	rate	swaps	and	interest	rate	options	to	manage	this.		 	 	 	
	 	 	
Financial	instruments	are	held	to	protect	a	portion	of	future	borrowings	forecast	to	fund	the	capital	expenditure	programme,	even	though	the	underlying	
facility	is	not	yet	placed.	 	 	 	 	 	 	
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At	balance	date	the	principal	or	contract	amounts	of	interest	rate	swaps	and	interest	rate	options	outstanding	(including	forward	starts)	are:	 	 	
	 	 	 	
    Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Interest	rate	swaps	 	 	 1,341,850	 625,000	 1,341,850	 625,000
Interest	rate	options	 	 	 100,000	 30,000	 100,000	 30,000
Forward	rate	agreements	 	 	 1,276,000	 0		 1,276,000	 0	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
If,	at	30	June	2008,	interest	rates	had	been	100	bpts	higher/lower	with	all	other	variables	held	constant,	post	tax	profits	for	the	Company	and	Group	for	the	
year	would	have	been	$28.1	million	higher	/	$30.6	million	lower	(30	June	2007:	$9.9	million	higher	/	$11.7	million	lower),	mainly	as	a	result	of	the	fair	value	
change	in	interest	rate	swaps	and	options	that	are	valid	economic	hedges	but	which	do	not	qualify	for	hedge	accounting	under	NZIAS	39.	There	would	be	no	
effect	on	other	components	of	equity.	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Repricing analysis	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	following	tables	identify	the	periods	in	which	repriced	financial	instruments	are	subject	to	interest	rate	risk:	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
  Effective Interest Rate Total Within 1 Year  1 to 2 Years 2 to 5 Years Later than 5 Years
  % $000 $000  $000  $000  $000

Group June 2008	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Assets	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Cash	 8.2 9,257 9,257 0  0  0 
Short	term	deposits	 8.2 24,792 24,792 0  0  0 
Advances	to	associate	 	 0.0 12,495 0  0  237  12,258
Total assets	 	 	 46,544 34,049 0  237  12,258
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Liabilities	 	 	 	 	 	 	
NZ$	Bank	loans	(unsecured)	 9.0 131,683 131,683 0  0  0 
US$	Bank	loans	(unsecured)	 2.8 10,537 10,537 0  0  0 
Fixed	Rate	Bonds	(unsecured)	 8.4 199,455 0  0  199,455 0 
Floating	Rate	Bonds	(unsecured)	 9.1 300,831 300,831 0  0  0 
ECNZ	Residual	loans	(unsecured)	 	 8.0 16,270 16,270 0  0  0 
Total liabilities	 	 	 658,776 459,321 0  199,455 0 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Derivatives 	 	 	 	 	 	
Interest	rate	swaps	 	 1,341,850 302,350 110,000 547,000 382,500
Interest	rate	options	 	 100,000 0  0  100,000 0 
Forward	rate	agreements	 	 	 1,276,000 1,226,000 50,000 0  0 
Total derivatives	 	 	 2,717,850 1,528,350 160,000 647,000 382,500
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Repricing profile	 	 	 2,105,618 1,103,078 160,000 447,782 394,758

Company June 2008       

Assets	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Cash	 8.2 9,209 9,209 0  0  0 
Short	term	deposits 8.2 24,792 24,792 0  0  0 
Advances	to	associate	 	 0.0 12,495 0  0  237  12,258
Total assets	 	 	 46,496 34,001 0  237  12,258
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Liabilities	 	 	 	 	 	 	
NZ$	Bank	loans	(unsecured)	 9.0 131,683 131,683 0  0  0 
Fixed	Rate	Bonds	(unsecured)	 8.4 199,455 0  0  199,455 0 
Floating	Rate	Bonds	(unsecured)	 9.1 300,831 300,831 0  0  0 
ECNZ	Residual	loans	(unsecured)	 	 8.0 16,270 16,270 0  0  0 
Total liabilities	 	 	 648,239 448,784 0  199,455 0 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Derivatives	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Interest	rate	swaps	 	 1,341,850 302,350 110,000 547,000 382,500
Interest	rate	options	 	 100,000 0  0  100,000 0 
Forward	rate	agreements	 	 	 1,276,000 1,226,000 50,000 0  0 
Total derivatives	 	 	 2,717,850 1,528,350 160,000 647,000 382,500
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Repricing profile	 	 	 2,116,107 1,113,567 160,000 447,782 394,758
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  Effective Interest Rate Total Within 1 Year  1 to 2 Years 2 to 5 Years Later than 5 Years
  % $000 $000  $000  $000  $000

Group and  Company June 2007	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Assets	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Cash	 7.9	 17,038	 17,038	 0		 0		 0	
Short	term	deposits	 8.0	 69,908	 69,908	 0		 0		 0	
Advances	to	associate	 	 0.0	 17,949	 0		 0		 250		 17,699
Total assets	 	 	 104,895	 86,946	 0		 250		 17,699
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Liabilities	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Fixed	Rate	Bonds	(unsecured)	 7.0	 199,684	 0		 0		 0		 199,684
Floating	Rate	Bonds	(unsecured)	 8.1	 300,932	 300,932	 0		 0		 0	
ECNZ	Residual	loans	(unsecured)	 	 8.0	 16,267	 0		 16,267	 0		 0	
Total liabilities	 	 	 516,883	 300,932	 16,267	 0		 199,684
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Derivatives	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Interest	rate	swaps	 	 625,000	 235,000	 50,000	 200,000	 140,000
Interest	rate	options	 	 	 30,000	 0		 15,000	 15,000	 0	
Total derivatives	 	 	 655,000	 235,000	 65,000	 215,000	 140,000
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Repricing profile	 	 	 243,012	 21,014	 48,733	 215,250	 (41,985)

Fair values	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The	carrying	amount	of	financial	assets	and	liabilities	recorded	in	the	financial	statements	approximates	their	fair	values.	 	 	 	
	 	
The	fair	values	of	interest	rate	and	foreign	currency	derivative	financial	assets	and	liabilities	are	calculated	using	quoted	market	prices.	 	 	 	
	 	
Electricity	derivatives	are	valued	using	a	discounted	cash	flow	methodology	using	a	combination	of	energy	hedge	market	prices,	where	available,	combined	
with	Management’s	internal	view	of	forward	prices	for	the	remainder	of	the	contracts.	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Where	the	fair	value	of	a	derivative	is	calculated	as	the	present	value	of	the	estimated	future	cash	flows	of	the	instrument	there	are	two	key	variables	
being	used;	the	forward	price	curve	and	the	discount	rate.	The	selection	of	the	variables	requires	significant	judgement,	and	therefore	there	is	a	range	of	
reasonably	possible	assumptions	in	respect	of	these	variables	that	could	be	used	in	estimating	the	fair	values	of	these	derivatives.	Maximum	use	is	made		
of	observable	market	data	when	selecting	variables	and	developing	assumptions	for	the	valuation	technique.	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Capital risk management objectives	 	 	 	 	 	 	
When	managing	capital,	management’s	objective	is	to	ensure	the	entity	continues	as	a	going	concern	and	that	shareholder	value	is	increased	at	a	rate	
similar	to	the	increases	in	market	value	achieved	by	comparable	private	sector	companies.	 	 	 	 	 	
	
In	order	to	maintain	or	adjust	the	capital	structure,	changes	may	be	made	to	the	amount	paid	out	in	dividends	to	the	shareholders,	capital	may	be	returned	
or	injected,	or	assets	sold	to	reduce	debt.	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Consistent	with	others	in	the	industry,	the	Group	monitors	capital	on	the	basis	of	the	gearing	ratio.	This	ratio	is	calculated	as	net	debt	divided	by	total	capital.	
Net	debt	is	calculated	as	total	borrowings	(both	current	and	non	current)	less	cash	and	cash	equivalents.	Total	capital	is	calculated	as	shareholders’	equity	
plus	net	debt.	 	 	 	 	 	 	
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NOTE 18. Reconciliation of profit for the period to net cash flows from operating activities    

    Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Profit for the period	 	 	 	 110,951	 96,923	 130,899	 116,890
	 	 	 	 	
Items classified as investing/financing activities	 	 	 	 	
	 •		Fixed,	intangible	and	investment	asset	charges	 	 	 (20,029)	 (4,735)	 (20,029)	 (4,735)
	 •		Loan	charges	 	 	 (52)	 1,383 (93) 1,383
	 •		Transfers	between	Group	companies	 	 	 0 	 0		 34,356	 (9,397)
	 	 	 	 	
Non-cash items	 	 	 	 	
Depreciation	and	amortisation	 	  86,525 84,948	 79,015	 71,028
Change	in	the	fair	value	of	financial	instruments	 	 	 9,665	 61,056	 9,665	 61,056
Impairment	of	exploration	expenditure	 	 	 28,059	 19,607	 0 	 (1,460)
Unwind	of	discount	on	long	term	provisions	 	 	 122 	 0		 0		 0	
Share	of	profits	of	equity	accounted	investees	 	 	 (2,331)	 (2,999)	 88		 30	
Other	non-cash	items	 	 	 (87)	 6,048	 (402)	 6,057
	 	 	 	 	
Net cash provided by operating activities before change in assets and liabilities	 	 212,823	 262,231	 233,499	 240,852
	 	 	 	 	
Change	in	assets	and	liabilities	during	the	period:	 	 	 	 	
	 •	 (Increase)/decrease	in	trade	receivables	and	prepayments	 	  (117,289)	 13,171	 (126,741)	 15,251
	 •	 Increase	in	inventories	 	 	 (1,855)	 (257)	 (2,169)	 (172)
	 •	 Increase/(decrease)	in	trade	payables	and	accruals	 	 	 105,915	 (13,190)	 118,257	 (14,861)
	 •	 Increase/(decrease)	in	provision	for	tax	 	  10,331	 (28,231)	 (13,913)	 (918)
	 •	 Decrease	in	deferred	tax	 	 	 (2,503)	 (9,779)	 (4,160)	 (18,046)
	 	 	 	 	
Net cash inflow from operating activities	 	 	  207,422	 223,945	 204,773	 222,106

NOTE 19. Commitments      
    Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Capital commitments 	 	 	 	 	
Commitments for future capital expenditure are: 	 	 	 	 	
Within	one	year		 	  266,492	 107,128	 13,225	 3,734
One	to	two	years		 	 	 30,347	 6,689 162 	 0	
Two	to	five	years		 	 	 636 	 0		 636 	 0	
Later	than	five	years		 	 	 	 193 	 0		 193 	 0	
	 	 	  297,668	 113,817	 14,216	 3,734
Operating lease commitments 	 	 	 	 	
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating leases are:		 	 	 	 	
Within	one	year		 	 	 2,496	 2,497	 2,496	 2,497
One	to	two	years		 	  2,065	 2,454	 2,065	 2,454
Two	to	five	years		 	 	 5,659	 6,007	 5,659	 6,007
Later	than	five	years		 	 	 	 4,596	 6,424	 4,596	 6,424
	 	 	 	 14,816	 17,382	 14,816	 17,382
	 	 	 	 	
Other operating commitments	 	 	 	 	
Commitments for other operating items are: 	 	 	 	 	
Within	one	year		 	 	 406		 0		 394 	 0	
One	to	two	years		 	 	 349 	 0		 337 	 0	
Two	to	five	years		 	 	 1,440	 0		 1,404	 0	
Later	than	five	years		 	 	 	 81 	 0		 0 	 0	
	 	 	 	 2,276	 0	 2,135	 0	
	 	 	 	 	
The	operating	leases	are	of	a	rental	nature	and	are	on	normal	commercial	terms	and	conditions.	The	majority	of	the	lease	commitments	are	for	building	
accommodation,	the	leases	for	which	have	remaining	terms	of	between	1	and	9	years	and	include	an	allowance	for	either	annual,	biennial	or	triennial	
reviews.	The	remainder	relate	to	vehicles,	plant	and	equipment.	 	 	 	 	
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NOTE 22.  Subsequent events         

The	Company	has	entered	into	arrangements	with	Windflow	Technology	Limited	to	acquire	a	cornerstone	shareholding	of	19.95%	effective	mid-October	
2008,	and	for	Windflow	Technology	Limited	to	construct,	subject	to	consents,	a	proposed	wind	farm	near	Wellington	on	behalf	of	the	Company.	These	
arrangements	are	conditional	on	Windflow	Technology	shareholder	support.	 	 	 	

There	are	no	other	events	subsequent	to	balance	date	that	would	affect	the	fair	presentation	of	these	financial	statements.  

NOTE 23.  Segment reporting      

Mighty	River	Power	Limited	operates	predominantly	in	one	segment,	being	the	generation	and	sale	of	energy	in	New	Zealand.    
     

NOTE 24.  Explanation of transition to NZ IFRS      

As	stated	in	note	1,	these	are	the	Group’s	first	consolidated	financial	statements	prepared	in	accordance	with	NZ	IFRS.	 	

The	accounting	policies	set	out	in	note	1	have	been	applied	in	preparing	the	consolidated	financial	statements	for	the	year	ended	30	June	2008,	the	comparative	
financial	statements	for	the	year	ended	30	June	2007	and	the	preparation	of	an	opening	NZ	IFRS	balance	sheet	at	1	July	2006	(the	Group’s	date	of	transition).	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
In	preparing	its	opening	NZ	IFRS	balance	sheet	and	restating	the	2007	financial	statements	the	Group	and	Company	have	adjusted	amounts	previously	
reported	in	financial	statements	prepared	in	accordance	with	its	old	basis	of	accounting	(previous	NZ	FRS).	An	explanation	of	how	the	transition	from	
previous	NZ	FRS	to	NZ	IFRS	has	affected	the	Group	and	Company’s	financial	position	and	financial	performance	is	set	out	in	the	following	tables	and	the	
notes	that	accompany	the	tables.	There	were	no	material	impacts	on	the	cash	flow	statements.	    
 
   Group    Company
 Comparative income statement 30 June 2007 Comparative income statement 30 June 2007 
   Effect of    Effect of   
  Previous transition to  Previous transition to   
  NZ FRS NZ IFRS NZ IFRS   NZ FRS NZ IFRS  NZ IFRS  
 Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

 
Sales	 (e)	 1,073,569	 9,643	 1,083,212	 1,019,428	 9,643	 1,029,071	 	
Less	line	and	metering	charges	 	 (280,921)	 0		 (280,921)	 (280,921)	 0	 (280,921)	
Other	revenue	 (e)	 11,041	 1,528	 12,569	 12,632	 1,528	 14,160	
Total revenue	 	 803,689	 11,171	 814,860	 751,139	 11,171	 762,310
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Energy	costs	 (e)	 325,365	 11,171	 336,536	 287,091	 11,171	 298,262
Other	operating	expenses	 	 162,815	 44		 162,859	 150,913	 44		 150,957
Total operating expenses	 	 488,180	 11,215	 499,395	 438,004	 11,215	 449,219
         
Earnings before net interest expense,  
income tax, depreciation, amortisation  
and financial instruments (EBITDAF)	 	 315,509	 (44)	 315,465	 313,135	 (44)	 313,091
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Depreciation	and	amortisation	 (a)	 (88,293)	 3,345	 (84,948)	 (74,373)	 3,345	 (71,028)
Change	in	the	fair	value		
of	financial	instruments	 (a)	 0		 (61,056)	 (61,056)	 0		 (61,056)	 (61,056)
Impaired	exploration	expenditure	 	 (19,607)	 0		 (19,607)	 1,460	 0		 1,460
Equity	accounted	earnings		
of	associate	companies	 (f)	 3,249	 (250)		 2,999	 (30)	 0		 (30)
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Earnings before net interest expense  
and income tax (EBIT)	 	 210,858	 (58,005)	 152,853	 240,192	 (57,755)	 182,437
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Interest	expense	 	 (35,248)	 0		 (35,248)	 (35,214)	 0		 (35,214)
Interest	income	 	 8,864	 0		 8,864	 11,329	 0		 11,329
Net interest expense	 (26,384)	 0		 (26,384)	 (23,885)	 0		 (23,885)
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Profit before income tax	 184,474	 (58,005)	 126,469	 216,307	 (57,755)	 158,552
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Income	tax	expense	 (d)	 (72,119)	 42,573	 (29,546)	 (84,721)	 43,059	 (41,662)
Profit for the period	 	 112,355	 (15,432)	 96,923	 131,586	 (14,696)	 116,890
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NOTE 20. Contingencies

Mighty	River	Power	Limited	holds	land	and	interests	that	may	be	impacted	by	certain	claims	that	have	been	brought	or	are	pending	against	the	Crown	under	
the	Treaty	of	Waitangi	Act	1975.	In	the	event	that	the	Crown	agrees	to	the	return	of	some	or	all	of	the	impacted	land	resumption	would	be	effected	by	the	
Crown	under	the	Public	Works	Act	1981	and	compensation	would	be	payable	to	the	Company.	 	 	 	 	 	

NOTE 21.  Related party transactions      
      
Ultimate shareholder	 	 	 	 	 	
The	ultimate	shareholder	of	Mighty	River	Power	Limited	is	the	Crown.	All	transactions	with	the	Crown	and	other	State-Owned	Enterprises	are	at	arm’s	
length	and	at	normal	market	prices	and	on	normal	commercial	terms.		 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Transactions with related parties	 	 	 	 	 	
Significant	transactions	with	the	Crown	and	other	State-Owned	Enterprises	include	energy	contracts	totalling	$22.7	million	(2007:	$0.1	million),	payments	to	
the	Inland	Revenue	Department	for	Income	Tax,	PAYE,	GST	and	FBT	totalling	$76.1	million	(2007:	$103.6	million),	and	payments	for	ACC	$0.6	million	(2007:	
$0.4	million).	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Notes	10,	11	and	12	provide	details	of	subsidiaries,	associates	and	jointly	controlled	assets.	All	of	these	entities	are	related	parties	of	the	Company.	 	 	
	 	 	
During	the	year	the	Company	entered	into	the	following	transactions	with	these	entities:	 	 	 	
	 	         

       Transaction Value Balance Outstanding 
        For the year ended 30 June As at 30 June 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Management	fees	and	service	agreements	 	 	 	 	 	
	 Subsidiaries	 	 	 3,482 	 2,567		 0 	 0	
	 Associates	 	 	 3,443		 3,438		 260 	 1,160	
	 Jointly	controlled	assets	 	 	 1,202 	 1,265		 0 	 0	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Energy	contracts	received	(paid)	 	 	 	 	 	
	 Associates	 	 	 28,075 	 (8,152)	 11,136 	 160	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Interest	income	(expense)	 	 	 	 	 	
	 Subsidiaries	 	 	 4,097 	 3,772		 0 	 0	
	 Associates	 	 	 32 	 10		 2 	 10	
	 Jointly	controlled	assets	 	 	 (104)	 (102)	 0 	 0	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Energy	contracts,	management	and	other	services	are	made	in	arm’s	length	transactions	at	normal	market	prices	and	on	normal	commercial	terms.	 	 	
	 	 	
Advances	to	subsidiaries	are	interest	free	and	repayable	on	demand	with	the	exception	of	Mighty	River	Power	Geothermal	Limited’s	(previously	Mighty	River	
Power	Investment	Limited)	advances	to	Rotokawa	Geothermal	Limited	(previously	Mighty	River	Power	(Rotokawa)	Limited)	which	carries	a	floating	market	
interest	rate	and	is	repayable	on	demand.	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
Advances	to	TPC	Holdings	Limited	are	interest	free	and	repayable	on	demand	subject	to	certain	conditions	being	met.	The	advances	to	Bosco	Connect	Limited	
carries	a	floating	interest	rate	and	has	a	three	year	term.	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
No	related	party	debts	have	been	written	off,	forgiven,	or	an	impairment	charge	booked.	 	 	 	 	 	

Key management personnel	 	 	 	 	 	
Key	management	personnel	compensation	comprised:	 	 	 	 	 	
    Group Group Company Company 
    2008  2007  2008  2007
    $000  $000  $000  $000

Directors	fees	 	 	 479 	 355		 479		 355	
Salary	and	other	short	term	benefits	of	the	Chief	Executive	and	Senior	Management		 3,328 	 2,844		 3,328 	 2,844	
	 	 	 	 3,807 	 3,199		 3,807 	 3,199	
	
Other transactions with key management personnel	 	 	 	 	 	
Directors	and	employees	of	the	Group	deal	with	Mighty	River	Power	Limited	as	electricity	consumers	on	normal	terms	and	conditions	within	the	ordinary	
course	of	trading	activities.	 	 	 	 	 	

A	number	of	key	management	personnel	provide	directorship	services	to	other	entities	as	part	of	their	employment	without	receiving	any	additional	
remuneration.	A	number	of	these	entities	transacted	with	the	Group	in	the	reporting	period.	The	terms	and	conditions	of	the	transactions	with	key	
management	personnel	were	conducted	on	an	arms	length	basis.	 	 	 	 	 	
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008         

        

 Transition balance sheet 1 July 2006 Comparative balance sheet 30 June 2007 
   Effect of    Effect of   
  Previous transition to  Previous transition to   
  NZ FRS NZ IFRS NZ IFRS  NZ FRS NZ IFRS  NZ IFRS  
 Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Group

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY        
Issued	capital	 377,561	 0		 377,561	 377,561	 0		 377,561
Retained	earnings	 (a,b,c,d,f)	 419,609	 83,828	 503,437	 482,408	 68,117	 550,525
Asset	revaluation	reserve	 (b,c,d,f)	 1,300,517	 (575,153)	 725,364	 1,301,459	 (523,544)	 777,915
Cash	flow	hedge	reserve	 (a,d,f)	 0		 39,955	 39,955	 0		 4,492	 4,492
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 	 2,097,687	 (451,370)	 1,646,317	 2,161,428	 (450,935)	 1,710,493
         
ASSETS         
CURRENT ASSETS         
Cash	and	cash	equivalents  2,364	 0		 2,364	 16,654	 384		 17,038
Short	term	deposits	 	 2,000	 0		 2,000	 69,500	 408		 69,908
Receivables	and	prepayments	 (e)	 180,225	 (12,590)	 167,635	 166,776	 (12,312)	 154,464
Inventories	 	 4,409	 0		 4,409	 4,666	 0		 4,666
Derivative	financial	instruments	 (a)	 0		 43,071	 43,071	 0		 22,024	 22,024
Taxation	receivable	 	 0		 0		 0		 22,548	 4,930	 27,478
Total current assets  188,998	 30,481	 219,479	 280,144	 15,434	 295,578
         
NON-CURRENT ASSETS         
Property,	plant	and	equipment (e) 2,478,979	 (4,426)	 2,474,553	 2,562,136	 (35,085)	 2,527,051
Intangible	assets	 (e)	 0		 11,588	 11,588	 0		 21,638	 21,638
Investment	and	advances	to	associates	 (f)	 31,308	 3,501		 27,807	 31,806	 16,735		 48,541
Derivative	financial	instruments	 (a)	 0		 31,383	 31,383	 0		 31,085	 31,085
Other	non-current	assets	 (e)	 9,134	 (9,059)	 75		 7,828	 (7,753)	 75	
Total non-current assets  2,519,421	 25,985	 2,545,406	 2,601,770	 26,620	 2,628,390
TOTAL ASSETS  2,708,419	 56,466	 2,764,885	 2,881,914	 42,054	 2,923,968
         
LIABILITIES         
CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Payables	and	accruals	 (e)	 138,230 (7,531)	 130,699	 141,951	 (8,357)	 133,594
Provisions	 (e)	 6,203 (6,203)	 0		 5,920	 (5,920)	 0	
Derivative	financial	instruments	 (a)	 0		 11,061	 11,061	 0		 78,984	 78,984
Taxation	payable	 	 753		 0		 753		 0		 0		 0	
Total current liabilities  145,186	 (2,673)	 142,513	 147,871	 64,707	 212,578
         
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Derivative	financial	instruments	 (a) 0		 3,311	 3,311	 0		 7,694	 7,694
Energy	contracts	 	 1,204	 0		 1,204	 0		 0		 0	
Loans	 	 435,591	 (867)	 434,724	 516,000	 883		 516,883
Deferred	tax	 (d)	 28,751	 508,065	 536,816	 56,615	 419,705	 476,320
Total non-current liabilities  465,546	 510,509	 976,055	 572,615	 428,282	 1,000,897
TOTAL LIABILITIES  610,732	 507,836	 1,118,568	 720,486	 492,989	 1,213,475
         
NET ASSETS  2,097,687	 (451,370)	 1,646,317	 2,161,428	 (450,935)	 1,710,493
         

   
    
 Transition balance sheet 1 July 2006 Comparative balance sheet 30 June 2007 

    Effect of     Effect of 

  Previous NZ FRS transition to   Previous NZ FRS transition to

 Note NZ FRS Correction NZ IFRS NZ IFRS  NZ FRS Correction NZ IFRS NZ IFRS

  $000 $000 $000 $000  $000 $000 $000 $000

Company

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY          
Issued	capital	 	 377,561	 0		 0		 377,561	 	 377,561	 0		 0		 377,561
Retained	earnings	 (a,b,c,d)	 353,333	 (37,959)	 199,032	 514,406	 	 435,363	 (37,959)	 184,057	 581,461
Asset	revaluation	reserve	 (b,c,d)	 1,419,117	 0		 (696,507)	 722,610	 	 1,420,059	 0		 (664,043)	 756,016
Cash	flow	hedge	reserve	 (a,d)	 0		 0		 40,361	 40,361	 	 0		 0		 3,434	 3,434
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 	 2,150,011	 (37,959)	 (457,114)	 1,654,938	 	 2,232,983	 (37,959)	 (476,552)	 1,718,472
          
ASSETS          
CURRENT ASSETS          
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	 	 2,247	 0		 0		 2,247	 	 16,603	 0		 384		 16,987
Short	term	deposits	 	 2,000	 0		 0		 2,000	 	 69,500	 0		 408		 69,908
Receivables	and	prepayments	 (a,e)	 277,009	 0		 (12,590)	 264,419	 	 400,677	 0		 (21,432)	 379,245
Inventories	 	 4,179	 0		 0		 4,179	 	 4,351	 0		 0		 4,351
Derivative	financial	instruments	 (a)	 0		 0		 43,071	 43,071	 	 0		 0		 22,024	 22,024
Taxation	receivable	 	 367		 0		 0		 367		 	 0		 0		 1,285	 1,285
Total current assets 	 285,802	 0		 30,481	 316,283	 	 491,131	 0		 2,669	 493,800
          
NON-CURRENT ASSETS          
Property,	plant	and	equipment	 (e)	 2,260,818	 0		 (4,412)	 2,256,406	 	 2,242,512	 0		 (25,915)	 2,216,597
Investment	in	subsidiaries	 	 161,859	 (37,959)	 0		 123,900	 	 161,859	 (37,959)	 0		 123,900
Intangible	assets	 (e)	 0		 0		 9,297	 9,297	 	 0		 0		 19,611	 19,611
Investment	and	advances	to	associates	 	 21,000	 0		 0		 21,000	 	 18,219	 0		 0		 18,219
Derivative	financial	instruments	 (a)	 0		 0		 31,383	 31,383	 	 0		 0		 31,085	 31,085
Other	non-current	assets	 (e)	 6,857	 0		 (6,782)	 75		 	 5,851	 0		 (5,776)	 75	
Total non-current assets	 	 2,450,534	 (37,959)	 29,486	 2,442,061	 	 2,428,441	 (37,959)	 19,005	 2,409,487
TOTAL ASSETS 	 2,736,336	 (37,959)	 59,967	 2,758,344	 	 2,919,572	 (37,959)	 21,674	 2,903,287
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
LIABILITIES          
CURRENT LIABILITIES          
Payables	and	accruals	 (e)	 126,252	 0		 (7,531)	 118,721	 	 123,867	 0		 (8,358)	 115,509
Provisions	 (e)	 6,203	 0		 (6,203)	 0		 	 5,920	 0		 (5,920)	 0	
Derivative	financial	instruments	 (a)	 0		 0		 11,061	 11,061	 	 0		 0		 78,984	 78,984
Taxation	payable	 	 0		 0		 0		 0		 	 3,645	 0		 (3,645)	 0	
Total current liabilities 	 132,455	 0		 (2,673)	 129,782	 	 133,432	 0		 61,061	 194,493
          
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES          
Derivative	financial	instruments	 (a)	 0		 0		 3,311	 3,311	 	 0		 0		 7,694	 7,694
Energy	contracts	 	 1,204	 0		 0		 1,204	 	 0		 0		 0		 0	
Loans	 	 435,591	 0		 (867)	 434,724	 	 516,000	 0		 883		 516,883
Deferred	tax	 (d)	 17,075	 0		 517,311	 534,386	 	 37,157	 0		 428,588	 465,745
Total non-current liabilities	 	 453,870	 0		 519,755	 973,625	 	 553,157	 0		 437,165	 990,322
TOTAL LIABILITIES 	 586,325	 0		 517,082	 1,103,407	 	 686,589	 0		 498,226	 1,184,815

NET ASSETS 	 2,150,011	 (37,959)	 (457,115)	 1,654,937	 	 2,232,983	 (37,959)	 (476,552)	 1,718,472

Notes to the reconciliation of previous NZ GAAP to NZ IFRS          

(a)  Fair value of derivative contracts      
On	transition	all	derivative	contracts	(including	electricity	hedges,	interest	rate	and	foreign	exchange	contracts)	were	recorded	in	the	balance	sheet		
at	fair	value	under	NZ	IFRS	and	adjusted	against	equity	balances.	Any	subsequent	movement	in	the	fair	value	of	these	instruments	from	year	to	year	has		
the	potential	to	affect	the	income	statement	and	the	balance	sheet,	the	extent	to	which	will	depend	on	whether	hedge	accounting	is	adopted.	NZ	IFRS		
is	very	prescriptive	on	when	a	derivative	contract	can	be	considered	an	effective	hedge	of	an	underlying	position	of	future	cash	flow.	The	Group	has		
therefore	adopted	hedge	accounting	practices	where	practical.         
  
          
   

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008 
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008     

(b)  Deemed cost adjustments     
NZ	IFRS	1	has	some	specific	exemptions	available	to	entities	on	initial	transition	to	NZ	IFRS.	A	first	time	adopter	may	have	established	a	deemed	cost	under	
previous	GAAP	for	some	or	all	of	its	assets	and	liabilities	by	measuring	them	at	their	fair	value	because	of	a	specific	event.	It	may	use	such	event-driven	
fair	value	measurements	as	deemed	cost	for	NZ	IFRS	at	the	date	of	the	measurement.	The	Group	used	this	exemption	in	relation	to	the	fair	value	exercise	
undertaken	on	the	acquisition	of	assets	and	liabilities	on	the	break-up	of	ECNZ.	The	impact	of	this	is	a	transfer	between	the	asset	revaluation	reserve	and	
retained	earnings.	 	 	 	

The	total	aggregate	amount	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	where	this	exemption	has	been	taken	is	$514.2m.	The	aggregate	adjustment	to		the	carrying	
amount	reported	under	previous	GAAP	is	$244.7m.     

(c) Revaluation of property, plant and equipment    
Under	NZ	IFRS	downward	revaluations	below	cost	of	individual	assets	are	not	permitted	to	be	set	off	in	the	reserve	against	upward	revaluations	of	other	
assets	within	the	same	asset	class	and	are	taken	to	the	income	statement.	As	required	under	transition	to	NZ	IFRS	an	amount	of	$25.2	million,	resulting	
from	a	devaluation	of	certain	generation	assets,	was	reclassified	from	the	asset	revaluation	reserve	to	retained	earnings.    

(d) Deferred tax    
The	IFRS	basis	of	accounting	for	deferred	tax	is	conceptually	different	to	previous	NZ	GAAP.	Under	previous	NZ	GAAP	deferred	tax	is	calculated	using	an	income	
statement	approach	whereas	under	NZ	IFRS	deferred	tax	is	calculated	based	on	a	balance	sheet	approach.	This	method	recognises	deferred	tax	balances	where	
there	is	a	difference	between	the	carrying	value	of	an	asset	or	liability	and	its	tax	base.	The	most	significant	impact	for	the	Group	is	the	recognition	of	a	deferred	
tax	liability	in	relation	to	the	revaluation	of	generation	assets	and	the	recognition	of	the	fair	value	of	derivative	contracts.    
The	above	changes	increased	deferred	tax	in	the	Group	as	follows:        
     
    Group Group Company Company 
    1 July 2006 30 June 2007 1 July 2006 30 June 2007  
    $000 $000 $000 $000 

Asset	revaluation	reserve	 	 	 	 355,666	 323,079	 354,310	 321,845	
Cash	flow	hedge	reserve	 	 	 	 19,880	 1,472	 19,880	 1,472	
Retained	earnings	 	 	 	 132,519	 90,224	 143,121	 100,341	
Other	 	 	 	 0		 4,930	 0		 4,930	
Increase in deferred tax liability	 	 	 	 508,065	 419,705	 517,311	 428,588

(e)  Reclassifications      
Revenue	reclassifications	relate	to	prompt	payment	discounts	not	taken	and	bad	debts	recovered.	Balance	sheet	reclassifications	relate	to	the	transfer	of	
software	from	property,	plant	and	equipment	to	intangible	assets	and	interest	accrued	to	fair	value	of	financial	instruments.	 	

(f) Associates
The	equity	accounted	share	of	associate	company	NZ	IFRS	transition	adjustments	has	been	recognised.
   
NZ FRS Correction      
In	1999	one	of	the	Company’s	subsidiaries	recognised	an	impairment	on	its	investment	in	one	of	it’s	own	subsidiaries.	Although	NZ	FRS	did	not	give	clear	
guidance	on	this	matter,	it	would	have	been	appropriate	for	the	Company	to	also	recognise	an	impairment	in	its	direct	subsidiary	as	a	result.	This	matter	has	
now	been	rectified	here.	There	is	no	impact	on	the	Group	accounts.	       
      

Five year financial review
 

   NZ IFRS NZ IFRS NZ FRS  NZ FRS NZ FRS
   2008 2007  2006 2005 2004
   $000 $000  $000  $000  $000

INCOME STATEMENT    * * *
Total	revenue	 	 1,171,897	 814,860	 1,009,436	 680,727	 596,907

EBITDAF	 	 304,639	 315,465	 304,006	 298,184	 246,737
Depreciation	and	amortisation	 	 (86,525)	 (84,948)	 (83,543)	 (56,422)	 (47,186)
Change	in	fair	value	of	financial	instruments	 	 (9,665)	 (61,056)	 0	 0	 0
Net	interest	 	 (20,860)	 (26,384)	 (34,646)	 (32,687)	 (29,401)
Equity	accounted	earnings	of	associate	companies	 	 2,331	 2,999	 4,156	 1,021	 131
Impaired	exploration	expenditure	 	 (28,059)	 (19,607)	 (17,532)	 (20,935)	 0
Non-recurring	items	 	 	 0	 0	 0	 (1,202)	 (14,705)
Profit	before	taxation	 	 161,861	 126,469	 172,441	 187,959	 155,576
Income	tax	expense	 	 	 (50,910)	 (29,546)	 (71,669)	 (66,732)	 (55,748)
Net	profit	for	the	period	 	 	 110,951	 96,923	 100,772	 121,227	 99,828

CASH FLOW STATEMENT      
Operating	cash	flow	 	 207,422	 223,945	 195,695	 187,604	 88,988
Investing	cash	flow	 	 (345,300)	 (170,266)	 (144,641)	 (103,627)	 (47,957)
Financing	cash	flow	 	 	 84,981	 28,903	 (70,103)	 (64,021)	 (42,456)
Net	increase	/	(decrease)	in	cash	 	 (52,897)	 82,582	 (19,049)	 19,956	 (1,425)
Opening	cash	 	 	 86,946	 4,364	 23,413	 3,457	 4,882
Closing	cash	 	 	 34,049	 86,946	 4,364	 23,413	 3,457

Performance Indicators      
Return	on	average	shareholders’	equity	 	 5.6%	 5.8%	 4.9%	 8.3%	 11.4%
Total	equity	/	total	assets	 	 55.6%	 58.5%	 77.5%	 76.2%	 58.6%
Net	debt	/	net	debt	plus	equity	 	 21.7%	 20.1%	 17.1%	 18.0%	 32.4%
FFO	/	interest	expense	 	 6.7x	 9.0x	 6.9x	 6.8x	 6.3x

BALANCE SHEET      
Shareholders’ Equity      
Share	capital	 	 377,561	 377,561	 377,561	 377,561	 377,561
Reserves	 	 	 1,880,089	 1,332,932	 1,720,126	 1,655,754	 508,963
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY   2,257,650	 1,710,493	 2,097,687	 2,033,315	 886,524
      
Assets      
Current assets      
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	 	 34,049	 86,946	 4,364	 23,413	 3,457
Derivative	financial	instruments	 	 42,929	 22,024	 0	 0	 0
Other	 	 	 314,338	 186,608	 184,634	 165,372	 122,684
Total	current	assets	 	 391,316	 295,578	 188,998	 188,785	 126,141
      
Non-current assets      
Property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 3,498,704	 2,527,051	 2,478,979	 2,437,139	 1,369,319
Derivative	financial	instruments	 	 74,113	 31,085	 0	 0	 0
Other	 	 	 93,896	 70,254	 40,442	 42,157	 17,846
Total	non-current	assets	 	 	 3,666,713	 2,628,390	 2,519,421	 2,479,296	 1,387,165
TOTAL ASSETS   4,058,029	 2,923,968	 2,708,419	 2,668,081	 1,513,306
	 	 	 	 	 	
Liabilities      
Current liabilities      
Loans	 	 67,461	 0	 0	 0	 54,000
Derivative	financial	instruments	 	 90,249	 78,984	 0	 0	 0
Other	 	 	 245,190	 133,594	 145,186	 141,355	 173,149
Total	current	liabilities	 	 402,900	 212,578	 145,186	 141,355	 227,149
      
Non-current liabilities      
Loans	 	 591,315	 516,883	 435,591	 469,294	 374,315
Derivative	financial	instruments	 	 115,794	 7,694	 0	 0	 0
Other	 	 	 690,370	 476,320	 29,955	 24,117	 25,318
Total	non-current	liabilities	 	 	 1,397,479	 1,000,897	 465,546	 493,411	 399,633
TOTAL LIABILITIES   1,800,379	 1,213,475	 610,732	 634,766	 626,782
      
TOTAL NET ASSETS   2,257,650	 1,710,493	 2,097,687	 2,033,315	 886,524
      
* Information for years prior to the Group’s transition date of 1 July 2006 to NZ IFRS have been prepared under existing NZ FRS and  have not been translated to NZ IFRS amounts.  
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Reporting Guidelines Version 3.0/ 
Electric Utility Sector Supplement Status Page

Strategy & Profile

1.1 Statement	from	the	CE	 Yes 14-15

1.2 Description	of	key	impacts,	risks,	and	opportunities Partial 12-15

Organisational Profile

2.1 Name	of	the	organisation	 Yes 51

2.2 Primary	brands,	products,	and/or	services	 Yes 51

2.3 Operational	structure	of	the	organisation Yes 51

2.4 Location	of	organisation’s	headquarters Yes 51

2.5 Countries	in	which	the	company	operates Yes 51

2.6 Nature	of	ownership	and	legal	form Yes 48

2.7 Markets	served	 Yes 51

2.8 Scale	of	the	reporting	organisation Yes 32,	
58-60

2.9 Significant	changes	in	size,	structure,	or	ownership	 N/A

2.10 Awards	received	in	the	reporting	period	 Yes 20,	25

EU1 Installed	capacity	(MW)	by	energy	source Yes 27

EU2 Number	of	residential,	industrial	and	commercial	
customer	accounts

Partial 18-19

EU3 Length	of	transmission	and	distribution		
lines	by	voltage

N/A

EU4 Allocation	of	CO2	emissions	permits Next	
year

	 Reporting Parameters

3.1 Reporting	period Yes 92

3.2 Date	of	most	recent	previous	report	(if	any)	 Yes 92

3.3 Reporting	cycle Yes 92

3.4 Contact	point	for	questions	regarding	the	report	 Yes 92

3.5 Process	for	defining	report	content Yes 92

3.6 Boundary	of	the	report Yes 92

3.7 Specific	limitations	on	the	scope	or	boundary		
of	the	report

Yes 92

3.8 Basis	for	reporting	on	joint	ventures,	subsidiaries,	
leased	facilities,	outsourced	operations,		
and	other	entities	

Yes 92

3.9 Data	measurement	techniques	and	the		
basis	of	calculations		

Partial 92

3.10 Explanation	of	the	nature	and	effect		
of	any	re-statement		

N/A

3.11 Significant	scope,	boundary,	or	measurement	
changes	from	previous	reporting	period	

N/A

GRI Content Index

3.12 Table	identifying	the	location	of	the	Standard	
Disclosures	in	the	report

Yes 90-91

3.13 Assurance No

Governance

4.1 Governance	structure	of	the	organization	 Yes 48-49

4.2 Indicate	whether	the	Chair	of	the	Board		
is	also	an	executive	officer	

Yes 48

4.3 Independence	of	the	Executive	Board Yes 48-49

4.4 Mechanisms	to	provide	recommendations		
to	the	Executive	Board

No

4.5 Linkage	between	organisation’s	performance		
and	executive	compensation	

No

4.6 Avoiding	conflicts	of	interest	 Yes 49

4.7 Qualifications	and	expertise	of	the	members		
of	the	Executive	Board	

Yes 44-45

4.8 Corporate	mission	and	values	 No

4.9 Board-level	processes	for	identifying	and	managing	
risks	and	opportunities	

Yes 49

4.1 Processes	for	evaluating	the	Board’s		
own	performance

Yes 49

4.11 How	the	precautionary	approach	is	addressed No

4.12 Externally	developed	economic,	environmental,		
and	social	charters

No

4.13 Memberships	in	associations	 No

4.14 Stakeholder	groups	engaged	by	the	organization Yes 40-43

4.15 Identification	and	selection	of	stakeholders	 Partial 40-43

4.16 Approaches	to	stakeholder	engagement	 Yes 40-43

4.17 Use	of	stakeholder	engagement	 Yes 40-43

Management Approach & Performance Indicators

Economic

Disclosure	on	Management	Approach	 Yes 14-15

EC1 Direct	economic	value	generated	and	distributed Yes 52

EC2 Financial	implications	and	other	risks		
and	opportunities	due	to	climate	change	

Partial 35-37

EC3 Coverage	of	defined	benefit	plan	obligations N/A

EC4 Significant	financial	assistance	received		
from	government

Yes 51

EC6 Policy,	practices,	and	proportion	of	spending		
on	locally	based	suppliers

Next	
year

EC7 Procedures	and	practice	for	local	hiring N/A

EC8 Infrastructure	investments	and	services N/A

EU5 Planning	for	long	and	short	term	availability		
and	reliability

Yes 14-15,	
	25-27

EU6 Demand	side	management	programs No

EU7 Research	and	development	for	reliable	and	
affordable	electricity

No

EU8 Nuclear	plant	decommissioning N/A

EU9 Planned	capacity	vs.	projected	demand	over		
long-term,	by	energy	source

No

EU10 MW	capacity	saved	through	demand	side	
management	programs

No

EU11 MWh	energy	saved	through	demand-side	
management	programs	by	customer	type

No

EU12 Average	generation	efficiency	by	energy	source Yes 27

EU13 Transmission	and	distribution	efficiency N/A

	 Environmental

Disclosure	on	Management	Approach Yes 35-37

EN1 Materials	used	by	weight	or	volume	 Partial 36-37

EN2 Recycled	input	materials Partial 36-37

EN3 Direct	energy	consumption	by	primary	energy	source	 Yes 37

EN4 Indirect	energy	consumption	by	primary		
energy	source

N/A

EN6 Initiatives	to	provide	energy-efficient	or	renewable	
products	and	services

Yes 35-37,	
25-27

EN8 Total	water	withdrawal	by	source Partial 36-37

EN9 Water	sources	affected	by	withdrawal	of	water Partial 36-37

EN10 %	and	volume	of	water	recycled	and	reused Yes 37

EN11 Location	and	size	of	land	owned,	leased,		
managed	in,	or	adjacent	to,	protected	areas		
and	areas	of	high	biodiversity	value	outside		
protected	areas

Next	
year

EN12 Impacts	on	biodiversity Partial 37

EN13 Habitats	protected	or	restored Partial 37

EN16 Total	direct	and	indirect	greenhouse	gas	emissions	
by	weight	

Yes 35

EN17 Other	relevant	indirect	greenhouse	gas	emissions	
by	weight

N/A

EN18 Initiatives	to	reduce	greenhouse	gas	emissions		
and	reductions	achieved

Partial 35-37

EN19 Emissions	from	ozone-depleting	substances	 N/A

EN20 NOx,	SOx	and	other	significant	air	emissions	 No

EN21 Total	water	discharge	by	quality	and	destination Yes 36-37

EN22 Waste	volume	by	type	and	disposal	method Next	
year

EN23 Total	number	and	volume	of	significant	spills Yes 37

EN26 Initiatives	to	mitigate	environmental	impacts		
of	products	and	services	

Partial 35-37

EN27 %	of	products	sold	and	their	packaging	materials	
that	are	reclaimed

N/A

EN28 Fines	for	non-compliance	with		
environmental	regulations	

Yes 36

 Labour Practices and Decent Work

Disclosure on Management Approach Yes 30-31

LA1 Total	work	force	by	employment	type,	employment	
contract,	and	region	

Yes 32

LA2 Total	number	and	rate	of	employee	turnover		
by	age	group,	gender,	and	region

Partial 33

LA4 Percentage	of	employees	covered	by	collective	
bargaining	agreements

No

LA5 Minimum	notice	periods	for	operational	changes No

LA7 Rates	of	injury,	occupational	diseases,		
lost	days,	absenteeism,		
and	number	of	fatalities	by	region

Yes 33

LA8 Programs	to	assist	work	force	members,	their	
families,	or	community	members	regarding		
serious	diseases

Yes 32-33

LA10 Average	training	hours	per	year	per	employee Next	
year

LA12 Percentage	of	employees	receiving	regular	
performance	reviews	

Partial 30

LA13 Composition	of	governance	bodies	and	breakdown	of	
employees	per	category	

Yes 32,	
48-49

LA14 Ratio	basic	salary	of	men	to	women	 No

EU15 Processes	to	ensure	retention	and	renewal	of	skilled	
work	force	

Partial 30-33

EU16 Total	subcontracted	workforce Next	
year

EU17 %	of	contractors	that	have	undergone	H&S	training Next	
year

	 Human Rights

Disclosure on Management Approach N/A

HR1 Investment	agreements	that	include	human	rights	
clauses

N/A

HR2 Significant	suppliers	and	contractors	who	have	
undergone	human	rights	screening

Next	
year

HR4 Total	number	of	incidents	of	discrimination	and	
actions	taken

Next	
year

HR5 Freedom	of	association	and	collective	bargaining N/A

HR6 Child	labour N/A

HR7 Forced	and	compulsory	labour N/A

Society

Disclosure on Management Approach Yes 40-43

SO1 Programmes	to	assess	and	manage	impacts	on	
communities	(entering,	operating	and	exiting)

No

SO2 Analysis	for	risks	related	to	corruption N/A

SO3 Employee	anti-corruption	training N/A

SO4 Responses	to	anti-corruption	incidents N/A

SO5 Public	policy	positions Yes 12-15

SO6 Total	value	of	contributions	to	political	parties Yes 51

SO8 Value	of	significant	fines	and	total	number	of	non-
monetary	sanctions	for	non-compliance

Yes 36

EU18 Decision	making	processes	with	stakeholders	and	
outcomes	of	engagement

Yes 40-43

EU19 Approach	to	managing	the	impacts	of	involuntary	
displacement

N/A

EU20 Disaster/	emergency	management	planning		
and	training

No

EU21 Number	of	people	displaced	by	new/expanded	
generation	projects

N/A

Product Responsibility

Disclosure on Management Approach Yes 20-21

PR1 Life	cycle	stages	in	which	H&S	impacts		
of	services	assessed

No

PR2 Non-compliance	with	regulation	and	codes	
concerning	H&S	of	products	and	services

No

PR3 Service	information	requirements Partial 17-21

PR4 Non-compliance	with	regulation	and	codes	
concerning	service	information

No

PR5 Customer	satisfaction	practices Yes 20-21

PR6 Programmes	for	adherence	to	laws,	standards,		
codes	related	to	marketing	comms

No

PR7 Non-compliance	with	regulation	and	codes	
concerning	marketing	comms

No

PR8 Total	number	of	substantiated	complaints	regarding	
breaches	of	customer	privacy

No

PR9 Fines	for	non-compliance	concerning	the		
use	of	products	and	services

No

EU22 Programmes	to	improve/maintain	access		
to	electricity

Yes 20-21

EU23 Practices	to	address	language,	cultural,	low	literacy	
and	disability	related	barriers		
to	accessing	and	safely	using	

Yes 20

EU24 Injuries/fatalities	involving	company	assets Yes 33

EU25 %	of	population	unserved	in	licensed		
distribution	areas

N/A

EU26 Number	of	residential	disconnections		
for	non-payment,	by	duration

Partial 21

EU27 Power	outage	frequency N/A

EU28 Average	outage	duration N/A

EU29 Average	plant	availability	factor	by	energy	source Yes 27
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Scope
This annual report covers the financial  
year 1 July 2007 to 30 June 2008. As was  
the case in our 2007 report, this is an 
integrated report which covers our annual 
financial performance as well as economic, 
social and environmental issues of 
importance to our stakeholders. 
 Mighty River Power is an integrated energy 
generation, trading, retailing and metering 
business. Wholly owned businesses Mercury 
Energy and Metrix are included in the scope 
of this report. Joint ventures or investments 
where we are the operator, such as Mokai 
and Rotokawa, are included for the purposes 
of sustainability reporting. Outside the scope 
of this report are outsourced construction 
and exploration activities and a variety of 
service contractors. 

Content
This report focuses mainly on the  
corporate responsibility issues that are of 
greatest importance to our stakeholders and 
that have a major influence on our business 
success. We have made every effort to 
produce a concise and engaging document.

Data collection and validation 
Mighty River Power uses in-house  
reporting systems to collect the data 
reported. Much data is provided via a formal 
Environmental Management System; other 
data is collected from individual business 
units. We are developing a more  
comprehensive information management 
system as part of our evolving corporate 
responsibility practices. 

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
For the first time, this report is aligned with 
the Global Reporting Initiative G3/Electric 
Utility Sector Sustainability Reporting 
Guidelines released in October 2006.   
We have self-assessed our GRI application  
at a C level. To locate the elements and 
information contained within the guidelines, 
use the index on pages 90 to 91. For a detailed 
explanation of the indicators, visit the website 
www.globalreporting.org.

Contacts
For questions regarding the report contact 
Neil	Williams at:
Phone: +64	9	308	8200
Email:  neil.williams@mightyriver.co.nz

Financial Performance
A full set of financial statements of Mighty 
River Power Limited and the Group for the 12 
month period to 30 June 2008 are included on 
pages 58 to 88 of this report. These 
statements include details of the Group’s 
accounting policies on pages 62 to 88.

Events Subsequent to Balance Date
The Directors would like to draw your 
attention to Note 22 of the financial 
statements. The Directors are not aware of 
any other circumstance since the end of the 
year that has significantly or may significantly 
affect the operations of the Group.

Annual Report Certificate
This Annual Report is dated 27 August 2008 
and is signed on behalf of the Board by:

 

 
 
 

CAROLE DURBIN 
Chair
27 AUGUST 2008 

 

 
 
 

JOHN BAIRD
Deputy Chair
27 AUGUST 2008
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